REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 7, 2014

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER
CITY OF PICAYUNE

Be It Remembered that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Picayune, Pearl
River County, Mississippi, met at City Hall, 203 Goodyear Blvd., in said City, Tuesday,
January 7, 2014, at 5:00 p.m. in regular session with the following officials present:
Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Tammy Valente, Jan Stevens, Larry Breland and
Wayne Gouguet, City Manager Jim Luke and City Clerk Amber Hinton. Council Member
Lynn Bumpers was absent.

It Being Determined a quorum was present, the following proceedings were held.

Opening prayer was given by Rev. John Goss, followed by the Pledge of
Allegiance led by Mayor Ed Pinero.

ORDER TO APPROVE MINUTES

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Valente to approve the Minutes for the City of Picayune dated December 3, 2013.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Valente to acknowledge receipt of monthly budget report for the month of December
2013.
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Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
Valente to approve the docket for January 7, 2014 in the amount of $575,816.47.

and Gouguet
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers

The following roll call was made:
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

VOTING NAY: None
ORDER TO APPROVE DOCKET




REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 7, 2014

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

PROCLAIM JANUARY AS HUMAN TRAFFICKING AWARENESS MONTH

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to proclaim January as “Human Trafficking Awareness Month”.

PROCLAMATION
HUMAN TRAFFICKING AWARENESS MONTH

WHEREAS, January is Human Trafficking Awareness Month, Advocates For Freedom
will be joining millions of Americans nationwide in recognizing the growing need to stop human
trafficking.

WHEREAS, the United States has made great strides in preventing the occurrence of
modern slavery, prosecuting traffickers and dismantling their criminal networks, and protecting
victims and survivors, our work is not done. We stand with those throughout the state of
Mississippi who are working every day to end modern slaver, bring traffickers to justice, and
empower survivors to reclaim their rightful freedom.

WHEREAS, the efforts by individuals, businesses, organizations, and governing bodies
to promote the observance of “Human Trafficking Awareness Month” in January of each year
represents one of the examples of the ongoing commitment in the state of Mississippi to raise
awareness of and to actively combat human trafficking;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED by the City of Picayune, Mississippi, in
recognition of the Advocates For Freedom, does hereby designate January 2014 as “Human
Trafficking Awareness Month” and urge all Citizens to educate themselves about all forms of
modern slavery and the signs and consequences of human trafficking. Together, we can combat
this crime and join with our partners in Mississippi to end this injustice.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed the seal of the City of Picayune
on this the 7th day of January, 2014.

Signed

Mayor, Ed Pinero

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
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ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE ANNUAL MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR CONTINUATION OF
MAIN STREET PROGRAM FOR 2014

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to approve annual Memorandum of Agreement for Continuation of Main Street
Program for 2014 and authorize Mayor to execute the same.

Please submit the signed 2014 Memorandum of Agreement, dues payment for 2014, and all required additional materials
by JANUARY 1, 2014 to the Mississippi Main Street Association, 308 East Pearl Street, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39201,

2014 MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
FOR CONTINUATION

IN THE MISSISSIPPI MAIN STREET ASSOCIATION
MAIN STREET PROGRAM

This agreement is entered into and executed by the Mississippi Main Street Association and
the City of and sponsoring organization

This agreement is for the purpose of continued participation in the Mississippi Main Street Program. MMSA is
under contract with the Mississippi Development Authority to administer the Main Street Program and to provide
technical assistance and training to selected communities. The parties agree to the following:

Section I: The Community Agrees To: (please initial each item)

1. Make payment of annual dues to MIMSA by January 31 of the calendar year.

2. Continue to employ a Manager/Program Coordinator who will be responsible for the day-to-day
administration of the Main Street Program.

3. Expend funds and in-kind services for maintaining a full-time office with the necessary travel and
operating budget for the local program.

4. Continue to implement the Four Point Approach™ methodology recommended by the National Main
Street Center and the Mississippi Main Street Program, including development of an annual written Work Plan for
the local Main Street Program and the establishment of a strong, broad-based organizational system to include
the following committees: organization, promotion, design and economic restructuring.

5. Concentrate the Main Street Program activities within the boundaries designated by the local program.

6. File all applicable IRS forms file in accordance with state and federal taxation laws. Programs may be
required to register as a Mississippi charitable organization with the Mississippi Secretary of State’s office.

7. Maintain data for monitoring the progress of the Main Street Program, submit monthly reports online
using formats provided by the MMSA, and provide other information requested by the MMSA on or before the

identified deadlines.

8. Send the manager to Manager Trainings as designated by the MMSA. The community shall be
responsible for the manager's travel costs and expenses associated with these meetings. If the Program Manager
cannot attend, another program representative should attend to represent the community.

9. Promote and encourage local committee and board member attendance at local, state and national
training opportunities, as identified by the MMSA.

. 10. Ensure that at least sixty percent (60%) of persons designated to participate in any and all MMSA on-site
services are committed to attend at least 48 hours before the scheduled event. The MMSA reserves the right to
cancel said on-site service if this requirement is not met.

11. Assist in local arrangements during on-site and public relations visits to the community, as requested by
the MMSA.

Pagelof 3
2014 Memorandum of Agreement
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12. Maintain an active membership and current fee-paid status in the Mississippi Main Street Association,
participating at the Main Street Program membership level.

——_ 13. Agree to acknowledge being an official Mississippi Main Street city in all printed and electronic materials,
(i.e. websites, newsletters and brochures).

. 14. Be a Network Member of the National Trust Main Street Center.
15 Maintain broad-based public and private sector community support for the program through financial

contributions and in-kind or volunteer support.

Section lI: MMSA Agrees To:
1. Designate a Main Street District Director to handle afl communications with the community, the MMSA, state

government agencies and the National Trust Main Street Center.

2. Conduct an annual Main Street Four Point Approach™ training session open to all program managers, local
board members, local committee members and local government representatives from the Main Street
communities, and provide all necessary materials related to training.

3. Conduct regional training sessions for managers and on-site training sessions in the community for
development of goals, objectives and the annual work plan. The MMSA will also provide guidelines and other
materials designed to assist in the educational process.

4. Conduct quarterly regional meetings and/or workshops to further develop and refine the skills of the program
managers, board members, committee members and local government representatives. The National Main Street
Conference and Destination Downtown Conference qualify as “official training.”

5. Provide advice, technical assistance and on-site visits to the local program manager and community on a
continuing basis, as requested by the local program and determined by the MMSA District Director.

6. Facilitate and promote ongoing press coverage of the Mississippi Main Street Program and its individual local
programs.

7. Conduct an annual evaluation of each program's progress for the past year, and aid the community in deciding
the direction of the program in the upcoming year.

Section ll: MMSA and The Community Jointly agree that:

1. The term of this agreement shall be for one calendar year, beginning on January 1, 2014 and ending on
December 31, 2014. It may be extended or revised by both parties.

2. If funds anticipated for continued fulfiliment are, at any time, not forthcoming or insufficient for continuation
of the contractual agreement, then either party shall have the right to amend or terminate this agreement
without penalty by giving not less than sixty (60) days written notice to the other party.

3. Should a local Main Street program fail to comply with the provisions of the annual Memorandum of
Agreement, the Main Street Executive Director may choose to send that program a written initial warning. At that
time, the local program will be placed on probationary status and ineligible for any services from the Mississippi
Main Street Association. The warning will include a summary of violations and provide guidance on how to correct
the problem. The local program will be reevaluated by the Executive Director ninety (90) days following the first
warning.

4. Jointly hold each other harmless for any activities of the other including but not limited to general liability,
automobite liability, worker’s compensation and employer’s liability.

Page2of3
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WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT.
- g ! /

<z _f /

A, (

/ {// Ve '//(/,")
MAYOR or LOCAL BOARD PRESIDENT/ CHAIRPERSON COMMUNITY

By:

Name (printed):

Date signed:

SPONSORING ORGANIZATION
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BY: Date:
Joey Hudnall, MMSA Board of Directors President

BY: Date:
Bob Wilson, MMSA Executive Director

Required Attachments and Enclosures

The following documents must be attached to this signed and completed Memorandum of Agreement, and
submitted to MMSA by the January 1, 2014 deadline:

Payment of 2014 MMSA dues

A copy of the community’s current Main Street Program Budget

A copy of the community’s Program of Work for 2014

A complete list of local board members, including name and email address.
Please indicate which Board members are new for this year.

pwn s

L

Mail this completed document and all attachments to The Mississippi Main Street Association, 308 East Pearl
Street, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39201.

IMPORTANT MAIN STREET MANAGER REMINDERS:

L Each Main Street Manager must submit a completed Monthly Report on the MMSA website within
fifteen (15) days of the end of each month.

2. Main Street Managers are required to attend all Manager Trainings or send a representative from the
community. Destination Downtown and the National Main Streets Conference are considered Manager
Trainings.

If needed, one of the following meetings may be used as a substitute for one of the
required Trainings:

MTA Governor's Tourism Conference

MEDC Annual Meeting or MEDC Winter Conference

MHT Annual Meeting

MS/Lou Rural Tourism Conference

Alabama Mississippi Rural Tourism Conference

IMDAH Preservation Boot Camp

Your Town Conference

Page3of3
2014 Memorandum of Agreement

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

AUTHORIZE MAYOR'’S SIGNATURE ON SOLID WASTE SERVICES CONTRACT
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Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to authorize Mayor’s signature Solid Waste Services Contract between the City
of Picayune and Progressive Waste Solutions.

« Citvof
Picayine

SOLID WASTE SERVICES CONTRACT

This Contract made this the day of December, 2013, by and between the City
of Picayune, hereinafter called “Owner” or “City” and Progressive Waste Solutions of LA, Inc.
doing business as a Delaware corporation in Picayune, Mississippi, hereinafter called the
“Contractor”,

WITNESSETH, that for and in consideration of the payment and agreements

hereinafter mentioned, the parties hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1: SCOPE OF SERVICE

CONTRACTOR shall perform solid waste collection within the boundaries of the City of Picayune and
furnish vehicles, equipment, labor and facilities to collect and haul solid waste and/or rubbish generated
by residents and light commercial units within the City and haul the solid waste to OWNER's designated
disposal facility (Waste Management, Inc.'s Central Landfill in Pearl River County, Mississippi). The
CONTRACTOR's services shall include at a minimum two times weekly garbage pick-up from each unit,
once weekly rubbish/yard debris pick-up from each unit as provided in Section 5.02 hereof, and once
weekly curbside recycling pick-up from each unit.

SECTION 2: COMPENSATION

OWNER hereby agrees to pay to the CONTRACTOR for the faithful performance of this Contract, in
fawful money of the United States, an aggregate sum monthly equaling (i) the total of all homes and
light commercial units serviced in the City of Picayune in such month multiplied by (ii) $17.39 for each
unit based on the Customer Count for such period of time in accordance with Section 11 hereof, or such
other monthly rate as may become applicable after the expiration of the first two years of the term of
this Contract, pursuant to the terms and provisions of Section 7.00 Rate Adjustments set forth
hereinafter. That on or before the 20th day of each month, CONTRACTOR shall submit an invoice to the
OWNER and OWNER shall make payments to the CONTRACTOR on the basis of said invoice for work
performed during the preceding calendar month by the 10th of the following month, with the exception

1
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of disagreements as to the invoice amount, which shall be resolved in good faith by the parties and any
disputed amount shall be paid immediately to Contractor once resolved. No additional work or extras
will be done unless the same shall be duly authorized by appropriate action by the OWNER.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the OWNER shall be solely responsible for
billing, collecting and remitting any applicable sales, use or service taxes.

SECTION 3: PERFORMANCE BOND

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

The CONTRACTOR shall provide to OWNER a performance bond in the amount of not less
than the billing cost of a six month period, to secure CONTRACTOR's performance of the
services described herein.

Premium for the bond described above shall be paid by the CONTRACTOR. A certificate
from the surety showing that the bond premiums are paid in full shall accompany the
bond.

The surety on the bond shall be a duly authorized corporate surety company authorized
to do business in the state.

Attorneys-in-fact who sign performance bonds or contract bonds must file with each
bond a certified and effectively dated copy of their power of attorney.

SECTION 4: TYPE AND DEFINITIONS OF SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

The OWNER - Shall mean the boundaries of the City of Picayune.

Residential Customer - Residential Customer shall mean any single or multi-family
dwelling of twelve or less units not including hotels or motels which require service for
solid waste collection or any entity separately billed for residential water and sewer
services. In the case of multi unit dwellings, these units will be billed as individual units.

Light Commercial - Light Commercial shall be those commercial units that are licensed
and generate less than an average of two (2) cubic yards of waste per week.

Containers — The CONTRACTOR shall, within (6) months of the Effective Date, replace all
Carts that are in a state of disrepair; and, shall within (6) months of the Effective Date
replace all green Carts with a new Cart that is maroon in color and approximately 96
gallons.  Special circumstances involving elderly/handicap residents will require the
CONTRACTOR to provide carport/garage service. The OWNER and CONTRACTOR will
meet to determine if a resident is eligible for said services. The CONTRACTOR shall
provide the OWNER with at least 20 extra carts for the OWNER to keep in inventory at all
times. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all Carts in good working order at all times during
the Contract Period. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for identifying and repairing
damaged carts on a weekly basis. In no case shall a damaged cart remain damaged for
more than 14 days from the date of reporting. In the event that the CONTRACTOR does
not make the necessary repairs within the time outlined above, or if the CONTRACTOR
repeatedly fails to report and repair damaged carts, the City may make the repairs or
replacement of the Carts and charge the CONTRACTOR Liquidated Damages as outlined
in Section 7.06 of this document. Disposable plastic bags of type and construction for
refuse storage and disposal are acceptable for use as an overflow to the carts.
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4.06

4.07

4.08

4.09

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13
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Units - The term "unit”, when used in this Contract, shall mean one stop for service by
the CONTRACTOR at a residential or light commercial establishment, with the total units
representing the total separate stops/services rendered by the CONTRACTOR within the
OWNER's jurisdiction. The term "unit" shall not include a commercial establishment with
a separate contract with CONTRACTOR or a vacant residential or commercial
establishment.

Solid Waste - Solid waste shall consist of all garbage, tree trimmings, residential trash, and

rubbish as hereinafter defined and as defined by the EPA under 40 C.F.R. § 261.2(a)(1), or
by the State of Mississippi..

Garbage - Garbage shall include and mean all residential accumulations of animal, fruit or
vegetable matter that attends the preparation, use, cooking or dealing in, or storage of
meats, fish, fowl, fruit, vegetables and other matter of any nature whatsoever, which is
subject to decay, putrefaction and the generation of noxious and offensive gases and
odors, of which, for flies and/or other germ-carrying insects, bottles, cans or containers
which, due to their ability to retain water, may service as breeding place for mosquitoes
or other water-breeding insects.

Tree trimmings - Every waste accumulation of palm fronds, tree branches, parts of trees,
bushes or shrubs, green leaf cuttings, fruits or other matter usually creating refuse in the
care of trees and large bushes.

Residential trash - Unless specifically provided to the contrary herein, the term shall
include and mean all household trash, and garden and yard trash that can be deposited
in garbage containers as defined in section 4.04 of this document.

Rubbish/Yard Debris - The term "rubbish" includes, but is not limited to non-putrescible
solid waste. Combustible rubbish includes paper, wool, yard trimmings, leaves and
similar materials. Tree trimmings, branches, leaves, grass trimmings, automobile parts,
furniture and other waste matter other than construction debris, dead animals or
hazardous waste shall be considered as Yard Debris.

Recyclables ~ Recyclables shall include aluminum beverage cans, cardboard, commingled
plastic beverage containers including PET/HDPE, tin cans/bi-metallic cans, newspaper
and newspaper inserts, and magazines.

Excluded waste - Waste excluded from this agreement includes hazardous waste,

biomedical waste, whole trees, car batteries, dead animals, tires and white goods, such
as stoves, refrigerators, water heaters, washing machines.

Producer - An occupant of a residential unit or light commercial business who generates
waste, to be dealt with under the terms of this contract.

Construction debris shall not be collected under this Contract - Waste building material
resulting from construction, remodeling, repair or demolition operations shall not be
collected under this Contract.
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SECTION 5: EXECUTION OF SERVICES

5.01 Garbage Pick-Up ~ The CONTRACTOR shall pick-up garbage at all units twice weekly.

5.02

5.03

While at each unit, the CONTRACTOR shall remove all bagged items at the unit, return
the cart and/or cans to the curb side position and make sure the site is clean from
garbage spilled by the CONTRACTOR prior to moving to the next unit. The CONTRACTOR
shall establish a route and schedule that covers the entire City in two (2) days. Each unit
shall be serviced on either a Monday and Thursday pick-up schedule or a Tuesday and
Friday pick-up schedule. This schedule shall be established prior to the Effective Date and
the CONTRACTOR shall assist the OWNER in notifying the residents of the new pick-up
schedule. In the event the CONTRACTOR fails to complete the twice weekly garbage pick-
up within 24 hours of the business day following the date in which it receives notice of
such failure, the OWNER may elect to self perform the work at the identified units. In this
situation, the OWNER shall charge the CONTRACTOR with Liquidated Damages as
outlined in Section 7.06 of this document.

Rubbish/Yard Debris Pick-Up - The CONTRACTOR in good faith shall endeavor to pick-up
rubbish/yard debris at as many units as needed pursuant to notice from such units to the
City, once weekly on Thursday of each week. The CONTRACTOR shall communicate with
the OWNER on a weekly basis to collect address information for residents who called the
City directly in regards to Rubbish/Yard Debris Pick-Up. The CONTRACTOR shall be
responsible for removing al! rubbish/yard debris that is placed at each unit on a weekly
basis and that is communicated to the OWNER by the resident and then communicated
by the resident to the CONTRACTOR, provided, that such Rubbis/Yard Debris meets the
size limitations required herein. Contractor shall clean/dress up all yard disturbances it
caused during the collection of rubbish/yard debris. Yard shall not be left in a condition
that is not mowable, unless such condition is through no fault of the CONTRACTOR. At
no time shall the CONTRACTOR be responsible for removing any rubbish/yard debris that
exceeds a pile size of approximately 20’ long, 6' wide, and 5’ high (600 cubic feet) at any
given unit in any given week. In the event the CONTRACTOR identifies a unit where the
amount of debris exceeds the quantity listed above, the CONTRACTOR shall provide the
OWNER with the address of the unit for the OWNER to investigate. If the CONTRACTOR
determines that the quantity of debris exceeds the quantity required to be removed by
the CONTRACTOR under this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall not be responsible for
removing the identified debris. In the event the CONTRACTOR fails to remove any debris,
within 24 hours of the business day following the date in which it receives notice of such
failure, for such debris that was identified by the OWNER, prior to CONTRACTOR
beginning such collections, of such debris needing collection, the OWNER may elect to
self perform the work at the identified units. In this situation, the OWNER shall charge
the CONTRACTOR with Liquidated Damages as outlined in Section 7.06 of this document.

Curbside Recycling — The CONTRACTOR shall provide each unit with a recycle bin
approximately 18 gallons in size and provide once weekly collection of recyclables from
each unit. The collection of recyclables shall coincide with either the Monday/Thursday
garbage pick-up schedule or Tuesday/Friday garbage pick-up schedule for each unit. The
CONTRACTOR may elect, in its sole discretion, to pick-up recyclables twice weekly at no
additional cost to the OWNER. In the event the CONTRACTOR fails to complete the
Curbside Recycling pick-up within 24 hours of the business day following the date in

4
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which it receives notice of such failure, the OWNER may elect to self perform the work at
the identified units. In this situation, the OWNER shall charge the CONTRACTOR with
Liquidated Damages as outlined in Section 7.06 of this document.

5.04 Special Event Services — The OWNER periodically has a need for Waste related services
related to Special Events within the City. The CONTRACTOR shall provide, at no cost to
the OWNER, the services identified for each event listed below:

Great American Cleanup (April) - 8 @ 30 Cubic Yard Roll-Off Containers

Boley Creek Clean-Up (April) — 2 @ 30 Cubic Yard Roll-Off Containers
Christmas Parade (December) - 2 Porta-Lets

The CONTRACTOR shall absorb the costs associated with providing these services to the OWNER in the
unit price for twice weekly garbage collection.

SECTION 6: TERMS OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be for four (4) years, commencing September 1, 2013 (the “Effective Date”) and
extending through August 31, 2017. The OWNER and CONTRACTOR shall have the right to renew this
Contract upon mutually agreeable terms, by submitting its written intent to do so to the other party at
least six {6) months prior to the expiration of the Contract. 1t is understood the term of this Contract
does not bind any successors to the City Council beyond June 30, 2017, and that any continuation of this
Contract is subject to approval of the incoming City Council, with members who will take office July 1,
2017.

6.01 All Notices for the OWNER shall go to:
City of Picayune
203 Goodyear Boulevard
Picayune, MS 39466
Attention: City Manager

All Notices for the CONTRACTOR shall go to:

Progressive Waste Solutions of LA, Inc.
310 Howze Beach Lane

Slidell, LA 70461

Attn: District Manager

With a copy to:
IES! Corporation
2301 Eagle Parkway, Suite 200
Fort Worth, TX 76177
Attn: General Counsel

6.02 Mail Notification - All notices shall be given via U. S. certified mail return receipt
requested, postage prepaid or via nationally recognized overnight carrier. The date of
the postmark of the envelope containing the notice shall be taken and conclusively
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treated as the date of the receipt by party receiving said notice provided said envelope is
correctly addressed.

SECTION 7: RATE ADJUSTMENTS

After the first two (2} years of this Contract the unit price charged to the OWNER by the CONTRACTOR
may be increased or decreased by the same percentage as the Consumer Price Index (all items) has
increased or decreased during the prior calendar year; provided, however, that no single annual CPj
increase shall exceed 5%. For purposes of this Contract, Consumer Price Index (CPl} shall mean the
Consumer Price Index, All items, All Urban Consumers, U.S. City Average, as published by the Bureau of
Labor Statistics of the Department of Labor.

The parties acknowledge that the rates herein include all applicable fees, taxes or similar assessments
incurred under federal, state and local laws, rules and ordinances (excluding sales taxes and taxes
imposed on income) (the “Fees”). The parties acknowledge and understand that the Fees may vary
from time to time, and, in the event any of such Fees are increased or additional Fees are imposed
subsequent to the effective date of this Agreement, the parties agree that the rates herein shall be
immediately increased by the amount of any such increase in Fees or additional Fees.

In the event it becomes necessary for CONTRACTOR to dispose of OWNER'’s waste at a facility other than
the Central Landfil, OWNER shall provide CONTRACTOR with at least sixty (60) days advance
notice. Thereafter, OWNER shall be responsible for any increased costs associated with the disposal of
OWNER's waste including, but not limited to, higher disposal rates and additional transportation costs.
It is understood and agreed to between the Parties, that should the Contractor no longer be able to
dump at the Central Landfill in Pear! River County, Mississippi, as a result of the intentional misconduct
of said Contractor, then, in that event, it is agreed the rates established pursuant to this Contract shall
not be increased to account for an increase in the Contractor’s performance as set out in this Contract.

7.01 Service Schedule - CONTRACTOR shall establish a schedule and maintain it as routinely as
possible so as to assure that the services described in Section 1 “Scope of Service” are
furnished. Such collection schedule shall be approved by the City Manager and shall not
provide for residential collections prior to 6:30 a.m. or later than 7:30 p.m. in residential
areas.

The following holidays may be observed by the CONTRACTOR.

New Years Day Independence Day
Christmas Day Thanksgiving Day

The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that peak periods of heavy debris will be from October 15 to February
28 for the Fall Season and April 15 to May 30 for the Spring Season. CONTRACTOR shall provide and
advertise revised collection schedules, if needed, during these peak seasons. The parties acknowledge
and agree that the peak periods of heavy debris referenced in this paragraph exclude any storm debris
arising out of a natural disaster in accordance with Section 13 hereof.

o
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Makeup days - The CONTRACTOR shall schedule a makeup day for areas with once per
week service.

Public notice shall be given to take the above holidays.

Notice for makeup days shall include a display advertisement in the weekend edition of
the Picayune Item prior to the holiday.

No collections will be made on Sunday.

Location of pick-up - City pick-ups will be within five (5} feet from the curb line and items
will not be behind fences so that such items will be accessible to the CONTRACTOR.

Route - CONTRACTOR shall establish routes and maintain until proper notification is
given of changes or unless in the event of an emergency or obstruction due to
construction.

Complaints - Any and all complaints received by the OWNER or its agents will be
forwarded to the CONTRACTOR's representative for handling. f possible, those
complaints should be handled on the date of the report or no longer than within twenty-
four {24) hours from the business day following the time of complaint. Those complaints
directed to the CONTRACTOR shall be handled in the same manner. The CONTRACTOR
shall provide a local number for complaints and a dispatcher to receive and forward to
appropriate personnel for handling.

Liguidated Damages ~ The OWNER reserves the right to self perform any work associated
with this Contract that is not performed by the CONTRACTOR within 24 hours of the
business day following the date in which it receives notice of such failure. This includes,
but is not limited to the following: repair or replacement of carts not repaired by
CONTRACTOR, pick-up of garbage missed by CONTRACTOR, pick-up of rubbish missed by
CONTRACTOR, or any other service required by the OWNER to complete the duties of the
CONTRACTOR under this Contract. The OWNER shall itemize each charge by the labor
and equipment required to complete each task. These charges shall include all overhead
and fringe benefits for labor activities and all maintenance, operation costs, parts and
tipping fees associated with equipment use. These charges, if any, shall be calculated by
the OWNER monthly and deducted from the CONTRACTOR’S monthly invoice, with a
detailed explanation of the reasons for such assessment. The OWNER shall have the sole
responsibility to determine whether Liquidated Damages are to be charged to the
CONTRACTOR, but only if CONTRACTOR fails to perform under the timeline required
herein.

SECTION 8: INDEMNITY CLAUSE

The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, save harmless, and exempt the OWNER, its officers, agents, servants
and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims, demands, damage,
costs, expenses and attorney's fees caused by any willful or negligent act or omission of the
CONTRACTOR, its officers, servants and employees in the performance of this Contract; provided,
however, that the CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for any suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims,
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demands, costs, expenses and attorney's fees arising out a willful or negligent act or omission of the
OWNER, its officers, agents, servants and employees.

SECTION 9: CONTRACTOR'S EQUIPMENT

9.01

9.02

9.03

9.04

CONTRACTOR guarantees each of its collection vehicles to be maintained in a physically
sound, clean, painted manner at all times. Containers furnished to commercial or
residential customers are to be maintained in the same manner. Sufficient spare vehicles
and containers will be available at all times to insure efficient, prompt and orderly
collection of waste provided in this Contract to the OWNER. Vehicles shall be of sound
construction and operated to minimize the risk of loss of liquids or solid waste to
minimize health and safety hazards.

Equipment is to be maintained in a reasonable, safe working condition; to be painted
uniformly with the company name, telephone number, and the number of the vehicle
printed in letters not less than five (5) inches high on each side of the vehicle; and all
vehicles shall be numbered and a record kept of the vehicles to which each number is
assigned. No advertising shall be permitted on vehicles unless said advertisement is of a
public service nature and receives prior approval from the OWNER.

Each vehicle shall be equipped with a solid cover for residential collection. Covers of
other types of vehicles may be net with mesh not greater than one and one-half (1 %)
inches or a tarpaulin, or fully enclosed metal top. Such cover shall be kept in good order
and used to cover the load going to and from the disposal point, during loading operation
or when parked if contents are likely to be scattered if not covered. Vehicles shall not be
overloaded so as to scatter refuse; however, if refuse is scattered from CONTRACTOR's
vehicles for any reason, it shall be picked up immediately. Each vehicle shall be equipped
with a fork, broom, and shovel for this purpose. Additionally, such vehicles shall be
equipped and operated according to State Law. Notwithstanding the foregoing
provisions, CONTRACTOR shall make sure that all garbage, litter or debris transported by
CONTRACTOR to Central Landfill in the Millard Community of Pearl River County,
Mississippi shall be hauled in vehicles properly covered by tarp or other similar cover.

Vehicles are to be washed on the inside and sanitized with a suitable disinfectant and
deodorant at least once a week. Also, they shall be washed on the outside and painted
or repaired as often as necessary to keep them in neat, clean and sanitary condition.

CONTRACTOR's vehicles are not to interfere with vehicular or pedestrian traffic, and
vehicles are not to be left standing on a street unattended except as made necessary by
loading operations.

The OWNER reserves the right to inspect the CONTRACTOR's equipment at any time it
desires during normal business hours of the CONTRACTOR. The OWNER will notify the
CONTRACTOR of any equipment that it determines is in unsatisfactory condition.

The CONTRACTOR is required to make sure that the employees working under this
contract shall be neat in appearance and be required to wear a clean uniform bearing the

8
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company's name and employee's name. This requirement will only be required for
employees who have completed the normal hiring and training probation period by the
CONTRACTOR.

SECTION 10: OFFICE

The CONTRACTOR shall provide for an office area which shall be open for business each working day
from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Such office shall not be required to be located within the City.

10.01 Telephone Equipment - The CONTRACTOR shall provide adequate telephone service for
communication by the public. A minimum of two telephone lines will be located in the
general office by the CONTRACTOR. The telephone located in the office shall be manned
during all normal working hours and listed in the local directory. All telephone lines will
be local or toll free listings.

SECTION 11: CUSTOMER COUNT

A joint count of units for collection shall be done by a representative of the OWNER and CONTRACTOR
prior to beginning the service and on or before each anniversary date thereafter, unless an annexation
occurs in accordance with Section 18.D. hereof. The payment to CONTRACTOR for the first year of the
Contract shall be based upon the joint count occurring prior to the start of service under this Contract.
On or before each anniversary date of this Contract, the parties shall conduct another joint count of
units in the City, the sum of which shall be used for the purposes of payment hereunder for the next
year of this Contract. However, in the event an annexation occurs in accordance with Section 18.D.
hereof, the parties shall immediately conduct a new joint count of units, which shall be used for
payment purposes going forward, until the next joint count is scheduled to occur.

SECTION 12: INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall at all times during the Contract maintain in full force and effect employer's
liability, workmen's compensation, public liability and property damage insurance, including contractual
liability coverage for indemnity provided in Section 8.00. All insurance shall be by an insurer or insurers
qualified to do business in the State of Mississippi and shall be in limits hereinafter set out and, where
appropriate, will contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the OWNER. Upon execution of this
Contract, and at all times while it remains in force, the CONTRACTOR shal! furnish the OWNER with
certificate evidencing to the OWNER that such insurance is in force.

12.01 The CONTRACTOR shall carry the following types of insurance in at least the limits
specified below:

Coverage Limits of Liability

Workers Compensation Statutory

Employer's Liability $500,000

Bodily Injury Liability $500,000 each occurrence
except automobile $500,000 aggregate

Property Damage Liability $500,000 each occurrence
except automobile $500,000 aggregate

T
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Automobile Bodily Injury $500,000 each person
Liability $500,000 each occurrence
Excess Umbrella Liability $500,000 each occurrence

12.02 In all policies, except workers compensation, the OWNER shall be named as an additional
insured at no cost to the OWNER, to the extent of liability of the CONTRACTOR under this
Contract.

12.03 Should the CONTRACTOR fail to provide or maintain any of the above listed insurance
items in the amount shown, the OWNER, at the OWNER's sole discretion, may secure the
same and claim such amount against any sum due to the CONTRACTOR under this
Contract.

12.04 Workers Compensation Insurance - CONTRACTOR will provide and maintain during the
life of this Contract workmen's compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of
the State of Mississippi and a certificate thereof shall be filed with the City Clerk, City of
Picayune by the insurance carrier showing such insurance to be in full force at all times.

SECTION 13: FORCE MAJEURE

From and after the Effective Date, CONTRACTOR's performance hereunder may be suspended and its
obligations hereunder excused in the event and during the period that such performance is prevented
by a natural disaster as defined or declared by appropriate State or Federal agencies or a cause or
causes beyond the reasonable control of CONTRACTOR. The performance of this Contract will be
suspended and the obligations hereunder excused only until the condition preventing performance is
remedied. Such conditions shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God, acts of war, accident,
explosion, fire, flood, riot, sabotage, acts of terrorists, unusually severe weather, lack of adequate fuel,
or judicial or governmental laws or regulations within the southeast region of Louisiana and the
southwest region of Mississippi. In the event of a natural disaster occurring, the collection of additional
volumes of yard waste/debris generated by such natural disaster is not included in the rates set forth in
this Contract. In the event the OWNER is impacted by such natural disaster, the CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to additional compensation for the collection and disposal of such waste if not removed by a
separate person or entity pursuant to a separate contract. CONTRACTOR is expected to resume normal
collection as soon as possible following the occurrence of a natural disaster.

SECTION 14: COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW

The CONTRACTOR shall conduct operations under this Contract in compliance with all applicable laws;
provided, however, the terms and conditions of this Contract shall govern the CONTRACTOR where
there exist any conflicting ordinances of the OWNER on the subject.

Any waiver of any breach of covenants herein contained to be kept and performed by the CONTRACTOR
shall not be deemed or considered as a continuing waiver, and shall not operate to bar or prevent the
OWNER from declaring a forfeiture for any succeeding breach either of the same condition or covenant
or otherwise.

SECTION 15: DISCONTINUED SERVICE AND OTHER BREACH OF THE CONTRACT

10
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A. If the CONTRACTOR fails to provide the refuse services required by this agreement for a
period in excess of five (5) consecutive, scheduled working days, the OWNER may take any
of the following actions:

1. Deduct any and all operating expenses incurred by the OWNER from any money
then due or to become due the CONTRACTOR and collect the amount due, either
from the CONTRACTOR or surety.

2. If CONTRACTOR is unable, for any cause, to resume performance at the end of 30
days, all liability of the OWNER to the CONTRACTOR, excluding liability for payments
owed to CONTRACTOR for services rendered, under this agreement shall cease and
the OWNER shall be free to negotiate with other contractors for the operation of
said refuse service and/or take the actions provided below for bankruptcy, default,
breach of agreement.

B. In the event the CONTRACTOR shall be adjudged bankrupt, either by voluntary or
involuntary proceedings, then this Contract shall immediately terminate and in no event
shall this Contract be, or be treated as, an asset of CONTRACTOR after adjudication of
bankruptcy. If CONTRACTOR shall be proven insolvent, or fail in business, this Contract may
be terminated at the option of the OWNER.

SECTION 16: TERMINATION

Except as otherwise provided herein, if either party breaches this Agreement or defaults in the
performance of any of the covenants or conditions contained herein for fifteen (15) days after the other
party has given the party breaching or defaulting written notice of such breach or default, unless a
longer period of time is required to cure such breach or default and the party breaching or defaulting
shall have commenced to cure such breach or default within said period and pursues diligently to the
completion thereof, except in the event of non-payment, the other party may: (a) terminate this
Agreement as of any date which the said other party may select provided said date is at least thirty (30)
days after the fifteen (15) days in which to cure or commence curing; {b) cure the breach or default at
the expense of the breaching or defaulting party; and/or (c) have recourse to any other right or remedy
to which it may be entitled by law. In the event either party waives default by the other party, such
waiver shall not be construed or determined to be a continuing waiver of the same or any subsequent
breach or default. Neither party shall be liable to the other party for any special, consequential,
incidental or punitive damages, each of which is expressly waived.

SECTION 17: ASSIGNABILITY OF CONTRACT

No assignment of this Contract or any right occurring under this Contract shall be made in whole or in
part by the CONTRACTOR, without the express prior written consent of the OWNER, which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; provided, however, that the CONTRACTOR may
assign this Contract to any direct or indirect affiliate or subsidiary of the CONTRACTOR without the
OWNER's consent.

11
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SECTION 18: ANNEXED AREAS OR NEW DEVELOPMENT

A. The CONTRACTOR shall within thirty (30) days of notification by the OWNER provide refuse
service of the same frequency and quality as provided to other areas of the OWNER to
newly annexed areas.

B. As new homes are constructed and occupied within the corporate limits, the CONTRACTOR
shall after proper notification by the OWNER provide refuse service as required by the
Contract on the next scheduled day of collection following notification.

C. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for notifying the OWNER of all collection locations
being serviced, which do not appear on the billing register. Such notification shall be
required for the CONTRACTOR to receive payment for the collection services rendered to
that location. Failure of the CONTRACTOR to notify the OWNER shall remove any obligation
on the part of the OWNER to pay the CONTRACTOR any monies for services rendered at
those locations for which proper notification has not been made.

D. The method of payment shall be based on a house count by an employee of the OWNER and
a representative of the CONTRACTOR. All houses not vacant shall be counted and all
businesses using curbside pickup under this Contract shall be counted. The count shall be
increased whenever an annexation requires it and shall be redone at annual intervals.

SECTION 19: SAVINGS PROVISION

In the event that any term or provision of this Contract shall be determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, this Contract shall, to the extent reasonably possible, remain
in force as to the balance of its terms and provisions as if such invalid term or provision were not a part
hereof.

Section 20: Governing Law

This Contract shall be governed in all respects, including as to validity, interpretation and effect, by the
internal laws of the State of Mississippi, without giving effect to the conflict of laws rules thereof. The
parties hereby irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Mississippi and the
Federal courts of the United States located in the State of Mississippi, solely in respect of the
interpretation and enforcement of the provisions of this Contract, and hereby waive, and agree not to
assert, as a defense in any action, suit or proceeding for the interpretation or enforcement hereof, that
it is not subject thereto or that such action, suit or proceeding may not be brought or is not
maintainable in said courts or that the venue thereof may not be appropriate or that this Contract may
be enforced in or by said courts, and the parties hereto irrevocably agree that all claims with respect to
such action or proceeding shall be heard and determined in such a Mississippi State or Federal court.
The parties hereby consent to and grant any such court jurisdiction over the person of such parties and
over the subject matter of any such dispute and agree that mailing of process or other papers in
connection with any such action or proceeding to the addresses of the parties listed below, or in such
other manner as may be permitted by law, shall be valid and sufficient service thereof.

12
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their duly
authorized officials, this Contract in three (3) counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original

on the date first above written,

THE CITY OF PICAYUNE (OWNER}):

BY:

Name: Ed Pinero

Title: Mayor

ATTEST:

BY:

Amber Hinton, City Clerk

PROGRESSIVE WASTE SOLUTIONS OF LA, INC. (CONTRACTOR):

BY:

Name: John Gustafson

Title: Vice President

WITNESS:

13

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE REQUEST TO REJECT ALL BIDS FOR THE 2013 CAST IRON
REPLACEMENT PROJECT

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Valente to reject all bids for the 2013 Cast Iron Replacement Project.
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens and
Breland

VOTING NAY: Council Member Gouguet

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE REQUEST TO RE-ADVERTISE BIDS FOR THE 2013 CAST IRON
REPLACEMENT PROJECT

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to re-advertise bids for the 2013 Cast Iron Replacement Project.

City Attorney Nathan Farmer advised Mayor and Council to reject all bids submitted on
the system wide Cast Iron Gas Main Replacement Project due to the fact the City would
desire to materially change the scope of work for the City wide gas project by enlarging
the scope of work for the subject gas project to add an additional project. The reasons
for this recommendation is the competitive nature of the submitted bids for the smaller
gas project and the necessity to expand the gas project to add an additional project.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens and
Breland

VOTING NAY: Council Member Gouguet

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE REQUEST TO APPLY FOR THE FISKARS 2014 PROJECT ORANGE
THUMB GRANT

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to approve the request to apply for the Fiskars 2014 Project Orange Thumb
Grant.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE REQUEST TO APPLY FOR THE TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVE
PROGRAM (TAP) GRANT
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Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to approve the request to apply for the Transportation Alternative Program
(TAP) Grant through Mississippi Department of Transportation to include the following
projects; South Side Elementary Sidewalk Project, Roseland Park Sidewalk Project and
improvements to the former Crosby Hospital site and authorize Mayor’s signature on all
related documents.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

ACCEPT LOWEST AND BEST BID ON THE NEW PALESTINE CEMETERY
EXPANSION PROJECT

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Stevens, to accept the lowest and best bid from Huey Stockstill, Inc. for the New
Palestine Cemetery Expansion Project.
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City of Picayune
New Palestine Cemetery Expansion
Peartl River County, MS
December 12, 2013 - 1:30 PM

Certified Bid Tabulation

Huey Stockstill, Ing. Hensley R. Lee Conyracting, Inc. T.L Wallace Construction, In¢.
 Unit Cost 17 CAmount: URIE Gt | Aot Unit GOt - Amounti:

1.200.00

1,200.00

$ 4100001 S 4100001 3 2588001 S 2588001 S 4800001 § 48006018 S

S 23801 8 480.00: S 49819 9880, S 250018 500.001 8 200018 4€0.00

S 10001 S 4580001 62318 27i628 1% 300} ¢ 218000 | $ 78019 3.4C0.80
B 1s 18991 S 132000 (S 74718 $2280: 8 i8301 S 1.285.00 1S 20601 S 140020

s 4300: S 2530400 € 880 1 & 43226401 8 £2.001 % 4885200 (S 83001 S $3.820.00

S S 5608.00 | S 46951 S 4.507.201 § 510018 4898003 48001 $ 4.808.00

Amournt: ‘- UnitGost i -Amounts i I Unit Cost ‘Amoun!

s 283018 2108000 $ 253415 20.525.4Q 25.2 3 20.412.00 28.82 $ 23.344.20

$ 23500018 $.400.00 © S 28787518 10.707.08 2530 s 10.520.00 3352.25 $ 13.409.00

$__85030:8 $70000 18 §52.78 1S 1.188.88 1169 3 2,209.0¢ 211 $ 4.822.60
el Bench $_ 850001 8 1300001 § $ 12100018 2.420.00 S
3 3 S

3984 S 13.308.58

581 X 050,
As s 77777 % s 050, ] 7995
§ s 123,425.00 128,663.50

Mﬁobn:wﬁ Driveway - 6" Thick

Attemate "B Bid Total: § $

Total Bid:| §

3 88,751,.24

CERTIFIED CORRECT 8Y:

/7
U g

Vernon Moore, 8.5,

Pagelofi

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland

and Gouguet
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers

The following roll call was made:
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

VOTING NAY: None
AWARD LOWEST AND BEST BID ON THE TRANSPORTATION ENCHANCEMENT

PROJECT
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Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member

Breland to award the lowest and best bidder, Webster Electric Company, Inc., on the

Transportation Enhancement Project.

DUNGAN

City of Picayune

Historic Imp.

Federal Aid Project No. STP-0400-00(028) LPA/106442-701000
Pearf River County, MS

Certified Bid Tabulation

December 12, 2013 - 2:30 PM

Enginesr: Waebster Electric Company, inc.
202-8005 {REMOVAL OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT, ALL DEPTHS SY. 28 s 15.00] $ 300.00i $ 25.00: 8 5006.00 12.85| $ 259.00
202-B024 |REMOVAL OF CONCRETE MEDIAN AND ISLAND, ALL DEPTHS SY 12 $ 20.00) & 240001 $ 110.00¢ § 1,320.00 12851 % 155.40
202-8035 _ |REMOVAL CF CONCRETE SIDEWALKS SY 24 S 20.001 S 480.001 S 40.00i S 960.00 12951 S 31080
202-8098 {REMOVAL OF EXISTING LIGHT & FOUNDATION EA 3 $ 500001 S 3.600.001 S 60G.001 § 3.600.00 259.00} § 1,554.00
503-C007  {SAW CUT. FULL DEPTH LF 360 $ 15001 § 5.400.00] $ 33.001 8 4.680.001 8 5188 1.864.80
608-A001 [CONCRETE SIDEWALK WITHOUT REINFORCEMENT SY 22 $ 40.001 $ $80.00] § 190.001 $ 418000 S 51801 8 1,139.60
616-A004 |ICONCRETE MEDIAN AND/OR ISLAND PAVEMENT, 12" THICK SY 12 $ 100.60 § 1.200.00] 8§ 17000} § 204000 8 77701 $ $32.40
618-4001 | MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC LS 1 3 500060 $ 5000001 § $,000.00{ $ 9,000.00} S, 10,360,001 S 10.350.00
618-B001  |ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION SIGNS SF 1 $ 10.001 § 10.00{ § 1000 $ 1000} § 10.001 10.00
B20-A001_ |MOBILIZATION S 1 3. 10000001 $ 10,600.00{ S 11.000.001 8 11.060.00 § 22,662,504 $ 22.662.50
907-258-£001 [TRASH RECEPTACLE EA 3 S 650.601 § 850.001 $ 600.001 $ 60000 S 704.48| S 704 .48
907-258-1002 | SIGN, SYREET EA 1 $ 1000001 § 1000001 S 2.000.00] § 2000.00{ $ 660.45| $ 6€0.45
807-258-J001 IMETAL BENCH EA 1 $ 880.00} S 660.001 § 600.001 S 800001 S £69.521 S §69.52
UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG
682-8010 |10, 3 CONDUCTOR LF 300 S 1600} § 4,800.00] S 10401 $ 3,120.00} S 14258 S 4,275.00
UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT. JACKED OR BORED, AWG .
682-8011 __ |10, 4 CONDUCTOR LF 420 s 16.00] 8 8.720.001 S 10.80{ $ 4.578.00( 8 1425] § 5.985.00
UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG
§82-8032  |6. 4 CONDUCTOR LF 1066 $ 18.00( S 18.000.00} S 12701 8 12,700.001 & 16.841 § 16.840.00

Certification this 2 true and correct tabulation of bids for the City of Picayune, received by the Mayor and City Council on December 12, 2013 at 2:30 pm at which time said bids were opened and read aloud.

Uil

Vemon Moore, P.E.

Page 10f8
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DUNGAN City of Picayune
- Dy Historic Impr
Federai Aid Project No. STP-0400-00(026} LPA/106442-701000

Peari River County, MS
December 12, 2013 - 2:30 PM

Certified Bid Tabulation
Englneer's Estimats ‘Webster Electric Company, Inc.
: 13 £ PA/0BE42:701000

UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG
682-8036 __|3. 3 CONDUCTOR iF 1800 |$ 16.00] 5 2560000/ § 11.00{ § 17,600.00| S 14.25] § 22.300.80

UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG
§82:8037 _ 15, 4 CONDUCTOR LF 220 |s 17.001 § 3740.00| i1.50] S 2530.00| § 15.541 S 3.418.80

UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG
682-8048 _|3. 4 CONDUCTOR LF a1 210018 6.300.00| § 14501 § 4250.00( S 18431 8 5.439.00
682-£001_ {UNDERGROUND JUNCTION 80X EA 18 $ 400001 § 7,200.00( § 700001 $ 42600001 S 971.25} § 17.482.50
682-£002 _ISTRUCTURE MOUNTED JUNCTION BOX £A 2 $ 750.00] § 1.500.00| § 300001 S 600.001 S 971.25] 1.942.50
207-682-F002 |SECONDARY POWER CONTROLLER. AS PER PLANS EA 2 3 2.500.001 § 5000001 5 7.400.00] 3 14,800.001 § 10.380.00 § 20,720.00
907-683-PPO0T{LIGHTING ASSEMBLY, LOW MAST, AS PER PLANS EA 12 s 2,500.00} § 30.000.00 § 3.27000( § 39.240.00| § 4,662,001 § 55.944.00
907-683-PPO01|LIGHTING ASSEMBLY. LOW MAST. AS PER PLANS EA 6 s 350000} S 21,000.00{ § 7250001 § 43,500.00| § 971250} § 53,275.00

ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 1
907-403-A011 |HOT MiX ASPHALT, ST, 12,5-MM MIXTURE M TON _ 5 s 200001 § 1,000.001 $ 40000 'S 2,000.001 S 226.63] § 1.133.15
ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 2
I

907-403-M0O3 [WARM MIX ASPHALT, ST, 12.5-MM MIXTURE _ ToN_ i 5 s 40000} § 200000} S 22663} S 113335
TOTAL WITH ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 1: 198,108:00 285553790
TOTAL WITH ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 2: $7. 198408100 s 255:537.80

Certification this a true and comect tabulation of bids for the City of Picayune, received by the Mayor and City Council on December 12, 2013 at 2:30 pm at which time said bids were opened and read aloud.

Tows Wt ar

Vernon Moore, P.E. Page 2 of &
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DUNGAN

Certification this a true and correct tabutation of bids for the City of Picayune, received by the Mayor and City Council on December 12, 2013 at 2:30 pm at which time said bids were opened and read aloud.

Ubnia WPl

City of Picayune

D Historic

0

Federat Aid Project No. STP-0400-00(028) LPA/106442-701000

Pearl River County, MS
December 12, 2013 - 2:30 PM

Certified Bid Tabulation

Engineer's Estimate

Webster Ejectric Company, inc.

ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 3

Vernon Moore, P.E.

202-8035 |REMOVAL OF CONCRETE SIDEWALKS sy 8 2000 s 166.00 40.00 32000 12.95 103,60
503-C007 _ISAW CUT, FULL DEPTH e 80 1500 s 120000 13.00 1,040.00 518 413,40
608-A001__|CONCRETE SIDEWALK WITHOUT REINFORCEMENT sy s 4000]s 320,00 180.00 1.520.00 51.80 414,40
UNDERGROUND BRANGH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG
682-8010 |10, 3 CONDUCTOR iF 140 16.00) 224000 10.40 1.456.00 14.25 1.995.00
UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRGUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG
6828036 |8, 3 CONDUCTOR ¥ 400 17001 s 6.800.00 11,00 4.400.00 1425 5760.00
| _682-6001 _|UNDERGROUND JUNCTION BOX A 4 40000} 5 1.600.00 700.00 2,800.00 97125 3,885.00
1907-683.PPOC1|LIGHTING ASSEMBLY, LOW MAST. AS PER PLANS €A s 2500001 5 10.00060 3270.00 1308000 4,652.00 18.648.00
ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 3 TOTAL: s 2232000 24,616.00
AA NUMBER 3: 1 0 22372400
TOTAL WITH ALTERNATE GRLOUP AA NUMBER 2 AND QBC_N- AA NUMBER 3: o ﬁﬂ"&.&

Page 3 of 8
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Federal Aid Project No. STP-0400-00(028) LPA/106442-701000
Enginacring. A Peari River County, MS
R tcadl December 12, 2013 - 2:30 PM

DUNGAN City of Picayune 1 %‘:
' D Historic Impr “To OH O
MISSISSIPPY

Certified Bid Tabulation

Simmons Erosion Control, Inc. Twin L Construction. in¢.

202-8005 |REMOVAL OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT. ALL DEPTHS sY 20 S 250018 500.00 $ 20001 S 400.00| § 300.00( § 6.000.00

202-B024 {REMOVAL OF CONCRETE MEDIAN AND ISLAND, ALL DEPTHS SY 12 $ 26001 $ 300.00{ § 25.001S 300.00| § 300.00| § 3:600.00

202-8035 [REMOVAL OF CONCRETE SIDEWALKS sY 24 S 250018 600.00( § 25001 S 600.00 $ 300.00{ $ 7.200.00

202-8099  |REMOVAL OF EXISTING LIGHT & FOUNDATION EA [ $ 50000 $ 3,000.00{ § 400.00} 3 2400001 § 1,125.001 $ §.750.00

503-C007__|SAW CUT, FULL DEPTH LF 360 $ 1500) § 5400.00{ § 2000} S 7,200,001 S 1525} S 5.480.00

608-A001___ICONCRETE SIDEWALK WITHOUT REINFORCEMENT sY 22 s 76.00] § 1650001 $ 90.00) § 1.960.001 $ 685.00| § 15.070.00

616-A004 |CONCRETE MEDIAN AND/OR ISLAND PAVEMENT, 127 THICK sY 12 S 125.00] $ 1.500.001 S 208.00| § 2496.00| $ 705.06] $ 8.480.00

£18-A001 IMAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC Ls 1 s 6.000.00 $ 6000001 5 1830000 § 18,300.00| S 10,700.00( 10.700.00

618-8001 |ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION SIGNS K 1 s 1000 § 10001 § 1000 S 10.00] § 1000| S 10.00

| 620-A001 |MOBILIZATION LS 1 s 34,000.00} $ 34000001 $ 25.000.00( $ 25,000,001 $ 3500001 3.500.00

907-258-£001 | TRASH RECEPTACLE EA 1 $ 70000 700.00{ § 611.00( S 611.00} § 1.000.001 $ 1.000.00

907-258-1002 | SIGN, STREET EA 1 $ 3.000.00| $ 3000001 § 125000 § 1,250.001 $ 2200.001 § 2,200.60

807-258-4001 [METAL BENCH EA 1 $ 600.00( 3 800.001 $ 730.00{ $ 730.00] $ 1,000.00{ § 1.000.00
UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG

682-B010 |16, 3 CONDUCTCR 53 300 $ 2000( s £.000.001 $ 13821 S 4,176.00] § 18501 § 5.550.00
. JUNDERGROUND BRANCH GIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG

682-8011 __{10, ¢ CONDUCTOR i 420 S 2000( S 8.400.00] § 14001 S 588000 $ 18.061 § 7.980.00
UNDERGROUND BRANCH GIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG

682-8032 {6, 4 CONDUCTOR LF 1006 1S 20.00( $ 20,000.001 § 16.50] § 16.500.00( § 19501 § 19.500.00

Certification this a true and correct tabulation of bids for the City of Picayune, received by the Mayor and City Council on December 12, 2013 at 2:30 pm at which time said bids were opened and read aloud.

-

Vernon Moore, P.E. Page4 of 6
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BUNGAN City of Picayune

' D Historic imp.
Federal Aid Project No. STP-0400-00(028) LPA/$06442-701000
£nainceting, 9 Peari River County, MS
Cominy i December 12, 2013 - 2:30 PM
Certified Bid Tabulation
T ]
Simmeons Erosion Control, Inc, i
, PA/{O6442-7011
UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG
682-B036 {8, 3 CONDUCTOR LF 1600 $ 25000 S 40,000.001 $ 14001 S 22,400.00% § 18.501 S 28,600.00
UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG
682-8037 18, 4 CONDUCTOR LF 220 $ 25061 S 5.500.001 § 1850] S 34100018 20.50| § 4.510.00
UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG
682-5043 {3, 4 CONDUCTOR LF 309 $ 2500¢ § 7,500.001 § 19.00| § 5700001 § 2250| % 6.750.00
682-£601 1UNDERGRCUND JUNCTION BOX EA 18 $ 1,000001 S 18.000.001 $ 960.00| § 17280001 $ 536.00] & 8.540.00
682-£002  |STRUCTURE MOUNTED JUNCTION BOX EA 2 § 500.00} § 1.000.00¢ $ 949.00( S 1888001 S 3,500.001 S 7,000.00
907-682-F002 {SECONDARY POWER CONTROLLER, AS PER PLANS EA 2 $ 9,500.00! § 19,000.00 S 30,120.001 20,240.00| $ 2,300.00{ $ 4,600.00
807-683-PPO01]LIGHTING ASSEMBLY. LOW MAST, AS PER PLANS EA 12 S 3,300.001 § 39.600.00] 4,554.001 § 54.648.00| $ 2,300.00] § 27.660.00
907-683-PPOCHLIGHTING ASSEMBLY. LOW MAST. AS PER PLANS EA 8 $ 7.50000] § 45,000,600} § 9,488,001 $ 56.828.00| § 8,000.001 36,000.00
ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 1
| o |
807-403-A0%1 MT_OM MIX ASPHALT. ST, 12.5-MM MIXTURE | __TON 5 $ 600.00; § 3.000.00} S 500.00% $ 2500001 S 800.00} § 3.008.00
ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 2
907-403-14003 M;’Smg MiX ASPHALT. ST. 12.5-MM MIXTURE _ TON W 5 s
TOTAL WITH ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 1.
TOTAL WITH ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 2:

Certification this a true and correct tabuiation of bids for the City of Picayune, received by the Mayor and City Council on December 12, 2013 at 2:30 pm at which time said bids were opened and read aloud.

Vst Hht

Vernon Moore, P.E, Page50of &
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DUNGAN

bE

ngineuiog. A

SomseiaTasasia

City of Picayune
D Historic Imp

Federal Aid Project No. STP-0400-00(028) LPA/106442-701000
Pear! River County, MS
December 12, 2013 - 2:30 PM

Certified Bid Tabulation

Simmons Eresion Control, Inc.

ALTERNATE GROUP A NUMBER 3

202-B035 [REMOVAL OF GONCRETE SIDEWALKS SY 8 S 250018 200.00 25001 S 200.00 30000 S 2.400.00

503-C007 _[SAW CUT. FULL DEPTH iF 80 $ 1400 § 1,120.00 20081 8 1.500.00 15261 8 1,220.00

808-A001 |CONCRETE SIDEWALK WITHOUT REINFORCEMENT sY 8 S 750018 500.60 9008} $ 720,08 685.00 | S 5.480.00
UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED. AWG

682-8010 {10, 3 CONDUCTOR LF 140 S 250018 3.500.00 14001 S 1.860.00 18501 & 2.580.08
UNDERGROUND BRANCH CIRCUIT, JACKED OR BORED, AWG

882-B036 16, 3 CONDUCTOR LF 400 3 25001 § 10.000.00 14001 S 5.600.06 7.400.00

£82-E001 [UNDERGROUND JUNCTION BOX EA 4 $ 1000001 $ 4.000.00 950001 S 3.800.00 2,120.00

907-683-PP001|LIGHTING ASSEMBLY. LOW MAST, AS PER PLANS EA 4 $ 3.300.00% S 13.200.60 4554001 % 18.216.00 $.200.00

ALTERNATE GROUP AA NUMBER 3 TOTAL: S we ,ﬁo 00

TOTAL WITH ALTERNATE GRELQUP AA NUMBER 1 AND Group AA NUMBER 3:

TOTAL WITH ALTERNATE GRLOUP AA NUMBER 2 AND Groy,

* . Submitted Stripped Proposat, Was tregular and Rejected

Certification this a true and carrect tabufation of bids for the City of Picayune, received by the Mayor and City Council on December 12, 2013 at 2:30 pm at which fime said bids were opened and read aloud.

Lok

Vernon Moore, P.E.

Page 6 0f6

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland

and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers

ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE OUT OF STATE TRAVEL FOR CAPT. CONSTANCE MYERS
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Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to approve out of state travel for Capt. Constance Myers to attend Internal
Affairs Training at the Slidell, LA Police Academy February 10-13, 2014.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

AUTHORIZE OUT OF STATE TRAVEL FOR FIRE CHIEF KEITH BROWN

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Valente to authorize out of state travel for Fire Chief Keith Brown to attend “SE
Association of Fire Chief’ board meeting in Birmingham, AL January 8-11, 2014 with
SEAFC paying all costs.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

AUTHORIZE OUT OF STATE TRAVEL FOR FIRE CHIEF KEITH BROWN

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Valente to authorize out of state travel for Fire Chief Keith Brown to attend “International
Association of Fire Chiefs” board meeting in Fairfax, VA January 22-24, 2014 with IAFC
paying all costs.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

ACCEPT A DONATION CHECK FROM FRED’S SUPER DOLLAR

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to accept a donation check form Fred’s Super Dollar in the amount of $154.06
for the Fire Department to use for buying handouts for senior citizens and children.
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE T-HANGAR LEASE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF
PICAYUNE AND CALVIN D COOTER

Motion was made by Council Member Valente, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to approve T-Hangar Lease Agreement by and between the City of Picayune
and Mr. Calvin D. Cooter.
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER

T-HANGAR LEASE AGREEMENT

This T-Hangar Lease Agreement made and entered into this, the January
7, 2014 by and between the City of Picayune, hereinafter referred to as “Lessor”

and the Calvin D. Cooter hereinafter referred to as the “Lessee”,
WITNESSETH:
For and in consideration of the rents, covenants and agreements

hereinafter-contained Lessor does hereby rent and lease unto Lessee the

following:

1. PREMISES

Lessor does hereby lease and let to Lessee T-Hangar No. J-5 located at
the Picayune Municipal Airport, Picayune, Mississippi, together with reasonably
necessary rights of access across Lessor's adjoining areas. Lessee has

inspected the T-Hangar and accepts the T-Hangar in its present condition.
2. TERMS

The term of this Agreement shall be Yearly, with the term to begin on
January 7, 2014 and continue thereafter yearly until either party gives notice of
termination or default by Lessee. Either party may terminate this Agreement by
giving thirty (30) days written notice to the other party of its intent to terminate

this Agreement, regardless of breach or compliance of either party.

3. RENT

Lessee shall pay, as rent for the use of the described Hangar, the amount
of $250.00 per month plus a $250.00 hangar deposit fee is due at the inception
of this contract. Said rent shall be payable by mail to the Picayune Municipal
Airport, 203 Goodyear Blvd, Picayune, Mississippi 39466, or by personal delivery

Page | of 6



REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 7, 2014

to the Picayune Municipal Airport office at 148 Runway Road, Picayune,
Mississippi. Lessor may change the rent from time-to-time by giving the Lessee
a thirty-days written notice.

4. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Lessor shall be responsible for timely repairs, replacements and
maintenance of the building structure, foundation, exterior walls, and roof.
Lessee shall be responsible and liable for any damage to the hangar caused by
Lessee’s use of the hangar, including but not limited to, bent or broken interior
walls, damage to floors due to fuel and oil spillage, door damage due to the
Lessee’s improper or negligent operation. Lessee shall make no alterations,
modifications or additions to the hangar without the prior written permission of

Lessor.

5. USE OF PREMISES

The hangar whereby leased shall be used only for the storage of aircraft
owned or leased by Lessee. No maintenance of the stored aircraft shall be
conducted in the Hangar except such minor maintenance as would normally be
performed by an aircraft owner without the benefit of an aircraft mechanic.
Lessee further agrees that no commercial aviation activities shall be conducted
at the Picayune Municipal Airport without the express written permission of the
Lessor. Commercial Aviation activities include, but are not limited to aircraft
rental, charter, aircraft leasing, flight instruction, aerial survey and aerial
photography, etc. The storage of fuel or other flammable materials in the Hangar
is strictly prohibited. The Lessee shall not engage in any illegal activity and shall
abide by all Federal, State, and FAA regulations and the City of Picayune Airport
Minimum Standards and Rules and Regulations.

Page 2 of 6
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6. INDEMNIFICATION

Lessee shall keep, protect and save harmless, Lessor from any loss, cost,
claim, judgment or expense of any sort or nature, and from any liability to any
person, on account of any injury, damage or death to any person, or property
arising out of any use of the leased premises by Lessee, its agents, or any other

party or person acting under the direction or control of Lessee.
7. INSPECTION

The Lessor may enter the leased Hangar at reasonable times to inspect
the premises.
8. SECURITY

Lessee agrees to abide by and cooperate with Lessor in the enforcement
and implementation of all airport security regulations. Security of the Hangar
shall be the responsibility of Lessee. Lessee agrees to provide Lessor with a key
to any lock or locking device used to secure the Hangar. Lessor agrees that the
key will be used only in case of emergency or for inspection of the premises.
9. UTILITIES

Lessor shall pay electrical utility. Lessee shall use light fixtures for its
intended purpose only and shall not alter the existing electrical facilities. Lessee
shall not operate any air conditioners, refrigerators, large heaters, or other similar
appliances.  Outlets, when available, may be used only for operation of
droplights, small hand tools, etc. No permitted electrical appliances or other
electrical devices shall be connected into the outlet when the Lessee is not

present. Lessee will provide basic water and sewer services to the hangar.

10. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

Page 3 of 6



REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 7, 2014

Lessee shall not cause or permit any hazardous substances to be brought
upon, kept or used in, on or about the hangar by Lessee, its agents or invitees,
and Lessee, by execution of this Lease, covenants, warrants and represents to
Lessor that it will keep the lease premises free from any and all unlawful
contamination with hazardous substances and that it will hold Lessor harmless
from any loss or damage with respect thereto and that Lessee will be solely
responsible for any and all costs and expenses incurred for remediation in the
event the same is required. Violation of this provision shall mean immediate
termination of this Lease, which said termination, shall not relieve the Lessee

from its liability hereunder.
11. SUBLEASE/ASSIGNMENT

Lessee shall not have the right to sublet the T-Hangar leased under this
agreement, nor shall the Lessee have the right to assign this Lease without the
express written consent of the Lessor. Storage of aircraft not belonging to or
leased by the Lessee shall be construed as a sublease, and unless approved by

the Lessor, shall be grounds for termination of this Lease.

12.  DEFAULT

In the event Lessee shall default in the payment of any instaliment of rent
or other sum herein specified and such default shall continue for ten (10) days
after written notice thereof, or if Lessee shall default in the observance or
performance of any other of the Lessee’s covenants, agreements, or obligations
hereunder and such default shall not be corrected within thirty (30) days after
written notice thereof, then the Lessor shall have the right to take complete
possession of the leased premises, to declare the term of this Lease ended, and
remove any of the Lessee’s personal effects, without prejudice to any remedies

Page 4 of 6
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which might be otherwise used for arrears of tent or other default.
13. FORCE MAJEURE

In the event of a natural disaster or other unforeseen event including, but
not limited to, flooding, major wind or storm damage or fire, Lessor may, at its
option and with or without notice, terminate this Lease.
14.  INSURANCE

Lessee agrees to be responsible for maintaining liability insurance in an
amount not less than $100,000.00 during the term of this Lease. Lessee shall
deliver to Lessor an annual certificate demonstrating that insurance is paid and
copies of the insurance policy issued by the insurance company. Lessor wili be
named an insured and loss payee under the policy.
Lessee is solely responsible for maintaining insurance coverage on the contents
of the T-Hangar.
15.  SURRENDER OF PREMISES

Upon expiration of this Agreement for any reason, Lessee shall peacefully
surrender and deliver possession of the leased premises to Lessor in as good
condition and repair as at the inception of this Agreement, normal wear and tear

accepted.

16. NOTICES

Should any notices be required to be given to the respective parties, the
notice shall be given in writing by registered or certified mail at the following
addresses or at such other addresses as may be substituted by subsequent

notices to-wit:

Page 5 of 6
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As to Lessor: City Manager
203 Goodyear Blvd
Picayune, MS 39466

At to Lessee: Calvin D. Cooler
7314 English Park Way
Corrytown, TN 37721

WITNESS the signatures of the parties hereto, this the 7 __day of January, 2014.

Y
LESSOR: CITY OF PICAYU_‘NE

BY: _ZA ANAD
Ed Pinero, Mayor

Cify Clerk

7 ) A
LESSEE: _ . C,/[,( & (4( R~
WITNESS:
CZ (A_} /2)_/\,&)\,\,\&_.\‘) O U“Q)w
CI,L;L/K)CQQ/ cp»*r/\ff]ttw

Page 6 of 6

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO RECESS

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Valente to recess until Tuesday, January 21, 2014 at 5:00 pm.
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Bumpers
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

Ed Pinero, Mayor

ATTEST:

Amber Hinton, City Clerk



REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 21, 2014

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER
CITY OF PICAYUNE

Be It Remembered that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Picayune, Pearl
River County, Mississippi, met at City Hall, 203 Goodyear Blvd., in said City, Tuesday,
January 21, 2014, at 5:00 p.m. in regular session with the following officials present:
Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Lynn Bumpers Jan Stevens, Larry Breland and
Wayne Gouguet, City Manager Jim Luke and City Clerk Amber Hinton. Council Member
Tammy Valente was absent.

It Being Determined a quorum was present, the following proceedings were held.

Opening prayer was given by Father Filken, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance
led by Mayor Ed Pinero.

ORDER TO APPROVE MINUTES

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to approve the Minutes for the City of Picayune dated January 7, 2014.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MONTHLY PRIVILEGE LICENSE REPORT

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to acknowledge receipt of monthly Privilege License report for the months of
November and December 2013.
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VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland

and Gouguet
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente

The following roll call was made:
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

VOTING NAY: None
ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MONTHLY PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST REPORT
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Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to acknowledge receipt of monthly Public Records Request report for the
months of November and December 2013.

CITY OF PICAYUNE
REPORT OF PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS
NOVEMBER 2013
DATE
FILLED/
DATE PERSON REQUESTING SUBJECT MATTER DENIED ACTION
11/26/13 | PICAYUNE HOUSING #7 FINGERPRINTS 11/30/13 | APPROVED
AUTHORITY
11/26/13 | DONNA HOSCH RECORD'S CHECK 11/26/13 | APPROVED
11/26/13 | AUGUST DOANE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/26/13 | APPROVED
0360
11/26/13 | ARRIE GODWIN ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/26/13 | APPROVED
1616
11/26/13 | BRANDON BAILEY ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/26/13 | APPROVED
1530
11/26/13 | PRS, INC. ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/26/13 | APPROVED
1301
11/26/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/26/13 | APPROVED
0205
11/25/13 | UNITED STATES DISTRICT RECORD'S CHECK ON ALAN 11/25/13 | APPROVED
COURT PAUL BLACHE
11/25/13 | US DISTRICT COURT RECORD'S CHECK X 2 11/25/13 | APPROVED
11/25/13 | MANDY SOMERHALDER ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/25/13 | APPROVED
1465
11/225/13 | CITY OF PICAYUNE RECORD'S CHECK 11/22/13 | APPROVED
11/25/13 | JASMINE ALEXIS DUCRE RECORD'S CHECK 11/25/13 | APPROVED
11/22/13 | JOAN AURES ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/22/13 | APPROVED
1454
11/21/13 | UNITED STATES DISTRICT RECORD'S CHECK 11/21/13 | APPROVED
COURT
11/20/13 | FARM BUREAU ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/20/13 | APPROVED
0555
11/20/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/20/13 | APPROVED
0360
11/20/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/20/13 | APPROVED
0993
11/20/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/20/13 | APPROVED
0065
11/20/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/20/13 | APPROVED
0956
11/20/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/20/13 | APPROVED
0768
11/20/13 | PRS, INC. ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/20/13 | APPROVED
0956
11/20/13 | DANIEL SUMRALL ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/20/13 | APPROVED
1107
11/20/13 | CONNIE HINMAN ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/20/13 | APPROVED
2494
11/19/13 | BARBARA CROAS ACCIDENT REPORT# 2013-09- 11/19/13 | APPROVED
2009
11/19/13 | LAWANDA LEE JACKSON FOR | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/19/13 | APPROVED
BETTY COLE 1077
11/19/13 | NICHOLSON ARMS RECORD'S CHECK ON LASHONA | 11/19/13 | APPROVED
APARTMENTS LEWIS
11/19/13 | NANCY ODOM ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/19/13 | APPROVED
1072
11/18/13 | VIC VILLANOVA ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/18/13 | APPROVED
1140
11/15/13 | FARM BUREAU ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/15/13 | APPROVED
0054
11/15/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/15/13 | APPROVED
0351
11/15/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/15/13 | APPROVED
0698
11/15/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/15/13 | APPROVED
0504
11/15/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/15/13 | APPROVED
2320
11/15/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-04- 11/15/13 | APPROVED
2738
11/15/13 | MORRIS BART. LTD ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/15/13 | APPROVED
2124
11/15/13 | OREY FRIERSON ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/15/13 | APPROVED
0057
11/14/13 " | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/14/13 | APPROVED
0344
11/14113 | FARM BUREAU ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/14/13 | APPROVED
0151
11/14/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT #2013-10- 11/14/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 2005
11/14/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/14/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 2320
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11/14/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/14/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 0300
11/14/13 | ST TAMMANY PARISH DA RECORD'S CHECK 11/14/13 | APPROVED
11/13/13 | MICHAEL KRIEG ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/13/13 | APPROVED
0784
11/13/13 | MALLORY WHITFIELD INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/13/13 | APPROVED
2494
11/13/13 | RYAN JONES INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-09- 11/13/13 | APPROVED
1629
11/12/13 | PAUL THIBODEAUX ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/12/13 | APPROVED
0557
11/18/13 | RALPH PARKS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/18/13 | APPROVED
0956
11/12/13 | KIMBERLEE PALMER ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/12/13 | APPROVED
0803
11/12/13 | JERRY MICHEAL BABB RECORD'S CHECK 11/12/13 | APPROVED
11/12/13 | HANCOCK CO YOUTH COURT | RECORD'S CHECK X 2 11/12/13 | APPROVED
11/12/13 | NANCEY DOANE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/12/13 | APPROVED
0360
11/12/13 | CAVASIA JEANE TROTTER RECORD'S CHECK 11/12/13 | APPROVED
11/08/13 | ADVANTAGE INSURANCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/08/13 | APPROVED
2521
11/08/13 | DONALD RUSH ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/08/13 | APPROVED
0351
11/08/13 | JOYCE CUEVAS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/08/13 | APPROVED
0360
11/12/13 | F.B.Il. NICS INCIDENT REPORTS 11/12/13 | APPROVED
11/07/13 | USDC SOUTHERN DISTRICT RECORD'S CHECK X 5 11/07/13 | APPROVED
11/07/13 | JOSHUA SPARKS RECORD'S CHECK 11/07/13 | APPROVED
11/07/13 | USDC GULFPORT OFFICE RECORD'S CHECK X 5 11/07/13 | APPROVED
11/07/13 | VALERIE PACE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/07/13 | APPROVED
0853
11/06/13 | CARLA NORMAND RECORD'S CHECK 11/06/13 | APPROVED
11/06/13 | SHAD NORMAN RECORD'S CHECK 11/06/13 | APPROVED
11/05/13 | CIERRA WASHINGTON RECORD'S CHECK 11/08/13 | APPROVED
11/05/13 | DESSIE GRAY ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/05/13 | APPROVED
2335
11/05/13 | SHELL GAS STATION ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 11/05/13 | APPROVED
0150
LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- APPROVED
1692
LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- APPROVED
0621
LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-09- APPROVED
0635
11/05/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-09- 11/05/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 2014
11/05/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-09- 11/05/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 2014
11/05/13 | SAFEWAY INSURANCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/08/13 | APPROVED
COMPANY 2343
11/04/13 | KENNETH PERNELL ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/04/13 | APPROVED
2335
11/04/13 | SYLVIA EICHELBERGER ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/04/13 | APPROVED
2005
11/01/13 | CRYSTAL LAWRENCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-09- 11/01/13 | APPROVED
1862
11/01/13 | WILLIE T ABSTON LLC ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/01/13 | APPROVED
1293
11/01/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-06- 11/01/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 2141
11/01/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-07- 11/01/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 1214
11/01/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/01/13 | APPROVED
2036
11/01/13 | MIKE DONNELLY/POPEYE'S INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/01/13 | APPROVED
2334
11/01/13 | ROBERT & DEBORAH #2 RECORD'S CHECKS 11/01/13 | APPROVED
SENTILLES
11/01/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/01/13 | APPROVED
2005
11/01/13 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/01/13 | APPROVED
1927
11/01/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 11/01/13 | APPROVED
1906
CITY OF PICAYUNE
REPORT OF PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS
DECEMBER 2013
DATE
FILLED/
DATE PERSON REQUESTING SUBJECT MATTER DENIED ACTION
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12/31/13 | PICAYUNE HOUSING # 12 FINGERPRINTS 12/31/13 | APPROVED
AUTHORITY
12/30/13 | RHONDA QUIGLEY RECORD'S CHECK 12/30/13 | APPROVED
12/30/12 | USDC SOUTHERN DISTRICT RECORD'S CHECK 12/30/13 | APPROVED
12/27/13 | JEANETTE ARTHUR ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/27/13 | APPROVED
0012
12/27/13 | CAITLYN LANDRUM ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/27/13 | APPROVED
1590
12/23/13 | GRETCHEN PROCELL RECORD'S CHECK 12/23/13 | APPROVED
12/23/13 | SELMA BEVERLY ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/23/13 | APPROVED
1285
12/16/13 | MATTHEW C RAPHAEL BACKGROUND CHECK 12/16/13 | APPROVED
12/18/13 | MARY JACKSON ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/18/13 | APPROVED
1616
12/18/13 | MAX, MELYNDA & JAMES RECORD'S CHECK 12/18/13 | APPROVED
MOSELEY
12/18/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 12/18/13 | APPROVED
2243
12/18/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/18/13 | APPROVED
0360
12/18/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/18/13 | APPROVED
1072
12/18/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/18/13 | APPROVED
1071
12/18/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/18/13 | APPROVED
1872
12/18/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/18/13 | APPROVED
0012
12/18/13 | MICHAEL GIBSON ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/18/13 | APPROVED
0057
12/17/13 | KELVIN MAY ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/17/13 | APPROVED
0205
12/17/13 | MORRIS BART, LTD ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/17/13 | APPROVED
0267
12/17/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/17/13 | APPROVED
0527
12/17/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/17/13 | APPROVED
0621
12/17/13 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-09-0807 | 12/17/13 | APPROVED
12/17/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/17/13 | APPROVED
0418
12/17/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-0267 12/17/13 | APPROVED
12/17/13 | SAFEWAY INSURANCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/17/13 | APPROVED
0337
12/17/13 | PROGRESSIVE INSURANCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/17/13 | APPROVED
2214
12/17/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/17/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 0030
12/16/13 | CENTRAL MS DEPT OF INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11-1864 | 12/16/13 | APPROVED
CORRECTIONS
12/13/13 | LA PROBATIONS & PAROLE POLICE REPORT 12/13/13 | APPROVED
12/13/13 | DEVIN MITCHELL ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/13/13 | APPROVED
0300
12/13/13 | THEODORE STONE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/13/13 | APPROVED
0606
12/13/13 | JASON C LUCAS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/13/13 | APPROVED
0393
12/12/13 | SESSIONAL MARKS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/12/13 | APPROVED
2214
12/12/13 | JAMES KELLAR ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/12/13 | APPROVED
0431
12/12/13 | JOSE JAVIER TORRES RECORD'S CHECK 12/12/13 | APPROVED
12/12/13 | MICHEAL MORRISON RECORD'S CHECK 12/12/13 | APPROVED
12/12/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/12/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 0698
12/12/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/12/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 0300
12/12/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/12/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 0605
12/12/13 | MDHS CHILD SUPPORT RECORD'S CHECK 12/12/13 | APPROVED
12/12/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/12/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 0360
12/12/13 | USDC SOUTHERN DISTRICT RECORD'S CHECK X 2 12/12/13 | APPROVED
12/12/13 | INVESTIGATIVE SERVICE RECORD'S CHECK 12/12/13 | APPROVED
GROUP
12/12/13 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/12/13 | APPROVED
BUREAU 1077
12/12/13 | CRYSTAL GABALDON ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-13- 12/12/13 | APPROVED
0267
12/11/13 | ROBERT ELLIS JR ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/11/13 | APPROVED
0527
PETER CAMPBELL ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/11/13 | APPROVED
12/11/13 1530
12/09/13 | LA PROBATIONS & PAROLE POLICE REPORT 12/09/13 | APPROVED
12/09/13 | TANYA TETU ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/09/13 | APPROVED

0418
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0956

12/09/13 | MDOC COPY OF POLICE RECORD 12/09/13 | APPROVED
12/09/13 | DOUG DILLARD ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/09/13 | APPROVED
0267
12/06/13 | FARM BUREAU ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
2020
12/06/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
1069
12/06/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
1687
12/06/13 | GLORIA COLEMAN ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
0159
12/06/13 | CARR INSURANCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
2005
12/06/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
1620
12/06/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-09- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
1788
12/06/13 | HELEN KELLER ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-10- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
2005
12/06/13 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
1530
12/05/13 | PROGRESSIVE INSURANCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/05/13 | APPROVED
2027
12/06/13 | STEVEN MOFFETT ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
1560
12/06/13 | MCHARD & ASSOCIATE, ACCIDENT REPORT # 2012-04- 12/06/13 | APPROVED
P.L.L.C. 0247
12/05/13 | RUSSELL MICHAEL WALKER OUT OF THE COUNTRY 12/05/13 | APPROVED
RECORD'S CHECK
12/05/13 | JEFF MONTALBERO RECORD'S CHECK 12/05/13 | APPROVED
12/05/13 | USDC SOUTHERN DISTRICT RECORD'S CHECK 12/05/13 | APPROVED
12/05/13 | SUSAN MCKEE RECORD'S CHECK 12/05/13 | APPROVED
12/04/13 | HOMER C SMITH ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 12/04/13 | APPROVED
0012
12/04/13 | PEARL RIVER COUNTY YOUTH | RECORD'S CHECK 12/04/13 | APPROVED
COURT
12/04/13 | US DISTRICT COURT RECORD'S CHECK 12/04/13 | APPROVED
12/03/13 | GAIL WOODS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/03/13 | APPROVED
1827
12/03/13 | FREDERICK DENNY ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-08- 12/03/13 | APPROVED
0250
12/02/13 | PICAYUNE HOUSING RECORD'S CHECK ON LILLIE 12/02/13 | APPROVED
AUTHORITY WILLIAMS
12/02/13 | THERESHA HURD RECORD'S CHECK 12/02/13 | APPROVED
12/02/13 | GWENDOLYN SUE MILLER- RECORD'S CHECK 12/02/13 | APPROVED
CUZZORT
12/02/13 | NORMAN BRADLEY ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 12/02/13 | APPROVED

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland

and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente

ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

AUTHORIZE MAYOR AND COUNCIL TO TRAVEL TO WASHINGTON, D.C.

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to authorize Mayor and Council to travel to Washington, D.C. February 13-16,

2014.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland

and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
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ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE PROPOSAL FROM BUTLER SNOW TO PROVIDE GOVERNMENTAL
RELATIONS LEGAL COUNSEL SERVICE

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to approve proposal from Butler Snow to provide Governmental Relations
Legal Counsel services and authorize Mayor to sign the same.

BUTLER  ©
January 2, 2014
VIA E-MAIL lanning@vyahoo.com
Mayor Ed Pinero
City of Picayune

815 N. Beech Street
Picayune, Mississippi 39466

Re:  City of Picayune
Governmental Relations Legal Counsel

Dear Mayor Pinero:

On behalf of the firm, I want to thank the City of Picayune (“City”) for considering
Butler Snow, LLP to act as its counsel. We are honored to serve in this capacity.

Attached is our proposal to provide Governmental Relations counseling in Washington
D.C. on behalf of the City. This agreement will be effective for a one-year period beginning
February 1, 2014 through January 31, 2015.

We will bill you for our services rendered each month in the amount of $1,500 plus
expenses. Bills are payable upon receipt, but in no event later than the last day of each month in
which the statement is rendered. If there are ever any questions or comments regarding our
monthly statements, please call me, and T will be glad to discuss them.

You have the right to discharge us, and we have the right to withdraw, for any reason at
any time upon reasonable notice. If we elect to withdraw, you will take all steps necessary to
free us of any obligation to perform further, including the execution of any documents necessary
to complete our withdrawal.

In the event of our withdrawal or discharge, we will be entitled to retain any fees for
services provided before the date of our withdrawal or discharge, as well as to compensation for
the reasonable value of our services actually rendered. We also will be entitled to reimbursement
of any costs and expenses paid or incurred on your behalf up to the effective date of withdrawal
or discharge.

In the event any dispute arising out of or relating to this agreement cannot be resolved
amicably between the parties, the parties shall endeavor first to resolve any such disputes by

Micnagr D, CapLES Suite 1400
Post Office Box 6010 601.985.4412 1020 Highland Colony Parkway
Ridgeland, MS 39158-6010 michal.caples@butlersnow. com Ridgeland, MS 39157

T 601.948.5711 « F 601.985.4500 « wiww.butlersnow.com

BurrLer Sxow LLP
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Mayor Ed Pinero
January 2, 2014
Page 2

mediation under the Mediation Procedure of the CPR Institute for Dispute Resolution. Unless
the parties agree otherwise, the mediator will be selected from the CPR Panels of Distinguished
Neutrals. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this contract or the breach,
termination or validity thereof, which remains unresolved 45 days after appointment of a
mediator, shall be finally resolved by arbitration by a sole arbitrator in accordance with the CPR
Rules for Non-Administered Arbitration, and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator
may be entered by any court having jurisdiction thereof,

[ believe this letter and accompanying proposal accurately reflects our understanding as
to both the scope and the terms and conditions of our representation. If you are in agreement
with these terms, please have the Board approve it at the next meeting, sign at the bottom of this
letter and return it to us as soon as possible. If it does not, please advise me in writing as soon as
possible.

On behalf of the firm, I want to thank the City of Picayune again for selecting us to serve
as its legal counsel.

Sincerely,

MDC:aac
Enclosure

Iagree to the terms outlined above:

E g e
yﬁﬁlfjifly

Lid Pinero, Mayor
City of Picayune

18881347

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

AUTHORIZE MAYOR'’S SIGNATURE ON PROBATION SERVICES CONTRACT

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to authorize Mayor’s signature on Professional Probation Services Contract.
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI )
COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER )

CONTRACT FOR PROBATION SUPERVISION
AND REHABILITATION SERVICES

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this | day of AN UA £y
ZO_L by and between the CITY OF PICAYUNE, A MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY,
Picayune, Mississippi (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”) and PROFESSIONAL
PROBATION SERVICES, INC., A GEORGIA CORPORATION (hereinafter referred to
as “PPSI"), through the duly authorized representatives and/or agents for both the CITY
and PPSI.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City recognizes lts responsibilities to provide professional and
effective sentencing alternatives for citizenry and offenders of the community; and

WHEREAS, PPSI is uniquely qualified and experienced in providing such
comprehensive professional services and is willing to contract with the City; and

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto deem it in their respective best interest and each
will best be served by entering into said Contract for the provision by PPSI of such
probation services as ordered by the Judge of the City of Picayune Municipal Court
(hereinafter “COURT").

AGREEMENT
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual benefits

and covenants provided under the terms and conditions of this Contract, the Parties

hereto agree as follows, to-wit:

Page 1 of 10
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DESIGNATION BY THE COURT

The City shall designate PPSI as the sole private entity to coordinate, provide
and direct probation programs and services to offenders sentenced by and under the

jurisdiction of the Court.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

PPSI shall provide the sérvices and prograrﬁs for the misdemeanor offenders

placed on probation by the Court which shall include the following particulars:

A Comply with the standards and qualifications as set forth by the Court as
described by Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein.

B. Operate under the conditions as agreed to by and between PPS! and the
Court, as more fully set forth in the Specifications for Probation Services
attached hereto, and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “B”.

C. Provide such services as specifically set forth in the Specifications for
Probation Services, for referenced for the provisions of services to
offenders under the jurisdiction of the Court.

D. Meet, maintain and comply with all rehabilitation program offerings as
specified in the Specifications for Probation Services.

E. Maintain individual files for each offender participating in PPSI's
programs. The files will be maintained in a secured, locked room.

F. Provide timely and prompt reports as are, or may be required by the Court

Page 2 of 10
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during the period of the Contract, which include, but are not limited to,
statistical reports, caseload data, and other records documenting the
types of program services provided and the identity of the offenders -
receiving such services.

Provide counseling and supervision services for all persons ordered by
the Court to participate in during the period of the Contract, which include
but are not limited to, statistical reports and caseload data to assure that
PPSI is providing program services and maintaining records reflective of
good busiﬁess practice.

Make fiscal program records available within three (3) working days for
review and maintain financial records reflective of good business practice.
Bill the offender for program services provided on such forms and in such
manner to conform to acceptable business practice. The accuracy of
billing is to be confirmed by providing a copy of the services and attending
cost to the offender.

Charge each offender participating in rehabilitation programs the
reasonable cost of the program as reflected in the Specifications for
Probation Services attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
Each offender shall be charged a maximum not to exceed the program
costs as specified in the Specifications for Probation Services unless it is
approved in advance by the Court.

Submit a monthly written report to the designee(s) of the Court and City
on the amount of Cqurt fines, costs and restitution Court ordered and )
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collected from each offender. The report shall include the total doliar
amount applied to Court ordered fines, restitution, and other conviction
related costs. The monthly reports for the previous month shall be
provided to the Court and City by the fifth day of the following month.

L. Tender all Court fines, cost and restitution ordered and coliected during
the previous month from the offender to the City by the fifth day of the
following month.

M. Comply with all laws regarding confidentiality of offender records.

N.-  Furnish a fidelity bond or letter of credit in the amount of not less than one
hundred thousand ($100,000.00) dollars as surety for the satisfactory
performance of the Contract.

0. Not profit or attempt to profit from any fines, restitution, or Court cost
collected from the offenders.

PERIOD OF SERVICE

The performance of the aforementioned services shall commence on the 1% day
of February, 2014, and shall continue until 31% day of January, 2015, provided that the
Contract may be renewed by the City for additional one (1) year terms on each
anniversary date of this Contract under the same terms and conditions as provided
herein, not to extend beyond June 30, 2017.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, this Contract may be terminated
by the City at any time, with or without cause, upon sixty (60) days prior written notice of

intent to terminate delivered to PPSI. PPSI may terminate this contract at any time,
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with or without cause, upon ninety (90) days prior written notice of intent to terminate
delivered to the Court and City.

PAYMENTS FOR SERVICES

Fees for basic services are set out in the Specifications for Probation Services,
which fees are payable not by the City, but by sentenced offenders. No fees accrued
pursuant o the Specifications for Probation Services shall be obligations of the City.
The Fee Schedule referred to herein is attached hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit “C”.

DEFICIENCIES IN SERVICE

In the event the Court or City determines there are deficiencies in the service
and work provided by PPSI, the Court or City shall notify PPSI in writing as to the
precise nature of any such deficiencies. Within ten (10) working days of receipt of such
notice, PPSI shall correct or take reasonable steps to correct the deficiencies
complained of, including, if necessary, increasing the work force and/or equipment, or
modifying the policies and procedures used by PPS! in performing services pursuant to
this Contract

DISPUTES

In the event of any controversy, claim or dispute as to the services and work
performed or to be performed by PPSI, or the construction or operation of or rights and
liabilities of the parties under this Contract, each such question shall be submitied for

resoiution to the Attorney for the City or his/her appointee.
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TRANSFER OF OPERATIONS

In the event PPSI defaults for any reason in the service provided for by this
Contract, the City may, at its election and upon five (5) working days prior written notice
to PPSI, take possession of all records and other documents generated by PPSI in
connection with this Contract, and the City may use the same in the performance of the
services described herein. PPSI agrees to surrender peacefully said records and
documents. The City shall provide PPSI with a written receipt of those items over which
the City assumes exclusive control.

RIGHT TO REQUIRE PERFORMANCE

The failure of the City at any time to require performance by PPS! of any
provisions hereof shall in no way affect the right of the City thereafter to enforce same.
Nor shall waiver by the City of any breach of any provision hereof shall be taken or held
to be a waiver of any succeeding breach of such provision or as a waiver of any
provision itself.

ACCESS TO BOOKS AND RECORDS

The City’s representatives shall have access on a weekday, other than a legal
State holiday, upon three (3) working days prior written notice fo PPSI”s representative,
to all PPS!I's books, records, correspondence, instructions, receipts, vouchers, and
memoranda of every description pertaining to work under this Contract, for the purpose
of conducting a complete independent fiscal audit for any fiscal audit for any fiscal year

within the last two (2) years.
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INSURANCE
PPSI shall provide and maintain during the life of this Contract, workers'
compensation insurance and general liability with the following fimits of liability:
Workers’ Compensation - Statutory

Bodily Injury Liability ‘ - $100,000 each accident

- $500,000 each occurrence

General Liability - $1,000,000 each occurrence
Personal & Advertising Injury - $1,000,000 each occurrence
Professional Liability ) - $1,000,000 each occurrence

PPSI shall provide proof upon request by either the City or the Court as to the
existence of the insurance policies.

INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS

With regard to the work to be performed by PPSI, neither the Court nor the City
shall be liable to PPSI, or to anyone who may claim a right resulting from any
relationship with PPSI, for any act or omission of PPS], its employees, agents or
participants in the performance of services conducted on behalf of the City. In addition,
PPSI agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Court and the City, their officials,
appointees, employees, agents or participants with the Court and the Probation
Services described herein, from any and all claims, actions, proceedings, expenses,
damages, liabilities or losses (including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and court
costs) arising out of or in connection with the services performed by PPSI, including

wrongful criminal acts of PPSI, or PPSI's employees, agents or representatives.
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ASSIGNMENT
The duties and obligations assumed by PPSI are professional services unique to
PPSI and are therefore not transferable or assignable without prior consent of the Court
and City. Consent, however, shall not be unreasonably withheld.
VALIDITY
This Contract shall be binding on any successor to the undersigned official of the
City or Court. The provisions enumerated in this Contract shall be deemed valid insofar
as they do not violate any Court, City, State or Federal laws. In the event any provision
of this Contract should be declared invalid, the remainder of this Contract shall remain
in full force and effect.
NOTICE
Any notice provided for in this Contract shall be in writing and served by personal
delivery or by registered or certified mail addressed to:
As to the City/Court: James |. Luke, City Manager
City of Picayune
203 Goodyear Bivd.
Picayune, MS 39466
As to PPSI: John C. Cox, President
Professional Probation Services, inc.
1770 Indian Trail Road, Suite 350
Norcross, GA 30093
Notices sent by registered or certified mail shall be deemed delivered/received

upon actual receipt or three (3) days from mailing, whichever is shorter. The above

addresses may be modified by written notice to the other Party.

Page 8 of 10



REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 21, 2014

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Contract, including all exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference, constitutes the entire understanding and agreement between the Parties
hereto and supersedes any and all agreements, whether written or oral, that may exist
between the parties regarding the same. No representations, inducements, promises,
or agreements between the Parties not embodied herein shall be of any force and
effect. No amendment or modification to this Contract or any waiver of any provisions
hereof shall be effective unless in writing and signed by all Parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed

Y / A D
their seals on this, the { day of JANVAK >/ CA.D., 2014.

CITY OF PICAYUNE; A MISSISSIPPI
MUNICIPALITY

v A
/”’41/?;'2?7/,[,/ /i(;u.ﬁ //

y, PINERO, MAYOR

E?WA ‘
/) (v s
ATTEST: 7 /( %0/, / /

WB/ER HINTON, CITY CLERK

PROFESSIONAL PROBATION SERVICES, INC.

JOHN C. COX, PRESIDENT (SEAL)
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI )
COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER )

PERSONALLY APPEARED before me, the undersigned authority in and for the
said county and state, on this the L] day of January, 2014, within my
jurisdiction, the within named ED PINERO and AMBER HINTON, who acknowledged
that they are the Mayor and City Clerk of the CITY OF PICAYUNE, a Mississippi
Municipal Corporation, respectively, and that in said representative capacity they
executed the above and foregoing CONTRACT, after first having been duly authorized
so to do.

\SSIS§, g fie
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My Commission Expires:

) W W
///('7"'» wley, 7, 2¢/7 'OC ot
- A
STATE OF )
)
COUNTY OF )

PERSONALLY APPEARED before me, the undersigned authority in and for the
said county and state, on this the day of January, 2014, within my jurisdiction,
the within named JOHN C. COX who acknowledged that he is the President of
PROFESSIONAL PROBATION SERVICES, INC. A Georgia Corporation, and that in
said representative capacity they executed the above and foregoing CONTRACT, after
first having been duly authorized so to do by said Corporation.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:
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EXHIBIT “A”

UNIFORM STANDARDS OF PROBATION SUPERVISION

All PPSI probation officers will be at least 21 years of age at the time of
appointment.

PPSI wilt employ at least one supervisor of private probation officers with
a minimum of five (5) years experience in corrections, parole or probation
services.

No person convicted of a felony will be employed as a private probation
officer, use the title private probation officer or otherwise be responsible
for the supervision of probationers.

PPSI will complete record checks on all staff in accordance with its
standard operating procedures.

The City or Court shall have the express right fo reject proposed
employees of PPSI in Picayune, MS.

PPSI will supervise all probated cases sentenced by the Court uniess
Court specifically exempts any cases from such probation supetrvision.
PPSI will also supervise indigent cases when determined by the Court.
These cases will not be charged the standard probation fee, but will still
be offered all PPSI services.

Probationers not complying with the terms set forth in the Court order will
be returned to the Court, at which time the probation officer will testify as
to the circumstances of the case, giving the probationer full opportunity to
refute any or all points. The probation officer will then comply with the
Court’s ruling in reference to sentencing or possible revocation of
probation.

Probationers who pay their entire fine and Court costs within 30 days of
the sentencing date will not be charged a probation supervision fee by
PPSI, although they would be responsible for a $10 set up fee.

PPSI shall comply with all provisions of local, state and federal law.
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EXHIBIT “B”

SERVICES PROVIDED BY PPSI

Attend regularly scheduled court sessions for the purpose of obtaining
sentencing information and personal history information for each offender placed
on probation by the Court.

Conduct an initial interview with each probationer at the time of his or her -
sentencing for the purposes of explaining the scope of the court order relative to
fines, fees, and or restitution imposed as well as requirements and conditions for
probation supervision.

Monitor offenders for compliance with terms and conditions of probation as
required by the Court notifying the Court of any non-compliance.

If requested by the Court to do so, collect from probationers Court ordered fines,
restitutions and other costs associated with the Court and disburse said monies
as follows, to-wit:

A. Restitution shall be paid to PPSI, who will disburse monies directly to the
victim, as directed by the Court.

B. All fines, surcharges and other fees shall be paid to PPSI who will
disburse monies to the City as directed by the City.

Prepare referrals and lend assistance to probationers either ordered to receive or
desiring employment assistance or counseling.

Coordinate community service work as required as a condition of probation by
the Court. The City/Court will define the work mission for all community service.
PPSI will coordinate only that community service work that is reasonably
consistent with those duties performed by regular City employees.

Maintain case files on each probationer regarding compliance with the terms and
conditions of probation, reporting dates, field contacts as they occur and in the
amounts and dates of monies collected.

Provide reports to the Court regarding compliance and payment information as
requested.

PPSI shall supervise all persons assigned to probation by the Court with a ration
of probationers to staff of no greater than 250 to 1.
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PPSI shall maintain professional liability insurance in an amount not less than
one million ($1,000,000.00) dollars as well as add the City as an additional
insured and assure the City is named therein as an additional loss payee.

Each probationer placed on probation under the supervision of PPS! will be
required to meet with their assigned probation officer at least every thirty (30)
days. Probationers that do not comply with the probation guidelines and the
Court's order may be required to meet with their probation officer more than once
a month (referred to as “intensive” supervision).

Any modification of the original court sentence will be decided by the Court.
PPSI may recommend to the Court early probation release if a probationer has

fulfilled all Court ordered requirements and paid all fines. Any remaining fees will
not be assessed against the probationer if the Court grants early release.
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Specifications for Services and Fee Schedule- Mississippi

Basic Probation Supervision

$40.00 per month; $10.00 one-time set up fee

Pay Oniy Supervision

First Month Free- $35.00 Thereafter; $10.00 one-time set up fee
payable upon second month,

Intensive Probation Supervision

$45.00 per month with field visits =$10.00 one-time set up fee

City Ordinance Supervision -

$40.00 Per Month — $10.00 one-time set up fee

Voice Verification Supervision

$50.00 Per Month -$10.00 one-time set up fee

$0.00 — As Ordered by the Court ~ NO SET UP FEE

Indigent Supervision

Pre-Trial Supervision

LEVEL ONE ($40.00 per month)

Defendants are required to report to a PPS location once weekly,
submitting to a urinalysis, and breath test. Screens are included in
the fee.

LEVEL TWO (510.00 per day)
Defendants are monitored electronically using the PP'S anklet
monitor which enforces house arrest and curfew on a set schedule
approved by the Court. The in-house monitoring unit also screens
the defendant for alcohol use and reports results immediately 1o
the PPS monitoring station. Defendants also must report weekly
{0 a PPS office Jocation and submit to random urinalysis

screenings (included in fee).

LEVEL THREFE ($11.00 per day)
Defendants are monitored 24/7 by global positioning satellire
(GPS) with transdermal alcohol testing. PPS requires aface to
face visit with each defendant at our office location twice monthly
and can administer drug screens.

Now What? Course

$25.00 per session

(Cognitive Restrucfuring)

Electronic Monitoring

Anllet Monitoring with Curfew Enforcement and Voice
Verification (§7.00 per day) ’

Anklet Monitoring with Curfew Enforcement, Voice
Verification, and Remote Breath Alcohol Testing (§9.25 per
day)

Active GPS Monitoring with Exclusionary Zone and Trans-
dermal Alcohol Testing
($11.00 per day)

S Panel Drug Screen $15.00
Pre-Sentence Investigation No Cost
No Cost .

Community Service Work Coordination

~ Community Service Liability Insurance

$10.00 - regardless of hours ordered

(Optional)
Restitution Collection - Direct Disburscment to

No Cost

Victim
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Court On-Line Access to the PPS] Offender No Cost for 24/7 Internet Access to alf Offender Data and Activity
Management Computer Program
Transfer of Supervision No Cost to any of our more than
40 nationwide focations
Domestic Violence Workshop $25.00 per sess%on
Anger Control Workshop $25.00 per session
Youthful Offender Workshop $25.00 per session
Job Skills, Resume Course and Job Placement No Cost
Under the Influence (for adults) $75.00
Alcohol-Wise JV (for juveniles) . $75.00
Martjuana 101 $75.00
STOPLifting.com §75.00
Parent Alcohol and Drug Education Course $75.00
(Parent-Wise)

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE REQUEST TO APPLY FOR ALCOHOL COUNTERMEASURES GRANT
FY15
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Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to approve request to apply for Alcohol Countermeasures Grant FY15 and
authorize Mayor to sign all related documents.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: Mayor Ed Pinero

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente

ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE REQUEST TO APPLY FOR OCCUPATION PROTECTION GRANT FY15

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to approve request to apply for Occupation Protection Grant FY15 and
authorize Mayor to sign all related documents.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO ROSABELL’S SOUTHERN KITCHEN

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to approve Special Use Permit to RosaBell’s Southern Kitchen located at 1824
Hwy 11 N under Ordinance No. 882 for Alcoholic Beverages less than 5% including
beer and light wine.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO OPEN PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPERTY CLEAN UP

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to open public hearing for property clean up.

The following roll call was made:
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VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO DECLARE WESTCHESTER DRIVE PARCEL 6172030000002100 A
PUBLIC NUSIANCE

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to declare Westchester Drive parcel 6172030000002100 a public nuisance.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO CLOSE HEARING ON PROPERTY CLEAN UP

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to close hearing on property clean up.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE SURPLUS OF LOCKERS PREVIOUSLY DONATED TO PUBLIC WORKS
BY PEARL RIVER CENTRAL HIGH SCHOOL

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to approve request to surplus student lockers previously donated to Public
Works department by Pearl River Central High School.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
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ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE EXTENSION OF TIME TO COMPLETE HOSPITAL DEMOLITION

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to approve to extend time in which to complete Hospital Demolition Contract
by extending the date of completion form January 22 to March 5, 2014 and authorize
City Manager to execute said modification to contract.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI )
COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER )

AMENDMENT TO DEMOLITION CONTRACT

THIS AMENDMENT (“Agreement” or “Contract”) is hereby entered into on this,
the 3157 _, day of JANVARY , A.D., 2014, by and between THE CITY OF
PICAYUNE, A MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY (“City”) and BEAN EXCAVATING and
DIRT WORK, LLC, A MISSISSIPPI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY (“Contractor”)
through the duly authorized representatives and/or agents for both the City and the
Contractor.

RECITALS

1. The City is a Mississippi Municipality and is a political subdivision of the State of
Mississippi which is located in Pear! River County, Mississippi.

2. The City is the owner of a tract of real property, together with the improvements
located thereon known as the “Old Crosby Hospital” (“Property”), being more
particularly described as follows, to-wit:

TRACT NO. 1: Entire Blocks 68 and 69 in Williams-Goodyear Addition to
the Town, now City of Picayune, Mississippi, as per plat
thereof now on file in the Office of the Chancery Clerk of
Pear! River County, Mississippi.

TRACT NO. 2: The certain strip of land formerly occupied by “L.” Street,
extending Northerly from Sixth Avenue for a distance of 300
feet to Goodyear Boulevard, between said Blocks 68 and 69
of said Williams-Goodyear Addition to the Town, now City of
Picayune, Mississippi, according to plat thereof heretofore
filed and now on file in the Office of the Chancery Clerk of
Pearl River County, Mississippi, said portion of said “L”
Street having been heretofore vacated and closed by
ordinance adopted by the Mayor and Board of Alderman of
the City of Picayune, Mississippi.

3. The City required the total demalition of the structure(s) with the complete
removal of the structure(s) located on the Property.

4. The Contractor is in the demolition business, properly licensed, and has the

capability to demolish, raze, remove, abate and clean up the demolished area in
accordance with generally accepted demolition and abatement practices and

Page 1 of 4
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procedures.

5. The City and the Contractor entered into a Demolition Contract upon the terms
and conditions as set forth thereinonthe 3 17 day of JANUVARY
A.D., 2013. ’

6. That due to delays caused by weather and other unforseen site conditions, the

City and Contractor desire to extend the original completion date of the
Demolition Contract previously entered into between the City and the Contractor,
as set forth hereafter, to-wit:

AMENDMENT(S) TO DEMOLITION CONTRACT

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained in this Agreement, an other good and valuable consideration(s), the receipt
and sufficiency of which is acknowledged herein, the City and the Contractor do hereby
agree, contract and covenant to amend, and do hereby amend the Demolition Contract
previously executed by the City and the Contractor as follows, to-wit:

7. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE

3. The Demolition Contract previously executed by the City and Contractor shall be
completely performed by the Contractor no later than March 5, 2014.

27. EFFECT OF AMENDMENT(S)

1. The Parties do hereby agree the terms and provisions of the Demolition Contract
previously entered into between the City and Contractor and not otherwise
amended pursuant to this Agreement as forth above, shall remain in full force
and effect as set forth in said Demolition Contract referred to and adopted herein
by reference.

Page 2 of 4
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned and duly authorized representatives for the
CITY OF PICAYUNE, A MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY, and the Contractor, BEAN
EXCAVATING and DIRT WORK, LLC, A MISSISSIPPI LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY , do hereby enter into, contract, covenant and agree on this, the 3157
day of _SANUA Ry ,AD.,2014.

THE CITY OF PICAYUNE, A MISSISSIPPI
MUNICIPALITY AND A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION

flf THE STATEQF MISSISSIPPI, GRANTEE
LUKE Clty Manager, City of Picayune
BY: ( ]Z éé{ /

AMBER HINTON, City élerk City of Picayune

BEAN EXCAVATING and DIRT WORK, LLC, A
MISSISSIPPI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
CONTRACTOR:

By: (Jee = Il —
_JAMIE BEAN, AUTHORIZED MANGER AND
MEMBER
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI )

COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER )

Personally came and appeared before me, the undersigned authority in and for
the said County and State, within my jurisdiction, the within named JAMIE BEAN, who
acknowledged to me that he is the Manager/Member, of THE CITY OF PICAYUNE, A
MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF
MISSISSIPPI, and as its act and deed, they signed, executed and accepted the
foregoing Amendment to Demolition Agreement on the day, in the year, and for the
purposes therein contained after first having been duly authorized by said Mississippi
Municipality to do so.

oY

GIVEN under my hand and official seal of office, upon this, the

day of L f’z’ NUL@AL ,A.D., 2014.
[ ) /,, ) ’ /2 B
Aol Lrapre fnn g WisSsc.,
Notary Public R& T pRY PUBS,
. . . o T Q /O.‘ .
M%/ Commission Expires: gé \D #107209 =%
NN~ 7, Dci7 & SMITH &
/ ! LESLIE LEANN SMITH
g e
0, issi Expkres_:;\ i
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI ) ‘&S?m:‘ff:ﬂmﬂ X
e ures® X
COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER ) '-fﬁlygﬁf’"

Personally came and appeared before me, the undersigned authority in and for
the said County and State, within my jurisdiction, the within named JAMIE BEAN, who
acknowledged to me that he is the MANAGER/MEMBER, of BEAN EXCAVATING and
DIRT WORK, LLC, A MISSISSIPPI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY , and as its act
and deed, they signed, executed and accepted the foregoing Amendment to Demolition
Agreement on the day, in the year, and for the purposes therein contained after first
having been duly authorized by said Mississippi Limited Liability Company to do so.

GIVEN under my hand and official seal of office, upon this, the 21

day of “ ,Vf )u(_uv\] ,A.D., 2014.
./ . 0 ) 0
Deler docor 75 Wiss..
Notary Public &G PUg Y,
My Commission Expires: ARG 072090'-.' o
/);‘]‘/l\’\,»(l"’: e 2er7 7Y ER .

© LESLIE LEANN SMITH :
i 3 o o SN
"0, commission EXPIFES A
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING CONTRACT FOR THE MEMORIAL
BLVD OVERLAY AND HWY 43 LIGHTING PROJECT
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Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to approve the Preliminary Engineering Contract for the STP-0400-00 (030)
LPA 106715-701000 Memorial Blvd Overlay and Hwy 43 Lighting Project.

THE CITY OF PICAYUNE
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING CONTRACT
FOR
CITY OF PICAYUNE -

MEMORIAL BOULEVARD OVERLAY AND
HIGHWAY 43 NORTH LIGHTING
PROJECT NO. STP-0400-00(030) LPA106715-701000
PEARL RIVER COUNTY, MS

PICAYUNE, MS

JANUARY 2014

of

Prepared By:

DUNGAN ENGINEERING, P.A.

925 GOODYEAR BOULEVARD

PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI 39466
(601) 799-1037

SETNO. __

\g!
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ESC
Rev. 08/28/94 (Base)
Rev. 02-20-2011 (This forn)

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT

City of Picayunc - Historic District Enhancements
Project No. STP-0400-00(030)L.PA /106715-701000
Pear River

THIS CONTRACT, 1s made and entered into by and between the Gity of Picayune, a body Corporate of the
State of Mississippi (the "LPA"), and, Dungan Engincering, P.A. (the "CONSULTANT"), a Mississippi
Corporation, duly registered to do business in the State of Mississippi, whose address for mailing is 925
Goodyear Blvd, Picayune, MS, 39466, cffective as of the date of latest execution below.

WITNESSETH:

WHIEREAS, the LPA proposes to perform a Memorial Boulevard Maintenance Ovetlay and
Highway 43 North Lighting Project, as provided for in Project No. STP-0400-00(030)LPA/106715-
701000, hereinafter called the "PROJECT; and,

WHIEREAS, the LPA desires to engage a qualified and experienced CONSULTANT to perform
engineering services in connection with the PROJECT, all of which are hereinafter called the "SERVICES";
and,

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has represented to the 1LPA that it is experienced and qualified to
provide those services, and the LPA has relied upon such sepresentation; and,

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT herein was chosen for their expertise in performing the services in
connection with the PROJECT and found satisfactory by the LPA; which is now desirous of entering into a
contract;

WHERIZAS, the CONSULTANT hercin was chosen through the Consultant Selection Process
pursuant to Mississippi Department of Transportation (hereinafter "MIDOT") Standard Operating Procedure
ADM-24-01-00-000; (March 1, 2001, as amended) and Federal Aid Policy Guide Part 172 and found
satisfactory; to the end that both parties ate now desirous of entering into a contract; and

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutal promises and covenants contained
herein and for other good and valuable considerations flowing unto the parties, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the LPA and the CONSULTANT do heseby contract and aggee as follows:

ARTICLE I. GENERAL RECITALS
CONSULTANT shall, for the agreed fees, furnish all engineering services and materials required to
perform the tasks described in the Scope of Work for the proposed transportation project. In so doing,
CONSULTANT shall meet the current industry standards as to general format and content and in addition
thereto, any special requirements of the LPA.

THE LPA, in support of CONSULTANT will provide the CONSULTANT a Scope of Work shown
in "Exhibit 2" hereto and any other data which may be of assistance to CONSULTANT and within the
possession and control of the LPA.
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Manuals, guides, and specifications applicable to this CONTRACT shall be those approved and/or adopted by
MDOT and in effect on the effective date of this CONTRACT, unless otherwise specified in this Contract or
subsequenty directed by MDOT during the course of the CONTRACT.

ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF WORK
The CONSULTANT shall conduct the SERVICES in accosdance with the Scope of Work attached to
this CONTRACT as "Fxhibit 2" and made a patt hereof as if fully set forth herein. The petformance of the
SERVICES referred to in "lixhibit 2" shall be the primary basis for measurement of performance under this
CONTRACT. The LPA speaifically reserves the right and privilege to enlasge or reduce the scope; or to cancel
this CONTRACT atany dme.

ARTICLE 1II. CONTRACT TERM
This CONTRACT shall commence upon the latest date of execution below and continue until such
time as the above named project is successfully completed to the satisfaction of the 1.PA or untl December
2014, CIOT, at which time this CONTRACT shall absolutely and finally terminate.

During the term of this CONTRACT, the ILPA seserves the tight to tesminate this CONTRACT in
whole or in part, at any time, with or without cause, upon seven (7) days written notice to the CONSULTANT,
notwithstanding any just claims by the CONSULTANT for payment of SERVICES rendered prior to the date
of termination. The LPA shall be hable only for the costs, fees and expenses for demobilization and close out
of contract, based on actual time and expenses incurred by CONSULTANT in the packaging and shipment of
all documents covered by this CONTRACT to the LPA. Tn no cvent shall the LPA be liable for lost profits or
other consequential damages.

ARTICLE IV. TIME OF PERFORMANCE
TIMI 1S OF THE ESSENCE IN THIS CONTRACT. The CONSULTANT shall be prepared o
perform its responsibilities for providing SERVICES commencing on the date of execution of the
CONTRACT.

The CONSULTANT has submitted a proposed project schedule to the LPA which has been
mcorporated herein as a part of “Lixhibit 27, which when approved by final execution of this CONTRACT shall
control the evaluation of the CONSULTANT’s progress on this PROJECT. A copy of the progress schedule,
indicating the actual time expended on specific portions of this project, shall be submitted along with an
estimated percentage completed with each monthly statement.

A Notice to Proceed shall be issued under authority from the LPA within 30 days after final execution
of this CONTRACT. The CONSULTANT may not begin work on any feature of this PROJECT prior to
receiving a Notice to Proceed from the IPA.

ARTICLE V. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The relationship of the CONSULTANT to the LPA is that of an independent contractos, and said
CONSULTANT, in accordance with its status as an independent conteactor, covenants and agrees that it will
conduct itself consistent with such status, that it will neither hold itself out as, nor claim to be, an officer or
employee of the LPA by reason hercof. The CONSULTANT  will not by reason hereof, make any claim,
demand or application or for any right or privilege applicable to an officer or employee of the LPA, including
but not limited to workers' compensation coverage, unemployment insurance benefits, social security coverage,
retirement membership or credit, o any form of tax withholding whatsoever.

(&)
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All notices, communications, and correspondence between the LPA and the CONSULTANT shall be
directed to the key personnel and agents designated in this contract.

ARTICLE VI. COMPENSATION, BILLING & AUDIT
A. Costand Iees
The CONSULTANT shall be paid on the basis set forth in "Exhibit 3" to this CONTRACT. Under
no circumstances shall the LPA be liable for any amounts, including any costs, which exceed the maximum
dollar amount of compensation that is specified in and set forth in “Fxhibit 37,

B. Monthly Billing

The CONSULTANT may submit monthly billing to the LPA. (A sample of a preferred invoice is
attached as "Exhibit 4") Fach billing shall include all time and allowable expenses through the end of the
billing period. Direct expenses, as used herein, include the costs of travel, subsistence, shipping charges, long
distance telephone calls and printing if it is not company accounting policy to include these costs in overhead
rates. The LPA retains the right to verify time and expense records by audit of any or all CONSULTANT's
time and accounting records at any time during the life of the CONTRACT and up to three years thereafter.

If SERVICES are rendered within a given State fiscal year, an invoice requesting payment from the
CONSULTANT shall be presented to the LPA within 60 days of the end of the State fiscal year, Should the
CONSULTANT fail to present the invoice within the allotted time, legislative approval may be
required before payment can be rendered.

The CONSULTANT further agrees that FHWA or any other Federal Agency may audit the same
records at any time during the life of the CONTRACT and up to three years thereafter, should the funding
source for all or any part of the CONTRACT be funds of the United States of America.

C. Record Retention

‘The CONSULTANT shall maintain all time and expense secords incutred on the PROJECT and
used in support of its proposal and shall make such material available at all reasonable times during the period
of the CONTRACT and for three years from the date of final payment under this CONTRACT for
inspection by the LPA, and copies thereof shall be furnished upon request, at the LPA's expense. The
CONSULTANT agrees that the provisions of this Article shall be included in any CONTRACT it may make
with any subcontractors, assignees or transferees.

ID. Retainage

The LPA shall retain the final 25% of the CONSULTANT’s Fixed Fee untl the final payment
request has been received and an audit of the total PROJECT cost to date has been completed by the I.PA or its
designee.

ARTICLE VI FINAL PAYMENT

‘The CONSULTANT shall clearly indicate on its last Invoice for the CONTRACT that the Invoice is
“FINAL”. The LPA will confirm that the CONTRACT is ready to be closed and the “FINAL” Invoice may
be paid.  All “FINAL” invoices shall pay any setainage withheld on the CONTRACT. However, under no
circumstances will the total amount paid exceed the maximum not to exceed amount established for the
CONTRACT. The CONSULTANT agrees that acceptance of the final payment shall be in full and final
settlement of all claims arising against the 1.PA for work done, documents fugnished, cost incutred, or otherwise
atising out of this CONTRACT and shall release the LPA from any and all further claims of whatever nature,
whether known or unknown, for and on account of said CONTRACT, including payment for any and all work
done, and labor and material furnished in connection with the same. Errors and/or omissions discovered
subsequent to the acceptance by the LPA of the final contract documents shall be corrected by the
CONSULTANT without additional compensation. The CONSULTANT shall submit their “FINAL” invoice
no later than 45 days following termination of the CONTRACT.
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ARTICLE VIII. REVIEW OF WORK
Authorized representatives of the LPA may at all reasonable times review and inspect the SERVICES
under this CONTRACT and any addenda or amendments thereto. Authorized representatives of the FITWA
may also review and inspect the SERVICES under this CONTRACT should funds of the United States of
America be in any way utilized in payment for said SERVICES. Such inspection shall not make the United
States of America a party to this CONTRACT, nor will FHWA interfere with the rights of either party
hereundet.

All reports, drawings, studies and maps prepared by and for the CONSULTANT, shall be made
available to authorized representatives of the LPA for inspection and review at all reasonable times in the
General Offices of the LPA.  Authorized representatives of the FHWA may also review and inspect said
reports, drawings, studies and maps prepared under the CONTRACT should funds of the United States of
Ametica be in any way utilized in payment for the same. Acceptance by the LPA shall not relieve the
CONSULTANT of its professional obligation to cotrect, at its expense, any of its breaches, erroms and/or
omissions, in the final version of the work.

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for performance of and compliance with all terms of this
CONTRACT, including the Scope of Work and other exhibits, and including any technical specifications and
special requirements of the LPA, and shall be responsible for errors and/or omissions, including those as to
conduct and care, format and content, for all aspects of the CONTRACT, and including professional quality
and technical accuracy of all designs, drawings, specifications, and other services furnished by the

CONSULTANT.

Failure to comply with any terms of this CONTRACT shall be corrected by the CONSULTANT
without additional compensation.

1f any breach of CONTRACT, is discovered by LPA petsonnel after final acceptance of the work by
the LPA, then the CONSULTANT shall, without additional compensation, cure any deficiency or breach
including errors and/or omissions in designs, plans, drawings, specifications, or other services.

In the event that the project schedule requires that a breach of this CONTRACT be corrected by
someone other than the CONSULTANT then the actual costs incurred by the LPA for such corrections shall
be the responsibility of the CONSULTANT. The LPA shall give the CONSULTANT an opportunity to
correct said breach unless (1) the LPA determines, in its sole discretion, that the CONSULTANT cannot
cure the breach within the schedule established by the LPA, or (2) the LPA determines, in its sole discretion,
that the CONSULTANT cannot cure the breach to the satisfaction of the LPA.

In the event that the CONSULTANT breaches this CONTRACT, and the breaches of the
CONSULTANT are discovered during the construction phase, then an accounting of all costs incurted by
the LPA resulting from such breach, including errors and/or omissions, will be made and such amount will
be tecovered from the CONSULTANT.

ARTICLE IX. RESPONSIBILITIES FOR CLAIMS AND LIABILITY

The CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend and hold harmiess the 1PA and all its officers, agents
and employees from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge or expense arising out of any negligent act, actions,
neglect or omission by the CONSULTANT, its agents, employees, or subcontractors duting the performance of
this CONTRACT, whether direct or indirect, and whether to any person or property for which LPA or said
parties may be subject, except that neither the CONSULTANT nor any of his agents or subcontractors will be
liable under this provision for damages arising out of the injury or damage to persons ot property solely caused
or resulting from the negligence of the LPA or any of its officers, agents or employees.
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The CONSULTANT'S obligatdons under this Article, including the obligations to indemnify,
defend, hold harmless, pay reasonable attorney fees or, at the LPA'S option, patticipate and associate with the
IPA in the defense and trial or arbitration of any damage chaim, lien or suit and any related settlement
negotiations, shall be initiated by the LLPA'S notice of claim for indemnification to the CONSULTANT.
Only an adjudication or judgment after the highest appeal is exhausted specifically finding the LPA entircly
responsible shall excuse performance of this provision by the CONSULTANT. In such case, the LPA shall
pay all costs and fees related 1o this obligation and its enforcement. Should there be a finding of dual or
multiple liability, costs and fees shall be apportioned accordingly.

In conjunction herewith, the LPA agrees to notify CONSULTANT in writing as soon as practicable
after receipt or notice of any claim involving CONSULTANT. These indemnities shall not be limited by reason
of the listing of any insurance coverage below.

ARTICLE X. INSURANCE
Prior to beginning the work, the CONSULTANT shall obtain and furnish certificates to the LPA for
the following minimum amounts of insurance:

A Wortkers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of Mississippi.
B. Public Liability Insurance in an amount not less than one million doflars ($1,000,000.00) on account of

any one occurrence.

C. Property Damage Insurance in an amount not less than five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00)
from damages on account of any one occurrence, with an aggregate limit of not less than one million
dollass ($1,000,000.00).

D. Valuable Documents Insurance, whether as a past of the property damage insurance referenced above
or as sepagate insurance, in an amount sufficient to cover all costs associated with repaising, restoring or
replacing any documents kept or created by Consultant as a part of the Services, in the event of casualty
{0, o loss or theft of such documents.

K. Frrors and Omissions Insurance, in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per
incident; one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) aggregate.

. Comprehensive Automobile Tiability Tnsurance, with a combined single limit for bodily injury and
property damage of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per incident with respect to
CONSULTANT’s (owned, hired or non-owned) vehicles, assigned to or used in the performance of
services.

The LPA shall be listed as a certificate holder of insurance on any of the insurance required under
this CON'TRACT.

In the event that the CONSULTANT retains any subcontractor or other petsonnel to petform
SERVICES or carry out any activities under or incident to work on any project or phase of this CONTRACT,
CONSULTANT  agrees to obtain from said subcontractor or other personnel, certificates of insurance
demonstrating that said subcontractor or other personnel has all of the above coverage, or to include said
subcontractor ot other personnel within CONSULTANT's coverage for the duration of said PROJECT or
phase for which said subcontractor or other personnel is employed.

The Insurance coverage recited above shall be maintained in full force and effect by CONSULTANT
during the life of this CONTRACT. Should CONSULTANT cease to carry the errors and omissions coverage
listed above for any reason, it shall obtain "tail" coverage at the same limits for a period of not less than three (3)
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years subsequent to policy termination or contract termination, whichever is longer. Should CONSULTANT

change insurance carriers for etrors and /or coverage, it shall obtain a “retroactive coverage” endorsement
£Cs 2

from its new insurance carricer.

Insurance carriers must be properly licensed and/or must hold a Certificate of Authority from the
Mississippi Department of Insurance.

A certificate of insurance acceptable to the LPA shall be issued to the LPA by the CONSULTANT
prior to the execution of this CONTRACT by the CONSULTANT and thereafter on an annual basis for the
duration of this CONTRACT as evidence that policies providing the required coverage, conditions and limits
are in full force and effect. Such certificate shall identify this CONTRACT and contain provisions that
coverage afforded under the policies will not be cancelled, terminated, or materially altered until at least thirty
(30) days prior written notice has been given to the LPA.

The CONSULTANT will furnish certified copies, upon request, of any or all of the policies and/or
endorsements to the LPA prior to the exccution of this CONTRACT and thereafter on an annual basis for
the duration of this CONTRACT.

The CONSULTANT shall provide the LPA any and all documentation necessary to prove
compliance with the insurance requirements of this CONTRACT as such documentation is requested, from
time to time, by the LPA.

If the CONSULTANT fails to procure or maintain required insurance, the LPA may immediately
elect to terminate this CONTRACT or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance and pay any and all
premiums in connection therewith, and all monies so paid by the LPA shall be repaid by the CONSULTANT
to the 1LPA upon demand, or the LPA may offset the cost of the premiums against any monies due to the

CONSULTANT from the LLPA.

ARTICLE XI. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES AND LOBBYING

The CONSULTANT shall comply with the relevant requirements of all federal, state or local laws. The
CONSULTANT watrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide
employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or secuse this CONTRACT, and that it has not
paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the
CONSULTANT, any fee commission, percentage, broketage fee, gifts or any other consideration contingent
upon or resulting from the award or making of the CONTRACT. The CONSULTANT wartants that it shall
not contribute any money, gift or grawity of any kind, either directly or indirectly to any employee of the LPA,
or to any employee of the Mississippi Department of Transportation. For breach or violatdon of this warranty,
the LPA shall have the right to terminate this CONTRACT without liability, and the CONSULTANT shall
forfeit any sums due hereunder at the time of such breach and may be basted from performing any future
services for the LPA or participating in any future contracts with the LPA.

ARTICLE XII. EMPLOYMENT OF LPA'S PERSONNEL
‘The CONSULTANT shall not employ any person or pessons in the employ of the ILPA for any work
required by the terms of this CONTRACT, without the written permission of the LPA, except as may otherwise
be provided for herein.

ARTICLES X1II. MODIFICATION
If, prior to the satisfactory completion of the SERVICES under this CONTRACT, the LPA materially
alters the scope, character, complexity or duration of the SERVICES from those required under this
CONTRACT, a supplemental agreement may be executed between the pardes. Also, a supplemental agreement
may be executed between the parties in the event that both parties agree the CONSULTANT's compensation

6
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should be increased due to an unanticipated increase in the nature, scope or amount of work necessary to
properdy provide the SERVICIS required on any particular phase or project begun hereunder.

Oral agreements or conversations with the LPA, any individual member of the 1LPA, officer, agent, or
employee of the Mississippi Department of ‘T'ransportation, cither before or after exccution of this
CONTRACT, shall not affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained in this CONTRACT. All
modifications to this CONTRACT, amendments or addenda thereto must be submitted in writing and signed
by the parties thereto before any work is commenced.

The CONSULTANT may not begin work on any modifications, amendments, or addenda prior to
receiving a Notice to Proceed.

Minor changes in the proposal which do not involve changes in the compensation, extensions of time
or changes in the goals and objectives of the CONTRACT may be made by wiitten notification of such change
by either the LPA or the CONSULTANT to the other pasty, and shall become effective upon written
acceptance thereof (e, letter agreement).

ARTICLE XIV. SUBLETTING, ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER

Itis understood by the parties to this CONTRACT that the wotk of the CONSULTANT is considered
personal by the LPA. The CONSULTANT shall not assign, sublet or transfer any or all of its interest in this
CONTRACT without prior wiitten approval of the LPA. Under no circumstances will CONSULTANT be
allowed to sublet more than 60% of the wotk required under this contract. It is clearly undesstood and agreed
that specific projects or phases of the wotk may be sublet in their entirety provided that CONSULTANT
performs at least 40% of the overall contract with its own forces. Consent by the LPA to any subcontract shall
not relieve CONSULTANT from any of its obligations hereunder, and CONSUIL'TANT is required to maintain
final management responsibility with regard to any such subcontract.

The LPA reserves the right to review all subcontract documents prepared in connection with this
CONTRACT, and the CONSULTANT agrees that it shall submit to the LPA any proposed subcontract
document together with subcontractor cost estimates for review and written concurrence of the LPA in advance
of their execution.

ARTICLE XV. OWNERSHIP OF PRODUCTS AND DOCUMENTS AND
WORK MADE FOR HIRE
The CONSULTANT agtees that all reports, computer information and access, drawings, studies, notes,
maps and other data, prepared by and for them under the terms of this CONTRACT shall be delivered to,
become and remain in the property of the ILPA upon creation and shall be delivered to the LPA upon
termination or completion of work, or upon request of the LPA repardless of any claim or dispute between the
parties. All such data shall be delivered within thirty (30) days of receipt of a written request by the LPA.

The CONSULTANT and the LPA intend and agree that this CONTRACT to be a contract for
services and each party considers the products and results of the services to be rendered by the
CONSULTANT hereunder, including any and all material produced and/or delivered under this
CONTRACT (the “Work”), to be a “work made for hire” under U.S. copyright and all applicable laws. The
CONSULTANT acknowledges and agrees that the LPA owns all right, title, and interest in and to the Work
including, without limitation, the copyright thereto and all trademark, patent, and all intellectual property
rights thereto,

If for any reason the Work would not be considered a work made for hire under applicable law, or in
the event this CONTRACT is detesmined to be other than a contract or agreement for a work made for hire,
the CONSULTANT does hereby transfer and assign to the LPA, and its successors and assigns, the entire
right, title, and interest in and to any Work prepared hereunder including, without limitation, the following:
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the copyright and all trademark, patent, and all intellectual property rights in the Work and any registrations
and copyright, and/or all other intellectual property, applications relating thereto and any renewals and
extensions thereof; all works based upon, detived from, or incorporating the Work; all income, royalties,
damages, claims, and payments now or hereafter due or payable with respect thereto; all causes of action,
either in law or in equity, for past, present, or future infringement based on the copyrights and/or all other
intellectual property; all rights, including all sights to claim priority, corresponding to the foregoing in the
United States and its tesritorial possessions and in all foreign countries. The CONSULTANT agrees to
execute all papers and perform such other proper acts as the LPA may deem necessary to secure for the 1LPA
or its designee the sights herein assigned.

The LPA may, without any notice or obligation of further compensation to the CONSULTANT,
publish, re-publish, anthologize, use, disseminate, license, or sell the Work in any format or medium now
known or hereafter invented or devised. The LPA’S rights shall include, without limitation, the rights to
publish, re-publish, or license a third party to publish, re-publish, or sell the Work in print, on the World
Wide Web, or in any other electronic or digital format or database now known or hereafter invented or
devised, as a separate isolated work or as patt of a compilation or other collective work, including a work
different in form from the first publication, and to include or license a thisd party to include the Work in an
electronic or digital database or any other medium or format now known or hereafter invented or devised.

The CONSULTANT shall obtain any and all sght, title, and interest to all input and/or material
from any third party subconsultant, or any other party, who may provide such input and/or material to any
portion of the Work so that said right, title, and interest, and all such interest in and to the Work including,
without limitation, the copyright theteto and all trademark, patent, and all intellectual property rights thereto,
shall belong to the LPA.

For any intellectual property rights currently owned by third parties or by the CONSULTANT and
not subject to the terms of this CONTRACT, the CONSULTANT agrees that it will obtain or grant royalty-
free, nonexclusive, irrevocable license(s) for or to the ILPA at no cost to the LPA to use all copyrighted or
copyrightable work(s) and all other intellectual property which is incorporated in the material furnished under
this CONTRACT. TFurther, the CONSULTANT warrants and represents to the LPA that it has obtained or
granted any and all such licensing prior to presentation of any Work to the LPA under this CONTRACT.
This obligation of the CONSULTANT does not apply to a situation involving a third party who enters a
license agreement directly with the LPA.

The CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not previously licensed the Work in whole
or in part to any third party and that use of the Work in whole or in part will not violate any rights of any
kind or nature whatsoever of any third party. 'The CONSULTANT aggees to indemnify and hold harmless
the LPA, its successors, assigns and assignees, and its tespective officers, directors, agents and employees,
from and against any and all claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys'
fees), arising out of or in any way connected with any breach of any representation or warranty made by
CONSULTANT herein.

ARTICLE XVI. PUBLICATION AND PUBLICITY

The CONSULTANT agrees that it shall not for any reason whatsoever communicate to any third
party, with the exception of the MDOT and the FHWA, in any manner whatsoever concerning any of its
CONTRACT work product, its conduct under the CONTRACT, the results or data gathered or processed
under this CONTRACT, which includes, but is not limited to, reports, computer information and access,
drawings, studies, notes, maps and other data prepared by and for the CONSULTANT under the terms of
this CONTRACT, without prior written approval from the LPA, unless such release ot disclosure is required
by judicial proceeding. The CONSULTANT aggees that it shall immediately refer any third party who
requests such information to the LPA and shall also report to the I.PA any such third patty inquiry, with the
exception of the MIDOT and/or the FHWA. This Article shall not apply to information in whatever form
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that comes into the public domain, nor shall it restrict the CONSULTANT from giving notices required by
law or complying with an order to provide information or data when such order s issued by a court,
administrative agency or other authority with proper jutisdiction, or if it is reasonably necessary for the
CONSULTANT to defend itself from any suit or claim.

IT 1S FURTHER AGREED, that all approved releases of information, findings, and recommendations
shall include a disclaimer provision and that all published teports shall include that disclaimer on the cover and
title page in the following form:

The opinions, findings, and conclusions in this publication are those of the anthor(s) and not necessarily those of
the Loval Public Agency, Mississippi Department of Transporiation, Mivsissippi “Transportation Comniission,
the State of Mississippi, or the ederal Highway Aldministration.

ARTICLE XVII. CONTRACT DISPUTES

This CONTRACT shall be deemed to have been executed in Pear! River County, Mississippi, and all
questions including, but not limited to, questions of interpretation, construction and performance shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Mississippi, excluding its conflicts of laws provisions, and any litigation
with respect to this CONTRACT shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in Pearl River
County, State of Mississippl. The CONSULTANT expressly agrees that under no circumstances shall the
LPA be obligated to or responsible for payment of an attorney’s fee for the cost of legal action to ot on
behalf of the CONSULTANT.

ARTICLE XVIII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE 1L.AW
A. The undessigned certify that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the foregoing is in
compliance with all applicable laws.

B. The CONSULTANT shall observe and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local
laws, rules and regulations, policies and procedures, ordinances, and orders and dectees of
bodies or tribupals of the United States of America or any agency thercof, the State of
Mississippi or any agency thereof, and any local governments or political subdivisions, that
are in effect at the time of the execution of this CONTRACT or that may later become
effective.

C. The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee nor shall any party be
subject to discrimination in the performance of this CONTRACT because of race, creed,
color, sex, national origin, age ot disability.

D. IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AGREED that the CONSULTANT shall comply and
shall require its subcontractors to comply with the regulations for COMPLIANCE WITH
TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, as amended, and all other applicable
federal regulations as stated in "Exhibit 5" which is incorporated herein by reference.

oA It is agreed that the CONSULTANT will comply with the provisions set forth in Department
of Transportation, 49 CFR, Section 18, Et Seq., regarding Uniform Administrative
Requirements for Grants and Cooperative agreements in its administration of this
CONTRACT or any subcontract resulting herefrom.

K The CONSULTANT agrees that it will abide by the provisions of 49 CEFR Section 26
regarding disadvantaged business enterprises and include the certification made in "Exhibit 5"
to this CONTRACT in any and all subcontracts which may result from this CONTRACTS.
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G. The CONSULTANT shall comply and shall trequire its subconsultants to comply with Code
of Iiederal Regulations CFR 23 Part 634 - Worker Visibility — as stated in “Fxhibit 57,

H. IMMIGRANT STATUS CERTIFICATION. The CONSULTANT represents that it is in
compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (Public Law 99-603), as
amended, in relation to all employees pesforming work in the State of Mississippi and does
not knowingly employ persons in violation of the United States immigration laws.  The
CONSULTANT fusther represents that it is registered and participating in the Department
of Homeland Security’s E-Verify™ employment eligibility verification program, or successor
thereto, and will maintain records of compliance with the Mississippi  Employment
Protection Act including, but not limited to, requiting compliance certification from all
subcontractors and vendors who will participate in the performance of this Agreement and
maintaining such certifications for inspection if requested.  The CONSULTANT
acknowledges that violation may result in the following: () cancellation of any public
contract and ineligibility for any public contract for up to three (3) years, or (b) the loss of
any license, permit, certification or other document granted by an agency, department or
governmental entity for the right to do business in Mississippi for up to one (1) year, or (c)
both. The CONSULTANT also acknowledges liability for any additional costs incusred by
the IPA due to such contract cancellation ot loss of license or permit.  The
CONSULTANT is required to provide the certification on Iixhibit 9 in this CONTRACT to
the LPA verifying that the CONSULTANT and subconsultant(s) are registered and
participating in E-Verify prior to execution of this CONTRACT

1 The covenants herein shall, except as otherwise provided, accrue to the benefit of and be
binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

ARTICLE XIX. WAIVER
Failure of cither party hereto to insist upon sttict compliance with any of the terms, covenants, and
conditions hereof shall not be deemed a waiver or relinguishment of any similar right os power hereunder at any
subsequent time, ot of any other provision hereof, nor shall it be construed to be a modification of the terms of
this CONTRACT.

ARTICLE XX. SEVERABILITY
If any terms or provisions of this CONTRACT are prohibited by the laws of the State of Mississippi or
declared invalid or void by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this CONTRACT shall not be
affected thereby and each term and provision of this CONTRACT shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest
extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE XXI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This CONTRACT constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter
contained herein and supersedes and replaces any and all prior negotiations, understandings, and agreements,
written or oral, between the parties relating thereto.

The CONSULTANT covenants that no public or private interests exist and none shall be acquired
directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner with the performance of the CONSULTANTS
CONTRACT. The CONSULTANT further covenants that no employee of the CONSULTANT or of any
subconsultant(s), regardless of his/her position, is to pessonally benefit directly or indirectly from the
performance of the SERVICES or from any knowledge obtained dusing the CONSULTANT’S execution of
this CONTRACT.

10
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It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of the LPA to proceed under this
CONTRACT is conditioned upon the availability of funds, the appropriation of funds by the Mississippi
Legislature, and the receipt of state and/or federal funds. 1f, at any time, the funds anticipated for the
fulfillment of this CONTRACT are not forthcoming or are insufficient, either through the failure of the federal
government to provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or
material alteration of the program under which funds were provided, or if funds are not otherwise available to
the LPA for the performance of this CONTRACT, the LLPA shall have the right, upon written notice to the
CONSULTANT, to immediately terminate or stop work on this CONTRACT without damage, penalty, cost,
or expense to the LPA of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the
notice of termination.

ARTICLE XXIV. STOP WORK ORDER

A. Otder to Stop Work. The LPA may, by written order to the CONSULTANT at any time, and
without notice to any surety, require the CONSULTANT to stop all or any part of the worlk called
for by this CONTRACT. This order shall be for a specified period not exceeding twenty-four (24)
months after the order is delivered to the CONSULTANT unless the partics agree to any further
period.  Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop work order issued pursuant to this
clause. Upon receipt of such an order, the CONSULTANT shall forthwith comply with its terms
and take all steps to minimize the occurrence of costs allocable to the work covered by the order
during the period of work stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further
period to which the parties shall have agreed, the 1.PA shall either:

€)) cancel the stop work ordes; or
) terminate the work covered by such order according to and as provided in Article 11T of this
CONTRACT.

Prior to the LPA’S taking official action to stop work under this CONTRACT, the Executive Director of
MDOT may notify the CONSULTANT, in writing, of MDDOT’S intentions to ask the LPA to stop work
under this CONTRACT. Upon notice from the Executive Director of MDOT, CONSULTANT shall
suspend all activities under this CONTRACT, pending final action by the LPA.

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order. If a stop wotk order issued under this clause is canceled
at any time dusing the period specified in the order, or if the period of the order or any extension
thereof expires, the CONSULTANT shall have the right to resume work. If the 1.PA decides that it
1s justified, an appropriate adjustment may be made in the delivery schedule. If the stop work order
results in an increase in the dme requited for or in the CONSULTANT'S cost properly allocable to
the performance of any part of this CONTRACT and the CONSULTANT assetts a claim for such
an adjustment within 30 days after the end of the period of wotk stoppage, an equitable adjustment
in this CONTRACT may be made by written modification of this CONTRACT as provided by the
terms of this CONTRACT.

C. Termination of Stopped Work, 1f a stop work order is not canceled and the work covered by such
order is terminated, the CONSULTANT may be paid for services rendesed prior to the Termination.
In addition to payment for services rendered prior to the date of termination, the LPA shall be liable
only for the costs, fees, and expenses for demobilization and close out of this CONTRACT, based
on actual time and expenses incurred by the CONSULTANT in the packaging and shipment of all
documents covered by this CONTRACT to the LPA. In no event shall the LPA be liable for lost
profits or other consequential damages.

11
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CONSULTANT agrees that Key Personnel identified as assigned to this PROJECT shall not be
changed or reassigned without prior approval of the LPA  or, if prior approval is impossible, and then notice to
the LPA and subsequent review by the IPA which may approve or disapprove the action. For purposes of
implementing this section and all other scctions of this CONTRACT with regard to notice, the following
individuals are herewith designated as agents for the respeciive parties unless otherwise identified in the addenda

hereto:

LPA: City of Picayune
Fax (601) 798-0564
Email: picstaffasst@bellsouth.net

For Contractual Matters:

Ed Pinero, Jr., Ph.D., Mayor
Mayor, City of Picayune

815 N. Beech Street

Picayune, MS 39466
601-798-9770

601-798-0564
picstaflassi@bellsouth et

CONSULTANT:
Dungan Engineering, P.A.

For Contractual Matters:
Brooks Wallace, P.E.
925 Goodyear Bivd
Picayune, MS 39466
601-799-1037
601-799-0480

brook s(d)dungmncugg;gml

Licensure Number
from the Mississippi
Board of Licensure
for Professional

Engineers/Architects and Surveyors:

PLE# 17699
Surveyor #____NA
Or

Architect’s # NA

For Technical Matters:

Eric Mortis, Public Works Director
Public Works Director, City of Picayune
815 N. Beech Stgeet

Picayune, MS 39466

601-798-9770

601-798-0564

emortis@picayune.ms.us

For Technical Matters:
Vernon Moore, P.E.
925 Goodyear Blvd
Picayune, MS 39466
601-799-1037
601-799-0480
vernon@dunganeng.com

Licensure Number
from the Mississippi
Board of Licensure
for Professional
Engineers/Architect’s and Surveyors:

PE#H___19048

Surveyor #_NA
Or
Architeet’s # ____NA

(e
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ARTICLE XXVI. AUTHORIZATION
Both parties hereto represent that they have authority to enter into this CONTRACT and that the
individuals exccuting this CONTRACT are authosized to execute it and bind their respective parties and
certified copies of the applicable LPA Order and the Resolution of the Corporate Board of Directors of the
CONSUILTANT are attached hereto as “Fxhibit 17 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof as if fully copied hegein in words and figures.

WITNIESS this my signatute in execution hereof, this the dayof 20 .

CITY OF PICAYUNE

Ed Pinero, Jr., Ph.D, Mayor

WITNESS this my signature in execution hereof, this the day of ,20 .

DUNGAN ENGINEERING, P.A.

BY:

Brooks Wallace, P.J5.

ATTEST:

LExhibits attached hereto and incorporated by refetence into this contract include those identified on
the attached page entitled “List of Exhibits”.

13
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LIST OF EXHIBITS

Evidence of Authority

General Scope of Work and Common Specifications
Fees and Expenses.

Sample Invoice

Notice to the CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT’s Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Mattess.

Certification of LPA
{ This Fschibit was intentionally lefi blank}

Prme Consultant KEV Certification and Agreement

i4
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EXHIBIT 1

{{{{Auach a copy of authority to execute contracts on behalf of the LPA}}} }

{{{{Attach a copy of authority to execute contracts on bebalf of the Consultant Corporation hese} }}}

15
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UNANIMOUS CONSENT TO ACTION BY THE DIRECTORS OF
DUNGAN ENGINEERING, P.A.
IN LIEU OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF DIRECTORS

The undersigned, constituting all of the directors of DUNGAN ENGINEERING,
P.A.. a Mississippi Corporation, do hereby, pursuant to Mississippi Code Annotated
Scction 79-4-8.21, consent to the following actions underlaken in the name of and on
behalf of the directors of the corporation, without the necessity of a meeting, in licu of the
annual meeting of the directors:

RESOLVED:
The following employees in their respective positions listed below are
authorized to execute contracts on behalf of Dungan Engineering, PA.

H. Les Dungan 111, Corporate President and Principal Engineer

J. Lee Mock, Corporate Vice President and Principal Engineer
Brooks Wallace, Corporate Vice President and Principal Engineer
Jefl'J. Dungan, Corporate Secretary-Treasurer and Principal Engineer
Jeremy Cooper, Survey Manager

Dewayne Morea, Materials Testing Manager

Ryan Holmes, Engineering Manager Brookhaven Office

Sean Burns, City of Columbia Engineer

Stephen Sowell, Structural Engineer

The undersigned, constituting all of the directors of NUNGAN ENGINEERING,

P.A., have exccuted this unanimous consent action as of the 19" day of January 2011,
AD. 4
o'

/ /

1. LefPungan—HI Dirbetor

NS

Jeff J.@uW@Clor
I

J(/Lcc’,?vlock, Director

2D

Brooks R. Wallace, Director




REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 21, 2014

EXHIBIT 2
Scope of Work
Insert the Scope of Work here
{NOTE: SCOPES OF WORK MUST BE DETAILED — INCLUDE TERMINI}

{ATTACH THE PROGRESS SCHEDULE AT THE BACK OF THIS EXHIBIT - SEE ARTICLE IV}

16
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EXHIBIT 3

The LPA shall pay the CONSULTANT on a lump sum / fism-fixed-price basis of __$25008.50  for the

satisfactory completion of the Scope of Wosk set forth under "Exhibit 2", hereto, for all salaries, payroll
additives, overhead, direct costs, profit and any other costs attributable to this CONTRACT.

A lump sum / firm-fixed-price contract provides for a price that is not subject to any adjustment on the basis
of the CONSULTANT’S cost experience in performing the assignment.

‘The monthly billing shall be based on the completion of each milestone relative to its payment, as provided
on “Table 1: Billing Milestones™ of this Exhibit, as approved by the I.LPA for this CONTRACT.

Once the LPA has approved and accepted the work of the CONSULTANT, the LPA will pay the
CONSULTANT any unpaid amounts of the CONTRACT.

Table 1: Billing Milestones

#1 Field Review $8,662.50
H2 Office Review $8,555.21
#3 PS&TL Assembly $7,790.80

Al overhead rates submitted to MIDOT for approval shall comply with the AASHTO Audit Guide, 2010, ai amended. In
addition, the CONSULTANT shall submit written certification in accordance with FENW.A Order 4470.1.A4, ar awended,
that the indirect cost rate submitted does not include any costs which are expressty unallowable and the indirect cost rate was
established only with allowable costs in accordance with the applicable cost principles contained in the Vederal Acquisition
Regulations (FAR) of 48 CER part 31.

17
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EXHIBIT 4
SAMPLE INVOICE
[Lump Sum]

MISSISSIPPT DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
P.O. BOX 1850
JACKSON, MS 39215-1850 DATE:

ATTENTION:

INVOICE NO. 0000

PERIOD ,20__ THROUGH 520
PROJFESSIONAL SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH
CONTRACT DATED 20,
PROJECT NUMBER

]’RO:]]")C'I‘ DESCRIPTION

CURRENT PREVIOUS TOTAL ALLOWED

PERIOD ESTIMATE TO DATT
Contract Max $::::
Milestone numbet 1 $ $ $
Milestone number 2 $ $ $
Milestone number 3 $ § $
Milestone number 4 $ $ $
Milestone numbet 5 $ $ $

18
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Milestone #1

City of Picayune / Dungan Engincering, P.A.
STP-0400-00(030)LPA/106715-701000
Memorial Boulevard Maintenance Qverlay and Highway 43 North Lighting

Classification Hours Rate of Pay Extension
Principle - $0.00
Project Manager 20 $40.00 $800.00
Engineer 45 $25.00 $1,125.00
CADD e b $0.00
Clerical : : $0.00
Engineer Tech | s OFE - $22.00 $220.00
Secretary SEG) $16.50 $99.00
Labor Classification et $0.00
Labor Classification : : i $0.00
Labor Classification S $0.00
Labor Classification B . : $0.00
Labor Classification o i $0.00

Raw Labor $2,244.00
Overhead Rate | 163:24]% | $3,663.11
(Enter appropriate overhead rute (home or field) - FCCM in cell C20)
Total Labor + O/H $5,907.11
Fixed Fee 12|% $708.85
(nter FTI¥ % in cell C23)
FCCM Overhead : 0.96|% $21.54
(Lnter PFCCM in C28)
Direct Costs: Qty. Unit Price’
Mileage R [ e $0.00
Meals . el S $0.00
Lodging . R o $0.00
Postage i o $0.00
Supplics o e i $0.00
Reproductions S vl iy SR $0.00
Other ; e $0.00
Total Direct Cost $0.00
Subconsultant Cost *:
Daughtry Engineeing Services, LLC $2,025.00

$0.00

Total Subconsultant Cost $2,025.00

' See State Travel Handbook

* Al subs must provide back-up and contain MDOT approved overhead rates

[Project Total $8,662.50 |
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Milestone #1

City of Picayune / Dungan Engineering, P.A.
STP-0400-00(030)LPA/106715-701000
Memorial Boulevard Maintenance Overlay and Highway 43 North Lighting

Classification Hours Rate of Pay Extension
Principle $0.00
Project Manager : . : $0.00
Engineer : 45 7 $45.00 $2,025.00
CADD ¥ $0.00
Clerical : $0.00
Labor Classification : . : $0.00
Labor Classification S ) $0.00
Labor Classification ] A $0.00
Labor Classification : $0.00
Labor Classification i $0.00
Labor Classification i $0.00
Labor Classification S $0.00

Raw Labor $2,025.00
Overhead Rate | 1% $0.00
(Linter appropriate overhead rate (howe or field) - VCCM in celt C20 )

Total Labor + O/H $2,025.00
Fixed Fee % $0.00
(inter FF % in cell €C23)

FCCM Overhead % $0.00
(Enter FCOM in C28)

Direct Costs: Qty. Unit Price’

Mileage CaiEE e $0.00
Meals . i S $0.00
Lodging UL $0.00
Postage L ey $0.00
Supplies s $0.00
Reproductions iy PR e $0.00
Other : sl e $0.00
Total Direct Cost $0.00
Subconsultant (to the Subconsultant) Cost %

Daughtry Engineeing Services, LLC

Total Subconsultant Cost $0.00
" See State Travel Handbook

* All subs must provide back-up and contain MDOT approved overhead rates

Subconsultant Total $2,025.00
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Milestone #2

City of Picayune / Dungan Enginecering, I’.A.
STP-0400-00(030)LPA/106715-701000
Memorial Boulevard Maintenance Qverlay and Highway 43 North Lighting

Classification Hours Rate of Pay Extension
Principle $0.00
Project Manager 20 $40.00 $800.00
Engineer : 50 $25.00 $1,250.00
CADD $0.00
Clerical . ; $0.00
Engineering Tech | 0 12 $22.:00 $264.00
Labor Classification ey $16.50 $198.00
I.abor Classification B $0.00
Labor Classification : 3 $0.00
Labor Classification e $0.00
Labor Classification : Gl $0.00
Labor Classification . RS $0.00

Raw Labor $2,512.00
Overhead Rate | 163.24l% | $4,100.59
(Lnler appropriate overhead rule (home or field) - FCCM incef C20)

Total Labor + O/H $6,612.59
Fixed Fee x 12{% $793.51
(Enter FE % in cell C23)
FCCM Overhead Sl 0.96]% $24.12
(Enter FCCM in C28)
Direct Costs: Qly. Unit Price’
Mileage SRR i $0.00
Meals $0.00
Lodging $0.00
Postage $0.00
Supplies $0.00
Reproductions $0.00
Other $0.00
Total Direct Cost $0.00
Subconsultant Cost %;
Daughtry Engineeing Services, 1L1LC $1,125.00
$0.00
Total Subconsultant Cost $1,125.00

' Soe State Travel Handbook

* Al subs must provide hack-up and contain MIDOT approved overhead raies

{Project Total $8,555.21
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Milestone #2

City of Picayune / Dungan Engineering, P.A.
STP-0400-00(030M)LPA/106715-701000
Memorial Boulevard Maintenance Overlay and Highway 43 North Lighting

Classification Hours Rate of Pay Extension
Principle $0.00
Project Manager g $0.00
Engineer 25 $45.00 $1,125.00
CADD ’ $0.00
Clerical $0.00
Labor Classification $0.00
Labor Classification $0.00
Labor Classification $0.00
Labor Classification $0.00
L.abor Classification $0.00
Labor Classification $0.00
Labor Classification $0.00

Raw Labor $1,125.00
Overhead Rate I i% E $0.00
(Linter appropriate overhead rate (home or field) - FCCM in ¢l C20)
Total Labor + O/H $1,125.00
Fixed Fee % $0.00
(Enter P % in cell C25)
FCCM Overhead % $0.00
(nter FCCM in C28)
Direct Costs: Qty. Unit Price’
Mileage x $0.00
Meals $0.00
Lodging $0.00
Postage $0.00
Supplics $0.00
Reproductions $0.00
Other $0.00
Total Direct Cost $0.00
Subconsultant {to the Subconsultant) Cost %
Daughtry Engineeing Services, LLC
Total Subconsultant Cost $0.00

' See State Travel Handbook

Al subs must provide back-up and contain MDOT approved overhead rates

ISubconsultant Total

$1,125.00 |
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Milestone #3

City of Picayune / Dungan Engineering, P.A.
STP-0400-00(03NMLPA/T06715-701000
Memorial Boulevard Maintenance Overlay and Highway 43 North Lighting

Classification Hours Rate of Pay Extension
Principle ] $0.00
Project Manager 15 $40.00 $600.00
Engineer 40 $25.00 $1,000.00
CADD ‘ $0.00
Clerical $0.00
Engineering Tech ] 15 $22.00 $330.00
Secretary 5 $16:50 $247.50
Labor Classification : $0.00
Labor Classification $0.00
Labor Classification $0.00
Labor Classification $0.00
Labor Classification $0.00

Raw Labor $2,177.50
Overhead Rate foo 163.24]% $3,554.55
(Iinter appropriate overhead rate (home or field) - FCCM in celt C20)

Total Labor + O/H $5,732.05
Fixed Fee 12{% $687.85
(Enter FT % in cell C23)
FCCM Overhead 0.96]% $20.90
(Enter FCCM in C28)
Direct Costs: Qty. Unit Price’
Mileage ) $0.00
Meals $0.00
Lodging $0.00
Poslage $0.00
Supplics $0.00
Reproductions $0.00
Other $0.00
Total Direct Cost $0.00
Subconsultant Cost *:
Daughtry Enginecing Services, LLC $1,350.00
$0.00
Total Subconsultant Cost $1,350.00

! See State Travel Handbook

“ All subs must provide back-up and contain MDOT approved overhead rates

IProj ect Total

$7,790.80 |
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Milestone #3

City of Picayune / Dungan Engineering, P.A.
STP-0400-00(030)LIPA/T06715-701000

Memorial Boulevard Maintenance Overlay and Highway 43 North Lighting

Classification Hours Rate of Pay Extension
Principle : $0.00
Project Manager s : $0.00
Engineer R0 $45.00 $1,350.00
CADD ; $0.00
Clerical i $0.00
Labor Classification e i " $0.00
Labor Classification . il $0.00
Labor Classification e G s $0.00
Labor Classification S . $0.00
I.abor Classification e $0.00
Labor Classification s $0.00
Labor Classification il $0.00

Raw Labor $1,350.00
Overhead Rate ] M $0.00
(Linter appropriate overhead rute (home or field) - FCCM in celt €20 )
Total Labor + O/H $1,350.00
Fixed Fee A % $0.00
(Enter FF % in cell C235)
FCCM Overhead S % $0.00
(loter FCCM in C28)
Direct Costs: Qly. Unit Price’
Mileage RN s $0.00
Meals S : : : $0.00
Lodging G S $0.00
Postage G $0.00
Supplies Gl RN R $0.00
Reproductions Tt [T G $0.00
Other e e R $0.00
Total Direct Cost $0.00
Subconsultant (to the Subconsultant) Cost %
Daughtry Enginecing Services, 1.1.C
Total Subconsultant Cost $0.00

! See State Travel Handbook

* Al subs must provide back-up and contain MDOT approved overhead rates

Subconsultant Total $1,350.00
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EXHIBIT 5

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS, FEDERAL-AID CONTRACT
COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964
COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT, DAVIS BACON ACT
CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT
CLEAN AIR ACT, ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES, WORKER VISIBILITY

During the performance of this CONTRACT, the CONSULTANT, for itself, its assignees and
successor-in-interest (hereinafter referred to as the "CONSULTANT") agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Regulations: The CONSULTANT will comply with the Regulations of the
Department of Transportation relative to nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department
of Transportation (Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, hereinafter refersed to as the "Regulations™),
which are herein incorposated by reference and made a part of this CONTRACT.

2. Nondiscrimination: The CONSULTANT, with tegard to the wotk performed by it after award and
prior to completion of the contract work, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, teligion, color, sex,
national origin, age or disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors including procusement of
materials and leases of equipment. The CONSULTANT will not participate either directly or indirectly in the
discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulatons, including employment practices when the
CONTRACT covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. In addition, the CONSULTANT
will not participate either directly or indirectly in discrimination prohibited by 23 C.FR. 710.405(b).

3. _Solicitations for Subcontracts. Including Procurement of Materals and_ Fauipment:  In all
Solicitations, cither by competitive bidding or negotiaion made by the CONSULTANT for work to be
performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or equipment, each potential subcontractor
or supplier shall be notified by the CONSULTANT of the CONSULTANT's obligations under this
CONTRACT and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, religion, colot, sex,
national origin, age or disability.

4. Anti-kickback provisions: All contracts and subcontracts for construction ot repair shall include a
provision for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kick Back" Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). ‘This Act provides that each contractor or subcontiactor
shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or
repair of public wotk, to give up any part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The
CONSULTANT shall report all suspected or reported violations to the LPA.

5. Davis Bacon Act: When required by the federal grant program legislation, all construction contracts
awarded to contractors and subcontractors in excess of $2,000 shall include a provision for compliance with the
Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to a-7) and as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR,
Part 5). Under this Act, contractots shall be required to pay wages to laboters and mechanics at a rate not less
than the minimum wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of labor. In addition,
contractots shall be required to pay wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In
addition, contractors shall be required to pay wages specified in a wage detesmination made by the Secretary of
Labor. In addition, contractors shall be requited to pay wages not less often than once a week.

6. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act: Where applicable, all contracts awarded by or to
contractors and subcontractors in excess of $100,000 which involve the employment of mechanics or laborers
shall include a provision for compliance with sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Houts and Safety
Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Patt 5).

s
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Uader section 103 of the Act, each contractor shall be tequired to compute the wages of every mechanic and
laborer on the basis of a standard wotk week of 40 houss. Work in excess of the standard work week is
permissible provided that the wotkes is compensated at a rate of not less than 1 1/2 times the basic rate of pay
for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. Section 107 of the Act is applicable to
construction work and provides that no laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under
working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under
construction, safety, and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor. These requirements do not
apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open matket, or contracts
for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

7. Clean Air Act: Compliance with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under
section 306 of the Clear Air Act (42 US.C. 1857 (h), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368),
Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR Part 15) (Contracts and
subcontracts 1n amounts in excess of $100,000).

8. Lnergy Policy and Conseryation Act:. Mandatory standatds and policies relating to energy efficiency
which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the BEnergy Policy and
Conservation Act (Pub. 1. 94-163).

9.  Disadvantaged Business Enterprises: It is the policy of the Mississippi Department of
Transportation to comply with the requirements of 49 C.IF.R. 26, to prohibit unlawful discrimination, to meet
it’s goal for DBE participation, to meet that goal whenever possible by race-neutral means, to create a level
playing ficld, and to achieve that amount of DBE pasticipation that would be obtained in an non-
discriminatory martket place. To meet that objective in any United States Department of Fransportation
assisted contracts, the LPA and the CONSULTANT shall comply with the “Mississippi Department of
Transportation’s Disadvantaged Business oterprise Programs For United States Department Of
Transportation Assisted Contracts”.

Neither the CONSULTANT (Contractor), nor any sub-recipient or sub-contractor shall discriminate on the
bases of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this conttact. The CONSULTANT
(Contractor) shall carry out applicable requitements of 49 CJF.R. 26 in the award and administration of
United States Department of Transportation assisted contracts. Failure of the CONSULTANT (Contractor)
to carry out those requirements is a material breach of the contract which may result in the termination of this
contract or such other remedies as the Mississippi Department of Transportation deems appropriate.

10. Worker Visibility: All workers within the right-of-way of a Federal-aid highway who are
exposed either to traffic (vehicles using the highway for the purposes of travel) or to construction equipment
within the work arca shall wear high-visibility safety apparel — personal protective safety clothing that is
intended to provide conspicuity during both daytime and nighttime usage, and that meets the Performance
Class 2 o1 3 requitements of the ANSI/ISEA 107-2004 publication entiled “American National Standatd for
High-Visibility Safety Apparel and Headwear” — for compliance with 23 CFR, Part 634.
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EXHIBIT 6

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT,
SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

CERTIFICATION  REGARDING  DEBARMENT,  SUSPENSION, AND  OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - Certification in accordance with Section 29.510 Appendix A, CF.R./Vol. 53,
No. 102, page 19210 and 19211:

) The CONSULTANT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, ot
voluntasly excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or bad a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state ot local)
transaction or contract under a public transaction, violation of federal or siate antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

©) are not presentdy indicted for or otherwise criminally or cvilly charged by a
governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses
enumetated in patagraph ()(b) of this certification: and

(@) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or
more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or defaul

(O] has not cither directly or indirectly entered into any agreement participated in any
collusion; or otherwise taken amy action in restraint of free competitive negotiation in
connection with this CONTRACT.

@) ‘The CONSULTANT further certifies, to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, that:

) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a member
of Congtess, an officer or employee of Congtess, or employee of a member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, ot cooperative agreement.

(& If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to
any pesson for influencing or attempting to influence an officer of employee of Congress, or
any employee of a member of Congress in connection with this CONTRACT, Standard
Form-LIL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instuctions will be
completed and submitted.

The certification contained in (1) and (2) above is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance is placed and a pre-requisite imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code prior to entering
into this CONTRACT. Failure to comply shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and
not more than $100,000. The CONSULTANT shall include the language of the certification in all
subcontracts exceeding $100,000 and all sub-contractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.
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I hereby certify that [ am the duly authorized representative of the CONSULTANT for purposes of
making this certification, and that neither I, nor any principal, officer, shareholder or employee of the above
firm has:

(a) employed or retained for commission, percentages, brokerage, contingent fee, or other
consideration, any firm or person {(other than a bona fide employee working solely for me or the above
consultant) to solicit or secure this agreement,

) agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this CONTRACT, to employ or retain
the services of any firm ot person in connection with carrying out the agreement, or

(© paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bone fide employee
wotking solely for me or the above consultant) any fee, contribution, donation, or consideration of any kind for,
ot in connection with, procuring or cattying out the agreement; except as herein expressly stated (if any).

I acknowledge that this Agreement may be furnished to the Federal Highway Administtaton, United
States Department of Transportation, in connection with the Agreement involving participation of Federal-Aid

Highway funds, and is subject to applicable state and federal laws, both criminal and civil.

SO CERTIFIED this day of 20 .

CONSULTANT

BY:

ATTEST:

My Commission Expires:

Notary

3%
N
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EXHIBIT 7

CERTIFICATTION OF THE 1.PA

1 hereby certify that I am the Chief Administrative Official, duly authotized by the LPA to execute this
certification and that the above consuliing firm or its representative has not been required, directly or indirectly,
as an express or implied condition in connection with obtaining or cartying out this agreement to:

®) employ or retain, ot agree to employ or retain, firm or person, or

) pay, ot agree to pay, to any firm, person organization, any fee, contribution, donation,
or consideration of any kind except as here expressly stated (if any).

SO CERTIFIED on the day of 200__.

LPA

Chief Administrative Official
Ed Pinero, Jr., Ph.D, Mayor
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EXHIBIT 8

{Intentionally Left Blank}

24
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EXHIBIT 9

PRIME CONSULTANT / CONTRACTOR EEV CERTIFICATION AND AGREEMENT

By executing this Certification and Agreement, the undersigned verifies its compliance with the,
"Mississippi Employment Protection Act," Section 71-11-3 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended,
and any rules or regulations promulgated by the LPA, Mississippi Transportation Commission [MTC],
Department of Employment Security, State Tax Commission, Secretary of State, Department of Human
Services in accordance with the Mississippi Administrative Procedures Law (Section 25-43-1 et seq.,
Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended), stating affirmatively that the individual, firm, or corporation which
is contracting with the LPA has registered with and is participating in a federal work authorization
program* operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security to electronically verify
information of newly hired employees pursuant to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, Pub.L.
99-6083,100 Stat 3359, as amended. The undersigned agrees to inform the LPA if the undersigned is no
longer registered or participating in the program.

The undersigned agrees that, should it employ or contract with any entity(s) in connection with the
performance of this CONTRACT, the undersigned will secure from such entity(s) verification of
compliance with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act. The undersigned further agrees to maintain
records of such compliance and provide a copy of each such verification to the LPA, if requested, for the
benefit of the LPA or this CONTRACT.

134671
EEV* Company Identification Number [Required]

The undersigned certifies that the above information is complete, true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief. The undersigned acknowledges that any violation may be subject to the cancellation
of the contract, ineligibility for any state or public contract for up to three (3) years, the loss of any license,
pemit, certificate or other document granted by any agency, department or government entity for the right to
do business in Mississippi for up to one (1) year, or both, any and all additional costs incurred because of
the contract cancellation or the loss of any license or permit, and may be subject to additional felony
prosecution for knowingly or recklessly accepting employment for compensation from an unauthorized alien
as defined by 8 U.S.C §1324a(h)(3), said action punishable by imprisonment for not less than one (1) year nor
more than five (5) years, a fine of not less than One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) nor more than Ten
Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), or both, in addition to such prosecution and penalties as provided by Federal
law.

BY:
Authorized Officer or Agent Date
Brooks Wallace Vice President
Printed Name of Authorized Officer or Agent Title of Authorized Officer or Agent of Contractor / Consultant
SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me on this the day of ,
20 .

NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission Expires:

* As of the effective date of the Mississippi Employment Protection Act, the applicable federal work authorization
program is E-Verify™ operated by the U. S. Citizenship and Immigration Services of the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security, in conjunction with the Social Security Administration.

7

2
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1/156/2014

City of Picayune
Historic District Enhancements
Project No. STP-0400-00(030) LPA106715-701000
Pearl River County, Mississippi

Project Schedule

June-14 July-14 August-14 September-14

PS&E Assembly

O M700CO! i ing Conf liminary i ing C:

o
The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR SEALED BIDS FOR PHASE Il OF THE
PICAYUNE DRAINAGE PROJECT
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Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to approve request to advertise for sealed bids for Phase Il (Construction) of
the Picayune drainage project.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE REQUEST FOR SURPLUS PROPERTY FOR AUCTION WITH
PROCEEDS GOING TO SPECIAL POLICE DRUG FUND

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to approve surplus property for auction with proceeds going to Special Police
Drug Fund.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO ADJOURN

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to adjourn.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Bumpers, Stevens, Breland
and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Council Member Valente
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

Ed Pinero, Mayor
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ATTEST:

Amber Hinton, City Clerk
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER
CITY OF PICAYUNE

Be It Remembered that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Picayune, Pearl
River County, Mississippi, met at City Hall, 203 Goodyear Blvd., in said City, Tuesday,
February 4, 2014, at 5:00 p.m. in regular session with the following officials present:
Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Tammy Valente, Lynn Bumpers, Jan Stevens, Larry
Breland and Wayne Gouguet, and City Clerk Amber Hinton. City Manager Jim Luke was
absent.

It Being Determined a quorum was present, the following proceedings were held.

Opening prayer was given by Father John Filken, followed by the Pledge of
Allegiance led by Mayor Ed Pinero.

ORDER TO APPROVE MINUTES

Motion was made by Council Member Valente, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to approve the Minutes for the City of Picayune dated January 21, 2014.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT

Motion was made by Council Member Valente, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to acknowledge receipt of monthly budget report for the month of January
2014.
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,

Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None

ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

ORDER TO APPROVE DOCKET

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member

Bumpers to approve the docket for February 4, 2014 in the amount of $576,934.78.
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

ACCEPT PROCLAMATION OF EXISTENCE OF LOCAL EMERGENCY SEVERE
WINTER WEATHER EVENT

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to acknowledge receipt of the signed Proclamation of Existence of Local
Emergency caused by the Severe Winter Weather Event as issued by City Manager’s
authority in conjunction with Governor’s proclamation.
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PROCLAMATION OF EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY
(CITY OF PICAYUNE)

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Picayune does hereby
find that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen
within said City of Picayune, caused by Severe Winter Weather Event
commencing on or about January 27, 2014; and

Whereas, the aforesaid conditions of extreme peril warrant and necessitate
the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency in order to provide for the
health and safety of the citizens and the protection of their property within the
affected jurisdiction;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY PROCLAIMED that in accordance with
Section 33-15-17(d), Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended, a local emergency now exists
throughout said City; and shall be reviewed every thirty (30) days until such local
emergency is no longer in effect and proclaimed terminated by the City Council of the City
of Picayune, State of Mississippi.

IT IS FURTHER PROCLAIMED AND ORDERED that all City of
Picayune agencies and departments shall render all possible assistance and
discharge their emergency responsibilities as set forth in the Clty of Picayune
Emergency Operations Plan. / ; /

/ /‘

Dated: January 27, 2014 7 | Ak
Mayor Ed Pinero, Jr, g

Vi 7 A

ATT/EST/ . ‘ /| pene s
\ / rd Wayne Gouguet, /

r Coun01lper7§
Clty Clelk Ambel Hmton ( \(ZZ e (L /'/L/lt (A
Lyhn Bumpers,

Couicﬂperson , .,
WYY \ ‘\ \w(‘/

Tan\lmy Valénte|
Councilperson

0 - -
E&(LJLT&,{ é - ﬁﬂ’kﬂ/ﬂp/
Larry B,p/eZand

Councilpérson
™

\ Ny 7
T QX oqs-enA-

Jan Stevens
‘Councilperson

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.
AT THIS TIME MAYOR PINERO RECUSED HIMSELF FROM THE MEETING

APPOINT DR. LORI BLACKMER TO PICAYUNE SCHOOL BOARD
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Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to appoint Dr. Lori Blackmer to the vacant position on the Picayune School
Board.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens, Breland and
Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Mayor Ed Pinero
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.
AT THIS TIME MAYOR PINERO RETURNED TO THE MEETING

AUTHORIZE APPLICATION FOR A TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT WITH MS
STATE DEPT OF HEALTH OFFICE OF TOBACCO CONTROL

Motion was made by Council Member Valente, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to authorize application for a Technical Assistance Grant with MS State Dept.
of Health Office of Tobacco Control and authorize Mayor to sign all related documents.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO APPROVE PARTICIPATION IN THE SENIOR COMMUNITY SERVICE
EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM

Motion was made by Council Member Valente, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to approve participation in the Senior Community Service Employment
Program and authorize Mayor to sign all related documents.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

AWARD THE NORWOOD/MAGNOLIA UTILITY RELOCATE PROJECT TO THE
LOWEST AND BEST BIDDER, T.L. WALLACE CONSTRUCTION
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Motion was made by Council Member Valente, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to award the Norwood/Magnolia Utility Relocate Project to the lowest and best
bidder, T.L. Wallace Construction.

DUNGAN

Picayias

MISSISSIPPI

NORWOOD / MAGNOLIA STREET UTILITY RELOCATE PROJECT
Pearl River County, Mississippi
Tuesday, January 21, 2014 - 10:00 AM

Certified Bid Tabulation
' CONTRAGTOR U CCOR. L LUMP SUM BID
T.L. Wallace Construction, Inc.. 03770-MC $53,680.00
Hensley R. Lee Contracting, Inc. 13466-MC $55,000.00
A&C Industrial, Inc. 15112-MC $107,762.29

Certified Correct By:

i MM

Vernon Moore, P.E.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.
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APPROVE REQEQUEST TO SUBMIT COMPLETED APPLICATION FOR THE
TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVE 2014 SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROGRAM-
ROSELAND PARK ELEMENTARY

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Valente to submit completed application for the Transportation Alternative 2014 Safe
Routes to School Program-Roseland Park Elementary and authorize Mayor’s signature
to sign the same.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.
APPROVE REQEQUEST TO SUBMIT COMPLETED APPLICATION FOR THE

TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVE 2014 SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROGRAM-
SOUTHSIDE ELEMENTARY

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Valente to submit completed application for the Transportation Alternative 2014 Safe
Routes to School Program-Southside Elementary and authorize Mayor’s signature to
sign the same.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.
APPROVE REQEQUEST TO SUBMIT COMPLETED APPLICATION FOR THE

TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVE 2014 SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROGRAM-
EXISTING HOSPITAL SITE

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to submit completed application for the Transportation Alternative 2014 Safe
Routes to School Program-Existing Hospital Site and authorize Mayor’s signature to
sign the same.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
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ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

AUTHORIZE OUT OF STATE TRAVEL FOR ROCIC TRAINING

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to authorize out of state travel for Chief Bryan Dawsey, Capt. Jeremy Magri
and City Manager Jim Luke to attend and ROCIC Training Conference March 2-5, 2014
in Gatlinburg, TN at no cost to taxpayers.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE SURPLUS PROPERTY FOR AUCTION

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to approve surplus property for auction with proceeds going to the Special
Police Drug Fund.
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CITY OF PICAYUNE

POLICE DEPARTMENT
AUTHORIZATION TO SURPLUS

COMPLETE IN DUPLICATE

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (SERIAL #): 1G4CWS3L.2M1660521
DESCRIPTION: 1991 BUICK PARK AVENUE

RESPONSIBLE PARTY: POLICEDEPARTMENT
CURRENT LOCATION OF PROPERTY. POLICE DEPARTMENT SEIZURE YARD

LOCATION AFTER SURPLUS AUTHORIZATION: TURNING POINT AUCTION

RECOMMENDED DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY:
DISCARD, JUNK

SELL AS SCRAP

SELL/SURPLUS AS USABLE EQUIPMENT OR PARTS
TRADE - IN ON PURCHASE OF NEW EQUIPMENT
TRANSFER

REASON FOR SURPLUS OF PROPERTY: THIS VEHICLE IS A DRUG SEIZURE AND WAS
FORFEITED TO THE P(_)_lleE DEPARTMENT THROUGH THE CIRCUIT COURT. IT WOULD BE

BEST UTILIZED SENT TO AUCTION WITH THE PROCEEDS GOING TO THE SPECIAL POLICE
DRUG FUND.

|1

REQUEST:
[t ApPROVED DISAPPROVED
. K
Ay Joll, 21/27/)f
SIGNATYRE OF BURFAU COMMANDER DATE OF REGUEST
[ ] pisaPPROVED

— j/’ Z 7* //
SIGMTUREOF DE TMENT CHIEF DATE OF REQUEST

IF TMPERRE F0 ANOTHER CITY DEPARTMENT, ENTER DATE TRANSFERRED

RECEIVED BY DEPARTMENT:

SIGNATURE OF DEPARTMENT SUPERVISOR

[Xl APPROVED [ ] pisaPPROVED

C_ N K20, |- 30-1Y B

SIGNA OF CITY\MANAGER DATE OF SIGNATURE
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CITY OF PICAYUNE

POLICE DEPARTMENT
AUTHORIZATION TO SURPLUS

COMPLETE IN DUPLICATE

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (SERIAL #): 3B3XA46K2NT226256

DESCRIPTION: 1992 DODGE SPIRIT

RESPONSIBLE PARTY: POLICE DEPARTMENT ==

CURRENT LOCATION OF PROPERTY. POLICE DEPARTMENT SEIZURE YARD

LOCATION AFTER SURPLUS AUTHORIZATION: PEARL RIVER RECYCLERS

RECOMMENDED DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY:
_ DISCARD, JUNK

XX SELL AS SCRAP

___ SELL/SURPLUS AS USABLE EQUIPMENT OR PARTS

___ TRADE - IN ON PURCHASE OF NEW EQUIPMENT
_ TRANSFER

REASON FOR SURPLUS OF PROPERTY: THIS VEHICLE IS A DRUG SEIZURE AND WAS

FORFEITED TO THE POLICE DEPARTMENT THROUGH THE CIRCUIT COURT. IT WOULD BE

BEST UTILIZED SOLD WITH THE PROCEEDS GOING TO THE SPECIAL POLICE DRUG FUND.

REQUEST:
BT APPROVED DISAPPROVED

N Lod, - j//??//?/

I%;N)xdﬁe OF BUREAU COMMANDER DATE OF REQOEST
AP
o/-27- /7

[ ] pisaPPROVED
'SIGNA ;URF OF“SEI’AR ENT CHIEF DATE OF REQUEST

IF Ti ERRED TO A ER CITY DEPARTMENT, ENTER DATE TRANSFERRED

RECEIVED BY DEPARTMENT:

SIGNATURE OF DEPARTMENT SUPERVISOR

ﬂ APPROVED [ ] pISAPPROVED

O L0, /=30~ /4

sueuﬁus OF CITY MANAGER DATE OF SIGNATURE
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CITY OF PICAYUNE
POLICE DEPARTMENT
AUTHORIZATION TO SURPLUS

COMPLETE IN DUPLICATE

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (SERIAL #): 1B7THCI6Y1YS626234

DESCRIPTION: 2000 DODGE RAM 1500 TRUCK

RESPONSIBLE PARTY: POLICE DEPARTMENT
CURRENT LOCATION OF PROPERTY. POLICE DEPARTMENT

LOCATION AFTER SURPLUS AUTHORIZATION: TURNING POINT AUCTION

RECOMMENDED DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY:
DISCARD, JUNK
SELL AS SCRAP

XX SELL/SURPLUS AS USABLE EQUIPMENT OR PARTS
TRADE - IN ON PURCHASE OF NEW EQUIPMENT

___ TRANSFER

REASON FOR SURPLUS OF PROPERTY: THIS VEHICLE IS NO LONGER COST

EFFICIENT TO OPERATE DUE TO MAINTENANCE COSTS. IT WOULD BE BETTER UTILIZED BY

SENDING TO AUCTION WITH THE PROCEEDS GOING TO THE SPECIAL POLICE DRUG FUND

REQUEST:
[X APPROVED [] pisaPPROVED

V2 A &/ 27)F
J

<

[sz)«vﬁkE OF BUREA MANDER DATE OF REQUEST
/L1 pisapPROVED

W etz

SIGYATURE OF m;y;vi ENT CHIEF DATE OF REQUEST

IF TRANSFERRED TO ANOTHER CITY DEPARTMENT, ENTER DATE TRANSFERRED

RECEIVED BY DEPARTMENT:

SIGNATURE OF DEPARTMENT SUPERVISOR

APPROVED [ ] DISAPPROVED
0, /=50~ 1Y
SIGNATURE OF CI?Y MANAGER DATE OF SIGNATURE r C'

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

ACCEPT CHECK FOR USE OF AIRPORT FROM B & S AIR, INC.
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Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Valente to accept check in the amount of $137.00 for the use of Airport from B & S Air,
Inc.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO RECESS

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to recess until Tuesday, February 18, 2014 at 5:00 pm.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

Ed Pinero, Mayor

ATTEST:

Amber Hinton, City Clerk



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 18,2014

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER
CITY OF PICAYUNE

Be It Remembered that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Picayune, Pearl
River County, Mississippi, met at City Hall, 203 Goodyear Blvd., in said City, Tuesday,
February 18, 2014, at 5:00 p.m. in regular session with the following officials present:
Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Tammy Valente, Lynn Bumpers Jan Stevens, Larry
Breland and Wayne Gouguet, City Manager Jim Luke and City Clerk Amber Hinton.

It Being Determined a quorum was present, the following proceedings were held.

Opening prayer was given by Rev. Greg Walls, followed by the Pledge of
Allegiance led by Mayor Ed Pinero.

ORDER TO APPROVE MINUTES

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to approve the Minutes for the City of Picayune dated February 4, 2014.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MONTHLY PRIVILEGE LICENSE REPORT

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to acknowledge receipt of monthly Privilege License report for the month of
January 2014.
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The following roll call was made:

Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,

Breland and Gouguet

VOTING YEA

None

VOTING NAY

None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING

None

ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING

The motion was declared carried.

ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MONTHLY PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST REPORT
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Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to acknowledge receipt of monthly Public Records Request report for the
month of January 2014.

CITY OF PICAYUNE
REPORT OF PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS
JANUARY 2014
DATE
FILLED/
DATE PERSON REQUESHBNBJE DENIED ACTION
01/31/14 | PICAYUNE HOUSING FINGERPRINTS 01/31/14 | APPROVED
AUTHORITY
01/30/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/30/14 | APPROVED
0664
01/31/14 | JENNIFER SAVOIE RECORD'S CHECK X 3 01/31/14 | APPROVED
01/31/14 | ROLANDO ESPINO ACCIDENT REPORT # 201-01-1776 | 01/31/14 | APPROVED
01/31/14 | LEONARD DAVID ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/31/14 | APPROVED
1763
01/31/14 | MIKE BEECH ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/31/14 | APPROVED
1761
01/31/14 | MYRA ESKUE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/31/14 | APPROVED
2215
01/31/14 | FBINICS RECORD'S CHECK 01/31/14 | APPROVED
01/27/14 | JUSTIN M CHAMPLIN ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/27/14 | APPROVED
1565
01/30/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/30/14 | APPROVED
1465
01/30/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/30/14 | APPROVED
0244
01/27/14 | MORRIS BART LTD ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/27/14 | APPROVED
1171
01/27/14 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/27/14 | APPROVED
BUREAU 0630
01/27/14 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/27/14 | APPROVED
BUREAU 0534
01/27/14 | THE HAUG LAW FIRM ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/27/14 | APPROVED
0736
01/27/14 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/27/14 | APPROVED
BUREAU 0736
01/30/14 | ALANA CAMPO ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/30/14 | APPROVED
1776
01/27/14 | MELISSA WALLER ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/27/14 | APPROVED
1770
01/27/14 | RONALD SCHRODER ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/27/14 | APPROVED
1770
01/24/14 | F.BI.NICS INCIDENT REPORT 01/24/14 | APPROVED
01/24/14 | HANCOCK COUNTY YOUTH RECORD'S CHECK 01/24/14 | APPROVED
COURT
01/24/14 | BONNIE A BY RECORD'S CHECK 01/24/14 | APPROVED
01/24/13 | JANICE SPIERS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/24/13 | APPROVED
1565
01/23/14 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
BUREAU 1396
01/23/14 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
BUREAU 1624
01/23/14 | MCDONALD, PATCH & BRYAN | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-07- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
LLC 1033
01/23/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
1055
01/23/14 | ELYSE M KINDER ACCIDENT REPORT # 2010-10- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
1945
01/23/14 | FORD EVENS JR ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
1102
01/23/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
0443
01/23/14 | LEXIS NIEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
0630
01/23/14 | ANGELIKA TREADWAY ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
0937
01/23/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
0057
01/23/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
1102
01/23/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-01- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
1283
01/23/14 | ELYSE M KINDER ACCIDENT REPORT # 2010-10- 01/23/14 | APPROVED
1945
01/23/14 | USDC SOUTHERN DISTRICT RECORD'S CHECK 01/23/14 | APPROVED
01/22/14 | DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY & RECORD'S CHECK 01/22/14 | APPROVED
CORRECTIONS
01/22/14 | CHRISTINA SMITH ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/22/14 | APPROVED
1055
01/22/14 | HAROLD CORDES ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/22/14 | APPROVED
1055
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01/22/14 | CITY OF PICAYUNE RECORD'S CHECK 01/22/14 | APPROVED
01/22/14 | AMBER ARCHER ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/22/14 | APPROVED
1283
GEORGIA LINDSEY RECORD'S CHECK 01/22/14 | APPROVED
01/22/14
01/21/14 | JULIA VANETTED ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/21/14 | APPROVED
1164
01/21/14 | LASHUNDA DAWSON RECORD'S CHECK 01/21/14 | APPROVED
01/21/14 | CUNNINGHAM & LINDSEY INCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01-0986 | 01/21/14 | APPROVED
INS.CO
01/17/14 | DEBBIE MAILHES RECORD'S CHECK 01/17/14 | APPROVED
01/14/14 | FL DEPT OF CORRECTIONS BACKGROUND CHECK 01/14/14 | APPROVED
01/15/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/15/14 | APPROVED
2215
01/15/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/15/14 | APPROVED
0194
01/15/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/15/14 | APPROVED
1753
01/15/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/15/14 | APPROVED
0623
01/15/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/15/14 | APPROVED
0416
01/15/14 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/15/14 | APPROVED
BUREAU 1328
01/15/14 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/15/14 | APPROVED
BUREAU 1753
01/15/14 | ROY HUGHES RECORD'S CHECK 01/15/14 | APPROVED
01/15/14 | ONTERRIO DEMOND DUCRE RECORD'S CHECK 01/15/14 | APPROVED
01/15/14 | KARRI BERG ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/15/14 | APPROVED
0156
01/14/14 | CA DEPT OF CORRECTIONS BACKGROUND CHECK 01/14/14 | APPROVED
01/10/14 | HANCOCK COUNTY YOUTH RECORDS CHECK 01/10/14 | APPROVED
COURT
01/10/14 | TONIA P SMITH INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-07-1033 | 01/10/14 | APPROVED
01/10/14 | BONNIE BARKLEY INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-01-0194 | 01/10/14 | APPROVED
01/09/14 | F.B.Il. NICS INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-06-0675 | 01/09/14 | APPROVED
01/09/14 | RENEA BULLARD ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/09/14 | APPROVED
1396
01/09/14 | HANCOCK COUNTY YOUTH RECORD'S CHECK 01/09/14 | APPROVED
COURT
01/09/14 | ELLEN DELOIS FOUNTAIN BACKGROUND CHECK 01/09/14 | APPROVED
01/09/14 | HANCOCK COUNTY YOUTH RECORD'D CHECK X 6 01/09/14 | APPROVED
COURT
01/09/14 | KRISTINE WESTBROOK ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/09/14 | APPROVED
0416
01/08/14 | 15TH JUDICIAL DRUG COURT ARREST INFORMATION 01/08/14 | APPROVED
01/08/14 | MICHAEL BOWENS RECORD'S CHECK 01/08/14 | APPROVED
01/08/14 | ROSLYN RACHELLE LAWSON RECORD'S CHECK 01/08/14 | APPROVED
01/07/14 | UNITED STATES DISTRICT RECORD'S CHECK 01/07/14 | APPROVED
COURT
01/07/14 | U.S. PROBATION OFFICE #4 RECORD'S CHECK 01/07/14 | APPROVED
01/07/14 | WILLIAM BURNETT ACCIDENT REPORT # 2014-01- 01/07/14 | APPROVED
0194
01/07/14 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-09-1784 | 01/07/14 | APPROVED
01/07/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/07/14 | APPROVED
0337
01/07/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/04/14 | APPROVED
1405
01/07/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/07/14 | APPROVED
0030
01/07/14 | SMITH & OLDMIXON ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/07/14 | APPROVED
0030
01/07/14 | SAFEWAY INSURANCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/07/14 | APPROVED
COMPANY 1393
01/07/14 | PROGRESSIVE INSURANCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 01/07/14 | APPROVED
COMPANY 1616
01/07/14 | MDOT RECORD'S CHECK 01/07/14 | APPROVED
01/06/14 | ROBERT CARR/CARR RECORD'S CHECK 01/06/14 | APPROVED
INSURANCE
01/06/14 | COAST ELECTRIC (JEFF ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/06/13 | APPROVED
BARBARA 2064
01/03/14 | RICK ZERKUS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/03/14 | APPROVED
1393
01/03/14 | DEBRA WARNER ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/03/14 | APPROVED
1507
01/03/14 | UNITED STATES DISTRICT #3 RECORD'S CHECK 01/03/14 | APPROVED
COURT
01/03/14 | F.B.Il. NICS INCIDENT REPORT # 2013-04-0337 | 01/03/14 | APPROVED
01/03/13 | FARM BUREAU ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-11- 01/03/13 | APPROVED
1979
01/03/14 | F.B.Il. NICS INCIDENT REPORT # 2012-07-1476 | 01/03/14 | APPROVED
01/03/14 | FARM BUREAU ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/03/14 | APPROVED
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01/03/14 | PALMER JOHN ADAM ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/03/14 | APPROVED
1393

01/03/14 | MORRIS BART LTD ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/03/14 | APPROVED
0621

01/03/14 | RACHEL OVERSTREET ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/03/14 | APPROVED
2064

01/03/14 | BETTY WHEAT ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/03/14 | APPROVED
2215

01/03/14 | COREY BERFUSE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/03/14 | APPROVED
1655

01/02/14 | SAFEWAY INSURANCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/02/14 | APPROVED
COMPANY 1394

01/02/14 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/02/14 | APPROVED
BUREAU 0431

01/02/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/02/14 | APPROVED
0842

01/02/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/02/14 | APPROVED
0840

01/02/14 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/02/14 | APPROVED
1590

01/02/14 | COTY DEMPSEY RODDY RECORD'S CHECK 01/02/14 | APPROVED

01/02/14 | RODNEY BEECH (COAST ACCIDENT REPORT # 2013-12- 01/02/14 | APPROVED
ELECTRIC) 2064

APPROVED

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

ACCEPT COPY OF APPROVED PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Bumpers
to accept copy of Minutes approved by the Planning Commission dated November 12,
2013.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

ACCEPT COPY OF PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to accept copy of Planning Commission Minutes dated February 11, 2014.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
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ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.
RECEIVE AND ACKNOWLEDGE FINAL DECISION FROM THE PEARL RIVER

COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT ACCEPTING THE BID FROM T.L. WALLACE AND
AWARD THEM THE CONTRACT AS LOWEST AND BEST BIDDER

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Valente to receive and acknowledge the final decision from the Pearl River County
Circuit Court in Civil Action No. 2014-0010-M, accepting the bid from T.L. Wallace in the
amount of $ 1,717,240.00 and awarding contract to T. L. Wallace as the lowest and best
bidder for the City of Picayune System Wide Cast Iron Main Replacement Project GS#
101-282.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

RE-APPOINT DONALD BOWLES TO PICAYUNE HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to re-appoint Donald Bowles to the Picayune Housing Authority Board.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO TABLE APPOINTMENT TO THE PEARL RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY
SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Valente to table the appointment to the Pearl River County Library System Board of
Trustees.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens,
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
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ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None

ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

ACCEPT THE FY 2013 AUDIT

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Valente to accept the FY 2013 annual audit.

CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 18,2014

CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ........ccoooiiinnnicensenessssesenens 2-5
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT .........coomimiiniiiniiiiniicnresiisssssessisssaesssssasisssens 6-7
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement Of NEt ASSELS .....covcrruruerioinirieiiiiiiiitsiiieer s b s s s s s bbb bbb beneben 8
Statement 0f ACLIVILIES......ccccevviviririiniiiiiit b 9
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Governmental funds Financial Statements
Balance Sheet — Governmental FUnds ...........cccccivemiininiinininiicicnnccinnnnes 10
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement 0f Net ASSELS......c.couuiiiriiiniiiiiiiiiee e 11
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ............cccccoeiiennriiinnnnn, 12
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of ACHVIties.........ccceovvviriveireciivinininiicneean 13
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Statement 0f NEt ASSELS .......cveirevueirinmiireiiniiiieieiesensrnsesaens 14
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets. 15
Statement of Cash Flows OO RSRRRORORY 16
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 17-32
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund..........cocoovviviiiieiiininiiiines 34
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Utility Fund ..o, .35
Note to Budgetary Comparison SChedules..........cccoevviniriiniiinniniiiicnenes 36
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Schedule of Surety Bonds for City Officials.........cccocovivirinniviiininiiici e 38
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards................. ...39
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards............coocevvvveviciininnininiininiienniennns 40

REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance With
And Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards .....................cevvivnicvniinenenisiencncinnssans 42 -43

Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material
Effect on Each Major Program and Internal Control Over Compliance

in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 ......c.cccevivvniiininriiiictin s 44 -45
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With State Laws and Regulations . .46
Schedule of Findings and QUEStioned COSES .........ccvururerreriiniensiieseieiiseiisss e snsssssessesesensies 47



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 18,2014

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION

This discussion and analysis of the City of Picayune’s financial performance provides an overall narrative
review of the City’s financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2013. The intent of this discussion
and analysis is to look at the City’s performance as a whole; readers should also review the notes to the
basic financial statements and the financial statements to enhance their understanding of the City’s
financial performance.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.
The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) Government-wide financial
statements, (2) Fund financial statements and (3) Notes to the basic financial statements. Required
supplementary information is included in addition to the basic financial statements.

Figure 1 shows how required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another.

Figure 2 summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the portion of the
City’s government they cover and the types of information they contain.

The remainder of this section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis explains the structure and content
of each of the statements.

Figure 1 — Required Components of the City's Annual Report

Management's Basic Financial Required
Discussion and Statements Supplementary
Analysis Information
......................... [ ]
Government- Fund Financial
Wide Financial Statements Financial
Statements Statements

Summary ﬁ Detail
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Figure 2 — Major Features of the City’s Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-
Wide Financial Fund Financial Statements
Statements
Governmental Proprietary
Funds Funds
Scope Entire City All activities of the City that Activities of the City that
government are not business-type or operate similar to private
fiduciary in nature businesses
Requn:ed ® Statement of Balance sheet ® Statement of net assets
financial net assets
statements Statement of revenues, ©® Statement of revenues,
® Statement of expenditures and changes expenses and changes in
activities in fund balances net assets
® Statement of cash flows
Accounting Accrual Modified accrual accounting Accrual accounting and
basis and accounting and and current financial economic resources focus
measurement economic resources focus
focus resources focus
Type of asset/ All assets and Only assets expected to be All assets and liabilities, both
liability liabilities, both used up and liabilities that financial and capital, and
information financial and come due during the year or short and long term
capital and short soon thereafter; no capital
and long term assets included
Type of All revenues and Revenues for which cash is All revenues and expenses
inflow/ expenses during | received during or soon after during year, regardless of
outflow year, regardless the end of the year; when cash is received or
information of when cash is expenditures when goods or paid
received or paid services are received and
payment is due during the
year or soon thereafter

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City finances, in a manner similar to private-sector
businesses.

The statement of net assets presents information on all City assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

3
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Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or part of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the City include general government; public safety; public works; culture and
recreation; economic development authority; and interest on long-term debt. The business-type activities
of the City include water and sewer services.

The Government-wide Financial Statements can be found on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the City can be divided into
two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a City’s near-term financing requirements. Governmental funds
include the general, special revenue and debt service funds.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities. These reconciliations are on Exhibits 3.1 and 4.1
respectively.

The City maintains individual governmental funds in accordance with the Municipal Audit and Accounting
Guide issued by the Office of the State Auditor. Information is presented separately in the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances for all major funds. All other non-major funds are combined together and presented in these
reports as other governmental funds.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on Exhibits 3 and 4 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds are enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statement. The
City uses enterprise funds to account for the water and sewer service.

Fund financial statements for the proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The Water and Sewer Fund is considered to be
a major fund of the City.

The proprietary funds financial statements can be found on Exhibits 5, 6, and 7 of this report.
Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of

the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be found
immediately following the exhibits in this report.
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In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents Required
Supplementary Information concerning the City’s budget process.

The City adopts an annual operating budget for all governmental funds and proprietary funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund and the Utility Fund.

CURRENT FINANCIAL RELATED ACTIVITIES

Antiquated infrastructure is a problem for the City of Picayune as it is for many governmental agencies.
However, in the past 5 years, the City has taken a proactive stance in regards to this issue.

In 2010, the City issued $7,700,000 of general obligation debt to fund a city-wide street paving
improvement project. To date, all City streets are freshly paved and a plan has been incorporated to
maintain these roads. The City has also received hundreds of thousands of dollars in grant funding to: 1)
pave highways; 2) Ridge Road / Wal-Mart intersection; 3) downtown parking; 4) construct sidewalks for
West Side School; and 5) incorporate nostalgic lighting in our Historic District.

During this same time period, the City relocated its City Hall back to the original site utilizing the historic
building in addition to the construction of a brand new building. With this move, the Public Works
Department relocated back to a newly renovated facility with additions to house machinery and inventory.
The Intermodal Depot is now the home of our Planning and Zoning Department, Main Street office, and a
museum.

Recently, the City also issued $3,000,000 of revenue bonds for the purpose of a natural gas cast iron gas
main replacement project. This project is anticipated to reduce the City’s unaccounted for natural gas
tremendously and lower customer’s bills. The water system underwent several major improvements
including the renovation of two main water tanks, installation of a 12-inch water main at the intersection of
Adcox/Sycamore and Baylous/Loftin and the repairs to several serious water main leaks. The City
recognizes the need to continue the efforts for upgrading of the utility system and does so by including
upgrades each year in the budget.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL DEPARTMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors with a general
overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, please contact Amber Hinton,
City Clerk, at 601.798.9770.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Joun M. KEeenEg, CPA

(A Professional Association) PameLa W. Bourne, CPA
C. RONALD SANDERSON, CPA
T. AsuToN HaIGLER, CPA, CVA

CuEeLuie K. Eavenson, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council, City Manager, and City Clerk
Picayune, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Picayune,
Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the City of Picayune’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Picayune, Mississippi, as of September 30,
2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 18,
2014, on our consideration of the City of Picayune, Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and do not provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion & Analysis on pages 2 - 5and the budgetary comparison information on pages 34 - 35 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
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financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Picayune, Mississippi’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basis financial statements. Other supplementary financial
information listed as schedules in the table of contents is also presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Nas, bass '&"mm#‘ﬁ%“ ¥ Cavenom A .

Keene Bourne Sanderson Haigler & Eavenson, PA
Certified Public Accountants

February 18, 2014
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City of Picayune
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2013
EXHIBIT 1
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,944,415 $ 6,844,006 $ 11,788,421
Investments 1,707,418 599,568 2,306,986
Receivables (net of uncollectibles):
Accounts 401,723 779,294 1,181,017
Sales Tax 723,160 - 723,160
Property & Ad Valorem Tax 1,924,987 - 1,924,987
Other 174,524 32,708 207,232
Notes Receivable 987,954 - 987,954
Other Assets 644,014 298,660 942,674
Due from Other Funds 3,013,901 239,337 3,253,238
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 2,402,438 172,599 2,575,037
Buildings and Improvements 5,874,796 111,247 5,986,043
Machinery and Equipment 120,503 478,266 598,769
Mobile Equipment 1,188,376 156,438 1,344,814
Infrastructure 17,700,643 9,458,998 27,159,641
Construction in Progress 7,410,870 - 7,410,870
Bond Issuance Costs (net of accumulated amortization) 234,765 70,217 304,982
Total Assets $ 49,454,487 $ 19,241,338 § 68,695,825
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 614,349 § 814,246 $ 1,428,595
Accrued Liabilities 265,667 58,502 324,169
Customer Deposits - 669,483 669,483
Due to Other Funds 1,357,937 1,895,301 3,253,238
Deferred Revenue 1,924,987 - 1,924,987
Assets Held for Others 398,071 - 398,071
Non-Current Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 1,280,994 275,873 1,556,867
Due In More Than One Year 10,634,577 6,476,435 17,111,012
Long-term Compensated Absences 566,342 95,218 661,560
Total Liabilities 17,042,924 10,285,058 27,327,982
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 22,782,055 3,625,240 26,407,295
Restricted 5,006,906 1,269,051 6,275,957
Unrestricted 4,622,602 4,061,989 8,684,591
Total Net Assets 32,411,563 8,956,280 41,367,843
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 49,454,487 $ 19,241,338 $ 68,695,825

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 18,2014

City of Picayune
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2013
EXHIBIT 3
Economic Gen Obligation Other Total
General Airport Development Street Bonds Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,223,244 $ 321,800 $ 487,203 §$ 670,624 $ 241,544 $ 4,944,415
Investments 1,500,000 - 150,773 - 56,645 1,707,418
Receivables (net of uncollectibles):
Intergovernmental Receivables 653,426 - 69,734 - - 723,160
Property Tax Receivable 1,924,987 - - - - 1,924,987
Franchise Tax Receivable 175,684 - - - - 175,684
Other Receivables 400,563 - - - - 400,563
Notes Receivable 130,665 - 857,289 - - 987,954
Prepaid Expenses 194,459 - 21,639 - - 216,098
Inventory - - 427,916 - - 427,916
Due from Other Funds 2,978,020 - 10,823 - 25,058 3,013,901
Total Assets $11,181,048 $ 321,800 $2,025,377 § 670,624 $§ 323,247 $ 14,522,096
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 442946 $ 1958 $ 20,256 $ 112,993 § 36,196 614,349
Accrued Liabilities 265,667 - - - - 265,667
Due to Other Funds 273,282 1,082,682 - - 1,973 1,357,937
Deferred Revenue 1,924,987 - - - - 1,924,987
Assets Held for Others 374,822 - - - 23,249 398,071
Total Liabilities 3,281,704 1,084,640 20,256 112,993 61,418 4,561,011
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Prepaid Expenses 194,459 - 21,639 - - 216,098
Inventory - - 427,916 - - 427,916
Notes Receivable 130,665 - 857,289 - - 987,954
Restricted
Debt Service 1,000,919 - 655,152 - - 1,656,071
Capital Projects 1,048,243 - - 670,624 - 1,718,867
Committed 805,000 - - - - 805,000
Assigned - (762,840) 43,125 - 261,829 (457,886)
Unassigned 4,720,058 - - (112,993) - 4,607,065
Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 7,899,344 (762,840) 2,005,121 557,631 261,829 9,961,085

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances_$ 11,181,048 § 321,800 $2,025,377 § 670,624 $§ 323,247 $ 14,522,096

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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City of Picayune
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Funds

September 30, 2013
EXHIBIT 3.1

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 9,961,085

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Governmental Capital Assets $ 66,114,939
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (31,417,313) 34,697,626

Other long-term assets are not current financial resources. Therefore,
they are not reported in the funds.

Bond Issuance Costs 319,500

Less: Accumulated Amortization (84,735) 234,765
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable

in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Bonds Payable (10,259,500)

Notes Payable (1,656,071)

Compensated Absences (566,342) (12,481,913)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 32,411,563

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Picayune
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2013

EXHIBIT 4
Economic Gen Obligation Other Total
General Airport Development Street Bonds Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property and Ad Valorem Taxes $1,813,719 § - $ - $ - $ 907,358 $ 2,721,077
Licenses, Permits and Fees 826,421 - - - - 826,421
Intergovernmental Revenue 652,564 - - - - 652,564
Sales Tax 4,193,278 - 442,455 - 24 4,635,757
Charges for Services - 5,236 - - - 5,236
Fines and Forfeits 373,311 - - - 65,523 438,834
Rents Charged - 91,270 40,969 - - 132,239
Grants 278,483 - 60,960 - - 339,443
Other Revenue 185,502 - 18,458 1,896 17,179 223,035
Total Revenues 8,323,278 96,506 562,842 1,896 990,084 9,974,606
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 2,679,157 - - 239,862 - 2,919,019
Public Safety 4,973,809 - - - 171,350 5,145,159
Public Works 1,399,065 - - - - 1,399,065
Culture and Recreation - - - - -
Economic Development 22,780 99,540 353,985 - - 476,305
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement - - - - 1,237,748 1,237,748
Interest and Fiscal Charges - - - - 400,073 400,073
Total Expenditures 9,074,811 99,540 353,985 239,862 1,809,171 11,577,369
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (751,533) (3,034) 208,857 (237,966) (819,087)  (1,602,763)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - 8,722 - - 8,722
Transfers In 935,156 - - 195,782 723,198 1,854,136
Transfers Out (668,100) - (265,755) (427,328) (207,828) (1,569,011)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 267,056 - (257,033) (231,546) 515,370 293,847
Net Change in Fund Balance (484,477) (3,034) (48,176) (469,512) (303,717)  (1,308,916)
Fund Balances (Deficits) - Beginning 8,383,821 (759,806) 2,053,297 1,027,143 565,546 11,270,001
Fund Balances (Deficits) - Ending $7,899,344 § (762,840) $2,005,121 $ 557,631 § 261,829 $ 9,961,085

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Picayune
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
September 30, 2013
EXHIBIT 4.1

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (1,308,916)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets

is depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Expenditures for Capital Assets $ 1,789,895
Less: Current Year Depreciation (1,442,365) 347,530

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Net Assets.
Principal Payments 1,237,748
Some expenses in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as

expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in Long-term Compensated Absences (50,801)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 225,561

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Picayune
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2013
EXHIBIT 5
Enterprise Funds
Utility Fund Cemetery Fund Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,768,211 $ 75,795 § 6,844,006
Investments 363,406 236,162 599,568
Accounts Receivable, net of allowance 779,294 - 779,294
Other Receivables - 32,708 32,708
Prepaid Expenses 12,394 - 12,394
Inventory 138,064 148,202 286,266
Due from Other Funds 239,337 - 239,337
Total Current Assets 8,300,706 492,867 8,793,573
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land 169,023 3,576 172,599
Buildings and Improvements 142,065 8,506 150,571
Machinery and Equipment 1,147,021 21,387 1,168,408
Infrastructure 12,171,863 - 12,171,863
Mobile Equipment 577,743 10,000 587,743
Construction in Progress - - -
Less Accumulated Depreciation (3,839,390) (34,246) (3,873,636)
Bond Issuance Costs, net of accumulated amortization 70,217 - 70,217
Total Noncurrent Assets 10,438,542 9,223 10,447,765
Total Assets 18,739,248 502,090 19,241,338
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 813,196 1,050 814,246
Accrued Salaries and Taxes 58,502 - 58,502
Customer Deposits 669,483 - 669,483
Due to Other Funds 1,894,396 905 1,895,301
Current Portion of Long-term Debt 275,873 - 275,873
Total Current Liabilities 3,711,450 1,955 3,713,405
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payable 91,880 3,338 95,218
Long-term Debt 6,476,435 - 6,476,435
Total Liabilities 10,279,765 5,293 10,285,058
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 3,616,017 9,223 3,625,240
Restricted 1,032,889 236,162 1,269,051
Unrestricted 3,810,577 251,412 4,061,989
Total Net Assets $ 8,459,483 §$ 496,797 $ 8,956,280

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Picayune
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2013
EXHIBIT 6
Enterprise Funds
Utility Fund Cemetery Fund Total
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 4,686,021 $ - $§ 4,686,021
Plot Sales - 23,422 23,422
Total Operating Revenues 4,686,021 23,422 4,709,443
Operating Expenses:
Personnel Services 1,404,609 47,482 1,452,091
Supplies 321,369 8,319 329,688
Contractual Services and Other Charges 1,427,303 5,642 1,432,945
Utilities 101,717 1,161 102,878
Purchase of Gas 912,276 - 912,276
Depreciation and Amortization 306,323 1,392 307,715
Total Operating Expenses 4,473,597 63,996 4,537,593
Operating Income (Loss) 212,424 (40,574) 171,850
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Other Miscellanous Income 159,177 636 159,813
Proceeds from Asset Disposals 32,617 - 32,617
Interest Income 11,986 215 12,201
Grant Revenue 534,044 - 534,044
Transfers In 120,833 16,375 137,208
Transfers Out (420,833) - (420,833)
Interest Expense (131,452) - (131,452)
Total Nonoperating Rev (Exp ) 306,372 17,226 323,598
Net Income (Loss) 518,796 (23,348) 495,448
Total Net Assets - Beginning 7,940,687 520,145 8,460,832
Total Net Assets - Ending $ 8,459,483 $ 496,797 $ 8,956,280

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Picayune
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2013
EXHIBIT 7
Enterprise Funds
Utility Fund  Cemetery Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers and users $ 4,686,021 $ 23,422 § 4,709,443
Cash payments for personnel services (1,404,609) (47,482) $ (1,452,091)
Cash payments to suppliers and contractual services (1,748,672) (13,961) $ (1,762,633)
Cash payments for other charges (1,125,951) (8,756) $ (1,134,707)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 406,789 (46,777) 360,012
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Grant revenue 534,044 - 534,044
Miscellaneous revenue 191,794 851 192,645
Transfers (to) from other funds (300,000) 16,375 (283,625)
Interest expense (131,452) - (131,452)
Principal repayments (159,037) - (159,037)
Proceeds from borrowings 3,391,973 - 3,391,973
Purchase of capital assets (1,091,900) - (1,091,900)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities 2,435,422 17,226 2,452,648
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment earnings 11,986 215 12,201
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 11,986 215 12,201
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,854,197 (29,336) 2,824,861
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 3,914,014 105,131 4,019,145
Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 6,768211 § 75,795 $ 6,844,006
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Net operating income (loss) $ 212,424 $ (40,574) $ 171,850
Adjustments not affecting cash:
Depreciation expense 306,323 1,392 307,715
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (18,380) - (18,380)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items 1,607 - 1,607
(Increase) decrease in inventory (25,499) - (25,499)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (27,575) 2,439 (25,136)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable & accruals (68,112) (10,886) (78,998)
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 20,715 - 20,715
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 5,286 852 6,138
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 406,789 $ (46,777) $ 360,012

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L

1L

IIL

The City of Picayune, Mississippi incorporated under the laws of the State of Mississippi and situated in
Pearl River County, operates under the council-manager form of government and provides the following
services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety (Police and Fire), Public Works, Health and Welfare,
Culture and Recreation, and General Administrative Services.

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices are
discussed in subsequent sections of this Note. The remainder of the notes is organized to provide
explanation, including required disclosures, of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013.

The City’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for including
as a component unit of the city, consists of oversight responsibility, special financing relationships, and
scope of public services. Oversight responsibility is determined by the extent of financial interdependency,
control over the selection of the governing authority and management, ability to significantly influence
operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. Based on these criteria, the City has no component units.

Related Organizations

The Picayune School District has been excluded from the reporting entity, because it is an “other stand-
alone government”. The school district is a related organization of, but not a component unit of, the City of
Picayune. The governing authorities of the City do select a majority of the school district’s board, but do
not have ongoing financial accountability for the school district.

Joint Ventures and Jointly Governed Organizations

Additionally during its evaluation of potential component units, management identified one joint venture,
Partners for Pearl River County, and one jointly governed organization, Municipal Gas Authority of
Mississippi.

A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a contractual arrangement and that is
owned, operated, or governed by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint
control, in which the participations retain (a) an ongoing financial interest or (b) an ongoing financial
responsibility. Generally, the purpose of a joint venture is to pool resources and share the costs, risks, and
rewards of providing goods or services to the venture participants directly, or for the benefit of, the general
public or specific service recipients.

A jointly governed organization is similar in nature to a joint venture in that it provides goods and services
to the citizenry of two or more governments. However, it does not meet the definition of a joint venture
because there is no ongoing significant financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in
net assets) report financial information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The
statement of activities demonstrates the degree of which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment; (2)
operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including restricted investment
income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Iv.

of capital assets and include fees to developers. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(A) Basis of Accounting

The City complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of American (GAAP)
as applicable to governmental entities, and as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. Proprietary funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict with GASB pronouncements, in which, GASB prevails.

The government-wide financial statements report using the economic resources measurements focus and
the accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity
(between or within funds). Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements also report using the same
focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally
are recorded when liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due. Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: Property taxes, licenses,
intergovernmental revenues, and investment income. In general, other revenues are recognized when cash
is received by the City.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements include revenues and expenses related
to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are
charges to customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or
services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and
expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements.

(B) Fund Types and Major Funds

Governmental Funds

The City reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund — The general fund is the primary operating fund of the city. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another

fund.
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Airport Fund — This special revenue fund accounts for the financial resources used for the
acquisition, construction, and maintenance of the City operated airport.

Economic Development Fund — This special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds from the
Tourism Sales Tax, and the sales of land in the industrial park that are used for economic
development.

General Obligation Street Bond Fund — This special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds
from the issuance of bonds to be used for certain capital projects and improvements.

Proprietary Funds
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Utility Fund — The utility fund accounts for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing water, garbage, and gas services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Cemetery Fund — The cemetery fund accounts for the activities and operation of the City
operated cemetery.

(C) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

V. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
(A) Cash and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are primarily considered to be cash on hand and amounts held in
demand deposits. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, short-term investments held in proprietary
funds with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the City, if any, are considered to be
cash equivalents.

State statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) direct obligations of the United States government, the
payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States government if pledged, (2) certificates of
deposit when insured or secured by acceptable collateral and (3) obligations of the State of Mississippi, or
any county, municipality or school district of the State of Mississippi which have been approved by a
reputable bond attorney or have been validated by the decree of the chancery court. Investments are
recorded at costs, which approximated fair value.

(B) Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other funds.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are
not expendable available financial resources.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

All trade, property tax, and fine receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. An allowance
has been provided in the general fund and the utility fund for estimated uncollectible ad valorem taxes
receivable and utility charges. In the general fund, the allowance amount is estimated based on collections
history. The allowance in the utility fund is estimated using accounts receivable past due 90 days or more.
As of September 30, 2013, the allowance for uncollectible utility fund receivables is $37,296 and the
allowance for general fund receivables is $3,909,655 which consists primarily of police fines.

(C) Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond September 30, 2013, are recorded
as prepaid items.

(D) Inventories

Inventories consist of natural gas stored with the City’s supplier, cemetery plots, aviation fuel at the
Picayune Municipal Airport, and parcels of land at the City’s industrial park. Inventories are stated at cost
utilizing the average cost valuation method for natural gas and aviation fuel and at historical cost for
cemetery plots and land.

(E) Restricted Assets

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature or normal understanding of
the availability of the asset. Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors,
grantors, or laws. Restricted assets in the debt service fund are restricted for the payment of debt service.
Restricted assets in the special revenue funds are restricted for economic development, recreation and for
certain purposes as stated in the grant agreements. Restricted assets in the enterprise funds represent utility
customer deposits subject to refund and amounts restricted for improvements. When both restricted and
non-restricted assets are available for use, the policy is to use restricted assets first.

(F) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), net of depreciation are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The City generally capitalizes assets
with an initial, individual cost of more that $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed. No interest cost was capitalized during the current fiscal year.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings 50 years
Building improvements 20 years
Public domain infrastructure 50 years
Utility system infrastructure 10 — 50 years
Machinery and equipment 3 - 15 years
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(G) Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statements of net assets. Bond issuance costs
and bond premiums and discounts are capitalized and amortized over the terms of the respective bonds
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related
debt.

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other
financing sources of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures.

(H) Compensated Absences

The City’s policy allows employees to accumulate unused vacation and sick leave. Full-time employees are
granted vacation form 12 to 24 days per year depending on the employee’s length of service. Retiring and
terminating employees are paid for unused vacation up to a maximum of 240 hours. There is no liability for
unpaid accumulated sick leave since sick pay is not paid upon termination of employment. All vacation pay
is accrued when earned in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. In the fund
financial statements, a liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

The compensated absences liability was computed using the specific identification method whereby the
actual number of vacation hours multiplied by the employee’s hourly rate at September 30, 2013. The
resulting liability is then increased to include social security and retirement contributions that the City is
required to pay up on liquidation of the liability.

(I) Fund Balances

Fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in those funds can be spent. Governmental fund balance is classified as nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. The following are descriptions of fund classifications used
by the City:

Nonspendable fund balance includes items that cannot be spent. This includes amounts that are not in a
spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term portion of loans/notes receivable, or property held
for resale unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned) and amounts that must legally or
contractually be required to remain intact, such as a principal balance in a permanent fund.

Restricted fund balance includes amounts that have constraints placed upon the use of the resources either
by an external party or imposed by law through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by a formal action of the Board, the City’s highest level of decision-making authority.

Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for a specific

purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. For governmental funds, other than the general funds,
this is the residual amount within the fund that is not restricted or committed.
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Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or
assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that
reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, it may be necessary to
report a negative unassigned fund balance.

(J) Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, not of
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding balances of
any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets are
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws, or
regulations of other governments.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND OTHER DEPOSITS
(A) Cash

The carrying value of the City’s deposits with financial institutions was $14,095,407 and the bank balance
was $14,132,917 at September 30, 2013.

Custodial Credit Risk: State laws allows the City to invest in interest bearing time certificates of deposits
for periods of fourteen days to one year with depositories and in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, State of
Mississippi, or of any county, municipality or school district of the state. Further, the City may invest in
certain purchase agreements.

The collateral for public entities deposits’ in financial institutions is held in the name of the State Treasurer
of Mississippi under a program established by Section 27-105-5 Miss. Code Ann. (1972)., Under this
program, the entity’s funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer.
Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral against those
deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, security pledged by that institution would be
liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered by the FDIC.

Interest Rate Risk: The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer.
The carrying amount of certificates of deposits is a reasonable estimate of their fair value.

(B) Investments

Mississippi municipalities may invest surplus funds in certificates of deposit with qualified depositories and
in bonds and direct obligations of the United States of America; or the State of Mississippi; or any count,
municipality or school district of the State of Mississippi which have been approved by a reputable bond

attorney or have been validated by the decree of the chancery clerk.

At September 30, 2013, the City did not hold any certificates of deposit with maturity dates longer than one
year.

22



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 18,2014

CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2013 consist of the following:

Governmental Business-type Total

Activities Activities Government-wide
Property and ad valorem tax $ 1,924,987 $ - $ 1,924,987
Sales tax 723,160 - 723,160
Franchise tax 175,684 - 175,684
Fines receivable, gross 4,311,378 - 4,311,378
Accounts receivable, gross - 816,590 816,590
Other receivables (1,160) 32,708 31,548
Notes receivable 987,954 - 987,954
Total receivables, gross 8,122,003 849,298 8,971,301
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (3,909,655) (37,296) (3,946,951)
Total receivables, net $ 4,212,348 $ 812,002 $ 5,024,350

(A) Property Taxes

The City levies a tax on real and personal property based on the assessed value of property as compiled by
the Pearl River County and Hancock County tax assessors from the information extracted from the County
assessment tax rolls. The taxes on real property attach as an enforceable lien on the property as of January
1. Taxes on real and personal property are levied by the City Council at the first regular meeting in
September. The City’s tax assessment roll is then approved by the City Council after a series of public
hearings to receive the citizens’ objections. Such taxes are billed and collected by the City.

In accordance with Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended for code section 27-39-321, the Board may levy
taxes in any amount for general revenue purposes and general improvements. However, taxes collected for
the current year are limited to an increase of not more that 10% over receipts for any one of the preceding
three years. For purposes of the computation, taxes collected in the current year resulting from the property
added to the tax assessment roll are excluded from the computation.

(B) Notes Receivable

Brockway Building

On May 3, 2005, the City entered into an agreement with Farmer Fresh Produce International, LLC for the
sale of the City’s Brockway Building. The sales price of the building was $1,100,000 at 2% interest per
annum for a period of thirty years. Monthly payments of $4,066 are due on the first day of each month.
The sale is financed by the City. The agreement includes a special provision that the City incur $35,000 to
repair and modernize the Brockway Building’s administrative offices. The City and the buyer agree that the
special provision will be met by the buyer not paying the first eight payments and reducing the ninth
payment. The balance of notes receivable as of September 30, 2013 was $857,289 and is included as Notes
Receivable in the Statement of Net Assets.

National Home Furnishings

On September 29, 2006, the City entered into an agreement with National Home Furnishings for the sale of
City property and building. The sales price was $157,000 at 7% interest per annum for a period of twenty
years. Monthly payments of $1,217 are due on the first day of each month. The sale is financed by the
City. The balance of notes receivable as of September 30, 2013 was $130,665 and is included as Notes
Receivable in the Statement of Net Assets.
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NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets during the year ended September 30, 2013:

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,192,438 $§ 210,000 $ 2,402,438
Construction in Progress 8,366,882 162,798 (1,118,810) 7,410,870
Total capital assets not being depreciated 10,559,320 372,798 (1,118,810) 9,813,308
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 5,362,689 2,242,540 7,605,229
Machinery and equipment 1,303,330 52,366 1,355,696
Mobile equipment 3,713,131 98,147 (59,131) 3,752,147
Infrastructure 43,431,399 157,160 - 43,588,559
Total capital assets being depreciated 53,810,549 2,550,213 (59,131) 56,301,631
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (1,555,096) (175,337) - (1,730,433)
Machinery and equipment (937,905) (297,288) - (1,235,193)
Mobile equipment (2,537,453) (85,449) 59,131 (2,563,771)
Infrastructure (25,003,625) (884,291) - (25,887,916)
Total accumulated depreciation (30,034,079)  (1,442,365) 59,131 (31,417,313)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 23,776,470 1,107,848 - 24,884,318

Governmental activities capital assets, net _$ 34,335,790 $ 1,480,646 $(1,118,810) $ 34,697,626

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General Government $ 878,005
Public Safety 62,954
Public Works 31,003
Culture and Recreation 92,973
Economic Development 377,430

Total Depreciation Expense $ 1,442,365

24



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 18,2014

CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Business-type Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 172,599 § - 8 -3 172,599
Construction in progress 3,533,727 (3,533,727) -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,706,326 - (3,533,727) 172,599
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 103,202 47,369 - 150,571
Machinery and equipment 761,588 406,820 - 1,168,408
Mobile equipment 530,653 57,090 - 587,743
Inrastructure 8,057,515 4,114,348 - 12,171,863
Total capital assets being depreciated 9,452,058 4,625,627 - 14,078,585
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (34,758) (4,566) - (39,324)
Machinery and equipment (654,312) (35,830) - (690,142)
Mobile equipment (409,579) (21,726) - (431,305)
Inrastructure (2,469,772) (243,093) - (2,712,865)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,568,421) (305,215) - (3,873,636)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 5,884,537 4,320,412 - 10,204,949

Business-type activities capital assets, net _$ 9,590,863 §$ 4,320,412 §(3,533,727) § 10,377,548

NOTE 5 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in long-term debt during the year ended September 30, 2013 are as follows:

October 1, September 30, Due Within
2012 Additions Reductions 2013 One Year
Governmental Activities
Bonds $ 11,410,500 $ - $ (1,151,000) $ 10,259,500 $ 1,189,300
Notes 1,728,513 16,672 (86,748) 1,658,437 91,694
Compensated Absences 515,541 50,801 - 566,342 -
Total $ 13,654,554 $§ 67473 § (1,237,748) $ 12,484,279 $ 1,280,994
Business-Type Activities
Bonds $ 314,500 $3,000,000 $ (34,000) $ 3,280,500 $ 140,700
Notes 3,238,872 391,973 (159,037) 3,471,808 135,173
Compensated Absences 104,928 - (7,502) 97,426 -
Total $ 3,658,300 $3,391,973 $ (200,539) $ 6,849,734 $ 275,873
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

(A) Bonds Payable

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2004

Special Obligation Bonds, 2004
General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2005

General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2006

General Obligation Bond Series, 2008
General Obligation Street Bonds, 2010

Total General Government

BUSINESS-TYPE:
General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2005

Utility System Revenue Bonds, 2013

Total Business-Type

TOTAL

October 1, September 30, Due Witl
2012 Additions Reductions 2013 One Ye:

$ 815,000 $ - $  (105,000) $ 710,000 $ 105,
2,455,000 - (160,000) 2,295,000 165,
610,500 - (66,000) 544,500 69,
805,000 - (75,000) 730,000 80,(
330,000 - (50,000) 280,000 50,(
6,395,000 - (695,000) 5,700,000 720,(
11,410,500 (1,151,000) 10,259,500 1,189,
314,500 - (34,000) 280,500 35,

- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 105,(

314,500 3,000,000 (34,000) 3,280,500 140,

$ 11,725,000 $ 3,000,000 $ (1,185,000) $ 13,540,000 $ 1,330,

Principal and interest maturities are as follows:

Total
Governmental Activities Principal Interest Requirements
9/30/2014 1,194,300 333,865 1,528,165
9/30/2015 1,239,300 295,691 1,534,991
9/30/2016 1,287,600 257,171 1,544,771
9/30/2017 1,345,900 219,190 1,565,090
9/30/2018 1,407,500 180,460 1,587,960
Thereafter 3,784,900 343,832 4,128,732
Total $ 10,259,500 $ 1,630,209 $ 11,889,709

Total
Business-Type Activities Principal Interest Requirements
9/30/2014 140,700 92,000 232,700
9/30/2015 145,700 87,601 233,301
9/30/2016 152,400 83,051 235,451
9/30/2017 159,100 78,292 237,392
9/30/2018 162,500 73,924 236,424
Thereafter 2,520,100 604,843 3,124,943
Total $ 3,280,500 § 1,019,711 § 4,300,211
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NOTE 5 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

(A) Bonds Payable (continued)

Balance

GENERAL GOVERNMENT at 9/30/2013

General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2004, dated March 1, 2004, $1,500,000, variable

interest currently at 2.875% that increases over the life of the bonds to 3.8%, payable in monthly

installments beginning at $75,000 on March 1, 2005 and increasi $ 710,000

Special Obligation Bonds, 2004, dated April 15, 2004, $3,500,000 amount, variable interest

currently at 4.0% that increases over the life of the bonds to 4.625%, payable in annual

installments beginning at $110,000 on July 1, 2005, and increasing annually 2,295,000

General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2005, dated August 15, 2005, $1,500,000 amount,

variable interest currently at 2.2% that increases over the life of the bonds to 3.6%, payable in

annual beginning at $70,000 on July 1, 2006, and increasing annu 544,500

General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2006, dated July 7, 2006, $1,200,000 amount,

fixed interest rate at 4.3%, payable in annual installments beginning at $60,000 on May 1, 2007,

and increasing thereafter up to $105,000 until maturity on May 1, 20 730,000

General Obligation Bond Series, 2008, dated March 19, 2008, $500,000 amount, fixed interest rate

at 2.9%, payable in annual installments of $40,000 on March 1, 2009, and increasing thereafter up

to $60,000 until maturity on March 1, 2018. 280,000

General Obligation Street Bonds, 2010, dated August 5, 2010, $7,700,000 amount, variable

interest currently at 3.4% that decreases over the life of the bonds to 2.9%, payable in annual

installments beginning at $640,000 on July 1, 2011, and increasing the 5,700,000
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT BONDS PAYABLE 10,259,500

BUSINESS-TYPE

General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2005, dated August 15, 2005, $1,500,000 amount,

variable interest currently at 2.2% that increases over the life of beginning at $70,000 on July 1,

2006, and increasing annually thereafter up to $135,000 until 280,500

Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 2013, dated April 1, 2013, $3,000,000, variable interest

currently at 3.0%, principal payable in annual installments beginning at $105,000 in 2014 and

increasing annually thereafter up to $205,000 at maturity in 2033 3,000,000
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE BONDS PAYABLE 3,280,500
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS-TYPE BONDS PAYABLE $ 13,540,000
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NOTE 5 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

(B) Notes Payable
Balance at Balance at Due
October 1, Additi September 30,  Within
2012 (Reductions) 2013 One Year
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
MDA Loan No. 0524, bearing interest at 3%, maturing
February 1, 2028 $ 222270 § (11,587) $ 210,683 $ 11,939
MDA for drainage project, bearing interest at 3%,
maturing September 1, 2014 53,119 (26,277) 26,842 26,842
MDA for drainage project, bearing interest at 4.65%,
maturing January 1, 2015 17,386 (6,083) 11,303 6,372
MDA for airport infrastructure project, bearing interest at
3%, maturing June 1, 2022 148,358 (13,697) 134,661 14,114
MDA for airport infrastructure project, bearing interest at
3%, maturing June 1, 2022 37,230 (3,349) 33,881 3,451
FEMA Special Community Disaster Loan, bearing interest
at2.67% 735,419 16,672 752,091 -
MDA for airport infrastructure, bearing interest at 3%,
maturing July 31, 2027 514,731 (28,121) 486,610 28,976
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,728,513 (72,442) 1,656,071 91,694
BUSINESS-TYPE
MS State Department of Health, Drinking Water Systems
Improv bearing i at 3.5%, maturing July 1, 164,837 (11,284) 153,553 12,764
FEMA Special Community Disaster Loan, bearing interest
at 2.93% 1,185,368 29,643 1,215,011 -
Bancorpsouth, interest at 4.32%, maturing September 3,
2014 57,160 (57,160) - -
Capital Improvements Revolving Loan for AMR project,
bearing interest at 2%, maturing March 1, 2032 1,268,977 (53,995) 1,214,982 55,031
Capital Improvem<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>